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CORPORATE PROFILE
AL MY

Veson Holdings Limited (“Veson” or the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), with its focus on the R&D and application
of lithium-ion battery, is a leading provider of lithium power solution
for consumer electronics and smart hardware products and a leading
manufacturer of lithium-ion battery module packaging and integration in
the PRC. The current operations of the Group mainly comprise its ODM
business and bare battery cell business, mainly supplying lithium-ion
batteries to manufacturers of well-known telecommunication brands at
home and abroad. The products sold by ODM business mainly include
mobile phone batteries, tablet batteries, notebook batteries and power
banks, etc. As the proportion of battery shipments for emerging consumer
electronics products shows a rising trend, the Group is adjusting its
development strategy to respond to market changes by actively exploring
new power supply product markets, including wearable device batteries,
car batteries and other types of backup batteries, and is committed to
providing customers with more diversified professional module business.
Veson was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in December 2006.

Supported by its self-developed and self-designed power management
system with high reliability as well as advanced technology in battery
module packaging, the Group’s lithium-ion battery products have a
reputation for high safety and high quality in the industry. The core
business of the Group is mainly the supply of high quality lithium-ion
battery modules for original mobile telecommunication, mobile digital,
smart electronics and smart hardware products, through integration
into the supply chain systems of well-known mobile communication
companies and internet technology companies in the PRC and abroad.
The high-quality customer groups served by the Group have strong
competitiveness and stable market shares, laying a foundation for
the Group’s sustainable and stable growth. The high reliability of the
Group's product, mass delivery capabilities and standardised and efficient
operating systems give the Group a competitive edge.

BEERBRAB(HEIRARE ] - EEEM B
ARRIARE DB TR EMTRER - EEAE
FEHPEBEF MBI EmBEIRERTT IR
MIEEE T B RA LR R BLER - AKB B AT
EXZHODMER RELEBAK - TE /BRI
BT ah mh MR RLE T RS2 00 - ODME TS T 38
ENEMEIZE/THREL - FREL  FLAEL
LBEHERE fANHMEEBEREFEMELHEE
HEL2 ETHBY  AEBEEAREREBEETS
B BEADFHNERERDS  BREFHREE
i BEHEBREMBLNFHEEL  MO/EFPRE
HEZTMERRAET - SHER2006F 12 AEEE
BAERXSABRAR (BT ])ERLET -

BREAIMERGINERERERSRNSAEEREE
HEBRAR R SR - AEENER T ENER
EXAZARLREUELRSEENOE - REEZLE
BEEEBEEABRINBBEBADLE NGB
MxbEOHERER  RRBEEHEN  BBRG
NERET BB ERKESESEMTEL -
AEERBHEL TP RN KR TISERBRAN
BRATBENNE  RAEERERTEREET
AW EmmENSREN - KREBERNEED KR
BH 2 ER RN EENGFEY -



The Group’s main production base is located in an industrial park
in Fuzhou, the PRC, which has strict quality control system and
environmental management system, adopts industry-leading automated
equipment and processes, implements strict process control during the
manufacturing process to fully meet the requirements of large-scale
production and ensure each product is of high quality, and follows
advanced international standards by adopting strict control throughout
its production process including selection of suppliers, raw materials
procurement, and production and quality control to provide customers
with safe and reliable products. Accumulated with years of production
and management experiences, the Group has developed a modernised
manufacturing system featuring refined management, standardised
governance and high efficiency, which enhanced the Group’s market
competitiveness through the improvement of business operating
efficiency and better cost control, and enabled the Group to become
one of the most important R&D and production bases for consumer
lithium-ion battery products in the PRC.

Upholding the enterprise spirit of “efficiency, innovation, excellence
and integrity”, the Group will continue to provide high-quality products
and services to its customers, thereby energising the world in which
everything is connected.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(RMB thousand except where otherwise stated)

HE20235F12A31HILEE
(BRBAEFEBEIN  AAREFITIIR)

2023 2022

RMB’000 RMB'000 % Change

AREFT ARETT Z3E5H

(+/-)

Turnover B 6,145,228 6,359,226 -3.4%

Profit for the year NG g A 14,214 20,066 -29.2%
Profit for the year attributable to RAFERA

owners of the Company JEME AR R 5 A 20,109 24,038 -16.3%

Earnings per share TR AT
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —ERXREEARED) 1.84 2.21 -16.7%
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHRES

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Veson Holdings Limited (“Veson” or the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual results
of the Company for the full year from 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2023 (the “Review Period”).

At present, more than 90% of the Group’s revenue is derived from
the ODM business, the majority of which comes from the smartphone
segment in the consumer electronics market. Due to the expected
slowdown in the global economy and the resulting weaker consumer
sentiment and demand, the demand in smartphone market has not
rebounded significantly after the COVID-19 pandemic, indicating that
there is still uncertainty in the smartphone market, and the Group's
sales revenue from mobile phone batteries has declined, which adversely
affected the Group’s operating results and financial performance for
2023. In order to mitigate the risk that affects the sales of individual
products which may materially impact the overall business, the Group is
constantly broadening its product and technology platforms by applying
the Group’s sophisticated technology and extensive experience in the
manufacture of lithium-ion batteries and the design of battery protection
circuits to more different mobile terminals, so as to diversify its sources
of revenue and profit, thereby reducing its dependence on the mobile
phone battery segment. The Group believes that for a long time to
come, smartphones will still be the most important carrier for personal
entertainment, consumption and social networking, the light productivity
characteristics of smartphones are also constantly strengthening, and
there is no new technology terminal that can really replace smartphones.
Smartphones themselves are also constantly evolving and upgrading,
and the high-end mobile phone market represented by foldable mobile
phones has brought users differentiated applications, content and
operation experience while enriching product modality. Meanwhile, as
the large-scale application of 5G technology will bring vast application
basis for smart wearable devices, the smart wearable market is expected
to maintain rapid growth, such as the continuous increase of smart
hardware and other new products, and the demand for the overall
consumer battery industry will continue to show a steady growth trend.
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The Group’s investment project in India was established in 2019 to
provide ODM support for existing customers engaged in consumer
electronics manufacturing businesses such as mobile phones in India.
After the establishment of the joint venture in India, the initial progress of
the project preparation was smooth, but the outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic in 2020 interrupted the investment and operation of the joint
venture in India, and the project in India has not been able to operate
normally. After the end of the COVID-19 pandemic in early 2023, the
Group originally expected to restart the project in India, but due to the
significant changes in the business environment in India in recent years, it
is difficult to realise the expectation for the recovery and reconstruction of
the joint venture in India. In view of the shrinkage and exit of customers’
investments in India, the Group is exposed to increasing risks and
uncertainties for its continuous investment in the project in India, and it is
expected that the risks will outweigh the benefits if the Group continues
to invest in the project in India. Accordingly, the Group will re-evaluate
the benefits and project value of investing in India. The Group has no
plan for new overseas ODM business in the near future, and whether
the Company will carry out ODM business overseas in the future will
depend on the needs of customers and the Company’s strategic plan.

Looking ahead, the Group will actively pay attention to the application
of consumer lithium-ion batteries in new industries and new fields,
continue to deepen cooperation with existing customers, and strive for
more market share by providing customers with the most optimal power
supply solutions through the Group’s experienced product development
team. The Group will continue to focus on the improvement of its own
operating efficiency and re-development capabilities, further enhance the
versatility of equipment to reduce the equipment input cost of production
lines, quickly respond to the new requirements of new products and
new technologies for production process, and establish a competitive
advantage of various consumer lithium-ion battery product segments.
The Group expects to fully seize future market growth opportunities,
and accelerate new product launch to exploit new sources of revenue
and profit for the Group while maintaining its position in the mobile
phone battery market.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHRES

During the Review Period, the Group was devoted to improving its
quality control system to continuously improve its production efficiency
and technological level to ensure that all manufactured batteries meet
high safety standards. Apart from product safety, focusing on the
environmental and social impact of production and ensuring work safety
were also the Group’s primary tasks. We have always ensured production
and operation are conducted in a way in which we shoulder social
responsibilities, and we will continue to develop the business in a healthy
way to provide high quality products for customers while providing a
safe and comfortable work environment for our staff. In addition, the
Group will actively pay attention to talent development, product quality,
environmental awareness promotion and supplier management, and
cultivate value by paying more attention to details, and strive to provide
customers and consumers with safe green energy products, so as to
achieve sustainable development.

On behalf of the Board and the management team, | would like to take
this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to all staff, directors,
customers, suppliers, shareholders and institutions providing professional
services to the Group for all your support to the Group throughout these
challenging times.

Feng Ming Zhu
Chairman
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INDUSTRY REVIEW

In 2023, the global smartphone market witnessed a sustained downturn,
prompting mobile phone manufacturers to actively adjust their inventory
and formulate sales strategies for new products in the first half of the
year. Throughout the first three quarters of 2023, both the global and
domestic mobile phone markets experienced an overall decline in sales
volume; however, this decline significantly narrowed down in the fourth
quarter. According to a report released by IDC, a market research agency,
global smartphone shipments fell by 3.2% year on year to 1.17 billion
units in 2023. The long-term impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, supply
chain instability, economic volatility, and increased market saturation
brought significant challenges to the smartphone market. In addition to
factors such as economic downturns and consumer confidence affecting
consumers’ purchasing decisions, another significant reason behind
declining smartphone sales is that product durability continues to improve
over time, thereby further extending consumers’ replacement cycles. In
this context, mobile phone manufacturers face unprecedented pressure.
Despite the downward pressure on the mobile phone industry throughout
2023 resulting in declining shipments for mobile phone manufacturers,
mobile phone manufacturers and upstream supply chain enterprises
forged ahead amidst these challenges and introduced novel technologies
and products that cater to consumers’ actual demands, which have
become pivotal drivers shaping industry development trends. Mobile
phone manufacturers aspire to meet diverse consumer needs through
offering more differentiated products.

According to the information disclosed by CINNO Research, as of the
third quarter of 2023, the sales volume of foldable mobile phones in
the Chinese market reached 1.98 million units, representing a year-
on-year increase of 175% and a quarter-on-quarter increase of 70%.
Foldable products still accounted for a relatively small proportion of
overall sales volume, but maintained rapid growth in general. Given the
promising development prospects in the foldable mobile phone market,
manufacturers have strategically positioned themselves to capitalise on
this emerging trend. The advent of foldable screen technology not only
diversifies smartphone designs, but also enhances user experiences.
Looking ahead, we can anticipate further growth in the foldable mobile
phone market with an emphasis on slimness, visual appeal, fashionability
and other aspects that will become an important part of the smartphone
industry. As technology matures and costs decrease over time, foldable
screens will play a more important role in the high-end smartphone
industry in the future, representing an evolutionary direction for future
mobile phone forms.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE N O

As the most important personal mobile computing platform in this era,
smartphone is not only a communication tool, and is gradually becoming
a key hub connecting smart homes and smart cars. As an important
carrier for people’s leisure and entertainment, communication and social
networking, health and travel services, consumption and shopping, as
well as mobile office, smartphones have already become indispensable.
Despite the current sluggish overall market demand, every performance
leap and every new feature added may bring a better quality of life and
higher productivity. Smartphones are expanding to a broader ecosystem,
and consumer demand-oriented approach is the fundamental direction
for mobile phone manufacturers to explore high-quality and sustainable
development. In the future, with the continuous evolution of technology,
the smartphone industry will continue to apply more innovations to
provide users with more plentiful, more convenient and more efficient

smartphone experience.

In recent years, the proportion of mobile phone lithium-ion batteries in
the consumer lithium-ion battery market has declined, but lithium-ion
batteries have been widely applied in the fields of new energy vehicles
and energy storage, and the application scenarios of lithium-ion battery
energy storage have been integrated into production and living in an
accelerated manner. With the increasing popularity of 5G and artificial
intelligence technology, the broad application prospects will lead the
rapid growth of the market scale of new intelligent products, driving
the demand for consumer lithium-ion batteries and battery protection
circuits.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

At present, more than 90% of the Group’s revenue is derived from
the ODM business, the majority of which comes from the smartphone
segment in the consumer electronics market. Due to the expected
slowdown in the global economy and the resulting weaker consumer
sentiment and demand, the demand in smartphone market has not
rebounded significantly after the COVID-19 pandemic, and the proportion
of mobile phone lithium-ion batteries in the consumer lithium-ion battery
market has begun to decline in recent years, which adversely affected
the Group's operating results and financial performance during 2023. In
order to mitigate the risk that changes in the sales of individual products
will materially impact the overall business, the Group is constantly
broadening its product and technology platforms, so as to diversify its
sources of revenue and profit, thereby reducing its dependence on the
mobile phone battery segment. The Group believes that for a long time
to come, smartphones will still be the most important carrier for personal
entertainment, consumption and social networking, the light productivity
characteristics of smartphones are also constantly strengthening, and
there is no new technology terminal that can really replace smartphones.
Smartphones themselves are also constantly evolving and upgrading,
and the high-end mobile phone market represented by foldable mobile
phones has brought users differentiated applications, content and
operation experience while enriching product modality. Meanwhile, as
the large-scale application of 5G technology will bring vast application
basis for smart wearable devices, the smart wearable market is expected
to maintain rapid growth, such as the continuous increase of smart
hardware and other new products, and the demand for the overall
consumer battery industry will continue to show a steady growth trend.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE N O

The Group will actively pay attention to the application of lithium-
ion batteries in new industries and new fields, continue to deepen
cooperation with existing customers, and strive for more market share
by providing customers with the most optimal power supply solutions
through the Group’s experienced product development team. Facing
the complex external environment, the Group will continue to focus on
the improvement of its own operating efficiency and re-development
capabilities, further enhance the versatility of equipment to reduce the
equipment input cost of production lines, quickly respond to the new
requirements of new products and new technologies for production
process and establish the competitive advantage of various lithium-ion
battery product segments.

Looking ahead, the Group expects to fully seize market opportunities,
and accelerate new product launch to exploit new sources of revenue and
profit for the Group while maintaining its position in the mobile phone
battery market. In addition, the Group will actively pay attention to talent
development, product quality, environmental awareness promotion and
supplier management, and cultivate value by paying more attention to
details, and strive to provide customers and consumers with safe green
energy products, so as to achieve sustainable development.

During the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023
(the”Review Period”), the Group’s consolidated turnover amounted to
approximately RMB6,145.2 million (2022: RMB6,359.2 million), decreased
by approximately 3.4% compared with 2022. The Group recorded profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB20.1 million (2022: RMB24.0 million). Basic and diluted earnings
per share of approximately RMB1.84 cents (2022: RMB2.21 cents).
The ODM business recorded a turnover of approximately RMB5,745.8
million (2022: RMB6,046.8 million), accounting for approximately 93.5%
(2022: 95.1%) of the Group’s consolidated turnover. The bare battery
cell business recorded a turnover of approximately RMB141.1 million
(2022: RMB140.2 million), accounting for approximately 2.3% (2022:
2.2%) of the Group’s consolidated turnover.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ODM Business

The lithium-ion battery products supplied by the ODM business mainly
consist of mobile phone batteries, tablet batteries, notebook batteries
and power banks. During the Review Period, turnover of mobile
phone batteries represented approximately 74.5% (2022: 80.2%) of
turnover of the ODM business and the sales volume of mobile phone
batteries decreased by approximately 5.1% to approximately 110.1
million pieces (2022: 116.0 million pieces) and recorded a turnover of
approximately RMB4,264.0 million (2022: RMB4,831.6 million), which
decreased by approximately 11.7% year-on-year. In terms of product
mix, mobile phone batteries, tablet batteries, notebook batteries and
power banks contributed approximately 74.5%, 13.0%, 4.4% and 3.7%
(2022: 80.2%, 9.2%, 4.1% and 4.5%) of the Group’s ODM turnover
respectively. Since the Group is adjusting its development strategy to
respond to market changes by actively exploring new power supply
product markets, including wearable device batteries, car batteries and
other types of backup batteries, the aggregate sales of the new power
supply products contributed approximately RMB212.2 million (2022:
RMB82.0 million) to the turnover of the ODM business during the
Review Period, which represented approximately 3.7% (2022: 1.4%)
of the turnover of the ODM business. As a result, the ODM business
segment recorded a segment profit of approximately RMB108.8 million
(2022: RMB111.9 million).

Bare Battery Cell Business

During the Review Period, the bare battery cell business recorded
consolidated turnover of approximately RMB141.1 million (2022:
RMB140.2 million), representing a decrease of approximately 0.6% year-
on-year. During the Review Period, bare battery cell business recorded
segment profit of approximately RMB3.2 million (2022: segment loss
RMB1.5 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Review Period, the Group recorded consolidated turnover
of approximately RMB6,145.2 million (2022: RMB6,359.2 million),
representing a decrease by approximately 3.4% as compared to that in
2022. Gross profit for the Group was approximately RMB418.8 million
(2022: RMB456.7 million), representing a decrease by approximately
8.3% as compared to that in 2022. The profit for the year and profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company were approximately
RMB14.2 million (2022: RMB20.1 million) and approximately RMB20.1
million (2022: RMB24.0 million) respectively, representing a decrease
by approximately 29.2% and 16.3% year-on-year respectively. The
Group recorded EBITDA of approximately RMB205.6 million (2022:
RMB222.3 million) for the year, representing a decrease by approximately
7.5% as compared to 2022. Basic and diluted earnings per share was
approximately RMB1.84 cents (2022: RMB2.21cents).

Turnover by segments

During the Review Period, turnover of approximately RMB5,745.8 million
(2022: RMB6,046.8 million) was generated from the ODM business
segment, which accounted for approximately 93.5% (2022: 95.1%) of
the Group's consolidated turnover. The revenue derived from the ODM
business segment recorded a drop of 5.0% was mainly attributable to
the decrease in the volume of mobile phone batteries sold as a result
of the decrease in the demand from the smartphone manufacturing
clients. A turnover of approximately RMB141.1 million (2022: RMB140.2
million) was contributed by the bare battery cell business segment,
which accounted for approximately 2.3% (2022: 2.2%) of the Group's
consolidated turnover. The revenue derived from the bare battery cell
business segment recorded a growth of 0.6% as compared with 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Sales by major products

During the Review Period, sales of approximately RMB4,264.0 million
(2022: RMB4,831.6 million) were generated from the sale of mobile
phone batteries, which accounted for approximately 69.4% (2022:
76.0%) of the Group’s consolidated turnover. Sales of tablet batteries
and notebook batteries amounted to approximately RMB746.5 million
(2022: RMB556.5 million) and RMB252.9 million (2022: RMB246.3
million) respectively, accounted for approximately 12.1% (2022: 8.8%)
and 4.1% (2022: 3.9%) of the Group’s consolidated turnover. Sales
of power banks amounted to approximately RMB211.9 million (2022:
RMB273.6 million), which accounted for approximately 3.5% (2022:
4.3%) of the Group's consolidated turnover. Sales of new power supply
products amounted to approximately RMB212.2 million (2022: RMB81.9
million), which accounted for approximately 3.5% (2022: 1.4%) of the
Group's consolidated turnover. Sales of approximately RMB141.1 million
(2022: RMB140.2 million) were generated from the sale of bare battery
cells, which accounted for approximately 2.3% (2022: 2.2%) of the
Group's consolidated turnover.

Segment Results

The ODM business segment recorded a segment profit of approximately
RMB108.8 million (2022: RMB111.9 million) during the Review Period,
represented a decline of 2.8% as compared with 2022. The turnover and
segment profit of the ODM business both declined as compared with
2022 because the global smartphone shipments were impacted by the
market slowdown in the first half of 2023. The smartphone industry was
going through a period of inventory clearing and adjustment. Throughout
the first three quarters of 2023, both the global and domestic mobile
phone markets experienced an overall decline in sales volume; however,
this decline significantly narrowed down in the fourth quarter of 2023.

The bare battery cell business segment recorded a segment profit of
approximately RMB3.2 million (2022: segment loss RMB1.5 million)
during the Review Period.
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Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales amounted to approximately RMB5,726.5 million
during the Review Period (2022: RMB5,902.5 million), representing an a
decrease of approximately 3.0% as compared to 2022. The decrease in
cost of sales in 2023 was in line with the decrease in sales revenue during
the Review Period. Direct materials, direct labour and other production
costs accounted for approximately 92.9% (2022: 92.4%), 3.9% (2022:
4.5%) and 3.2% (2022: 3.1%) of the cost of sales respectively.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit for the Group was approximately RMB418.8 million (2022:
RMB456.7 million), representing a decrease by approximately 8.3% as
compared to that in 2022. The Group recorded a gross profit margin of
6.8% (2022: 7.2%) for the Review Period. For the ODM business, the
overall gross profit margin for the Review Period was approximately 7.0%
(2022: 7.4%). For the bare battery cell business, the overall gross profit
margin for the Review Period was approximately 6.5% (2022: 13.1%).
The decline in gross profit margin was mainly due to the reduction in
production volume during the Review Period.

Other revenue of approximately RMB40.5 million (2022: RMB58.6 million)
in 2023 mainly comprised of bank interest income, government grants
and revenue from sales of moulds. The decrease in other revenue
was mainly due to a gain on acquisition of financial assets at FVTOCI
amounted to approximately RMB17.6 million was recognised as other
revenue in 2022 and there was no such other revenue for the Review
Period.

Selling and distribution expenses of approximately RMB83.2 million
(2022: RMB94.7 million) accounted for approximately 1.4% (2022:
1.5%) of the Group’s consolidated turnover in 2023. The selling and
distribution expenses mainly comprised of entertainment expenses, repair
fee, transportation expenses, commercial expenses and staff salaries and
welfare. Selling and distribution expenses decreased as a result of the
decrease in repair fee and transportation expenses, which was in line
with the decrease in sales revenue during the Review Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Administrative expenses of approximately RMB265.7 million (2022:
RMB294.7 million) accounted for approximately 4.3% (2022: 4.6%)
of the Group's consolidated turnover in 2023. Administrative expenses
mainly comprised of R&D expenses, staff training expenses, staff
salaries and welfare, repair and maintenance expenses, depreciation
and amortisation expenses and technical support fees. The repair and
maintenance expenses during the Review Period include related repair
and maintenance costs for the buildings, facilities and equipment in the
Scud Battery Industrial Park damaged by Typhoon “Hai Kuai". There
was no such repair and maintenance expenses in 2022. The decrease in
administrative expenses was mainly attributable to the decrease in R&D
expenses, staff salaries and welfare during the Review Period.

Other operating expenses of approximately RMB24.8 million (2022:
RMB8.1 million) mainly represented the write-off of inventories and
write-off of property, plant and equipment. The significant increase in
other operating expenses during the Review Period compared with the
same period last year was mainly due to the property damage caused by
flooding of factories and warehouses in the Scud Battery Industrial Park
caused by Typhoon “Hai Kuai”. Up to the date of the report, the related
insurance claim was in the process and no compensation is accrued.

During the Review Period, the Group recorded a reversal of impairment
recognised on trade and notes receivables, net of approximately RMB2.8
million as compared to an impairment recognised on trade and notes
receivables, net in 2022 of approximately RMB7.5 million. The Group
also recorded an impairment loss recognised on prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, net of approximately RMB6.2 million, as compared
to an impairment recognised on prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, net in 2022 of approximately RMB5.6 million.

Finance costs of approximately RMB71.3 million (2022: RMB77.8 million)
mainly represent interest on bank borrowings. The decrease in finance
costs was mainly due to the decrease in notes receivable received during
the Review Period, resulting in a corresponding decrease in interest
expenses on discounted notes receivable as compared with 2022.
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Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

During the Review Period, the Group's overall performance in its ODM
business was affected by the slowdown in smartphone sales in the
global market. Despite the Group’s high quality customer base has
remained stable, the sales of mobile phone battery recorded revenue of
approximately RMB4,264.0 million, representing a decrease of 11.7%
as compare with 2022 and accounting for 69.4% of the Group's total
revenue. ODM business segment recorded a segment profit amounted to
approximately RMB108.8 million (2022: RMB111.9 million), representing
a decrease of approximately 2.8% as a result of the reduction in sales
volume during the Review Period. As a result, the Group recorded a
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company amounting
to approximately RMB20.1 million (2022: RMB24.0 million), declined by
16.3% as compared with 2022.

Treasury Management and Cash Funding

The Group’s funding and treasury policy is designed to maintain a
diversified and balanced debt profile and financing structure. The
Group continues to monitor its cash flow position and debt profile,
and to enhance the cost-efficiency of funding initiatives by its centralised
treasury function. In order to maintain financial flexibility and adequate
liquidity for the Group's operations, potential investments and growth
plans, the Group has built a strong base of funding resources and will
keep exploring cost-efficient ways of financing.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and cash equivalents held by the Group as at 31 December 2023 was
approximately RMB133.8 million (2022: RMB200.9 million), principally
denominated in Renminbi, representing a decrease by approximately
RMB67.1 million year-on-year. The Group recorded a net cash outflow
from operating activities of approximately RMB102.1 million (2022:
RMB177.9 million) and a net cash outflow from investing activities of
approximately RMB11.7 million (2022: net cash inflow from investing
activities RMB224.8 million) and a net cash inflow from financing activities
of approximately RMB42.1 million (2022: net cash outflow from financing
activities RMB58.8 million) for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group's borrowings, principally denominated in Renminbi, which
were outstanding as at 31 December 2023 amounted to approximately
RMB1,299.8 million (2022: RMB1,186.5 million). Bank borrowings
amounting to approximately RMB306.8 million (2022: RMB350.6 million)
and approximately RMB993.0 million (2022: RMB835.9 million) were
carried at floating interest rate and fixed interest rate respectively. A
total of approximately RMB1,036.8 million (2022: RMB879.4 million)
of the interest-bearing borrowings will fall due during the 12 months
after the end of the Review Period. There was no particular seasonality
of the Group’s borrowing requirements. Please refer to Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements for details on the maturity profile of the
Group's borrowings. The Group monitored capital using a gearing ratio,
which is total debt of the Group divided by total equity of the Group. Total
debt to equity ratio of the Group expressed as a percentage of interest
bearing borrowings over the total equity of approximately RMB1,086.1
million (2022: RMB1,069.3 million) was approximately 119.7% (2022:
111.0%) as at 31 December 2023. Bank deposits pledged for banking
facilities as at 31 December 2023 was approximately RMB709.1 million
(2022: RMB711.0 million).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s current ratio was approximately
1.1 times (2022: 1.1 times) based on current assets of approximately
RMB4,001.3 million (2022: RMB4,043.1 million) and current liabilities
of approximately RMB3,511.1 million (2022: RMB3,649.2 million).
Trade receivable turnover days were approximately 121 days for the
year ended 31 December 2023 as compared to approximately 124
days for the year ended 31 December 2022. Inventory turnover days
were approximately 43 days for the year ended 31 December 2023 as
compared to approximately 41 days for the year ended 31 December
2022. Trade payable turnover days were approximately 75 days for the
year ended 31 December 2023 as compared to approximately 79 days
for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Net Current Assets and Net Assets

The Group's net current assets as at 31 December 2023 was approximately
RMB490.2 million, representing an increase by approximately 24.4%
from the balance of approximately RMB393.9 million recorded as at 31
December 2022. Net assets as at 31 December 2023 was approximately
RMB1,086.1 million, representing an increase by approximately 1.6%
from the balance of approximately RMB1,069.3 million as at 31 December
2022.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2023, bank loans of approximately RMB1,299.8
million (2022: RMB1,186.5 million) were secured by the Group's assets.

Commitments

The Group’s capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2023
amounting to approximately RMB41.0 million (2022: RMB19.1 million)
was mainly attributed to acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, no provision for contingent liabilities was
required.

Capital Structure

During the Review Period, there had been no change in the share capital
of the Company.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

For the year 2023, the Group conducted its business transactions
principally in Renminbi. The Group has not experienced any material
difficulties or negative impacts on its operations as a result of fluctuations
in currency exchanges rates. Although the Group has certain bank
balances denominated in United States Dollars, Japanese Yen, Indian
Rupee and Hong Kong Dollars, their proportion to the Group's total assets
is insignificant. The Directors considered that no hedging of exchange
risk is required and no financial instruments, currency borrowings or
other hedging instruments were used for hedging purposes during the
Review Period. Nevertheless, the management will continue to monitor
the Group’s foreign exchange exposure and will take prudent measures
against currency exchange risks as and when it is appropriate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Significant Investment Held and Material Acquisition and
Disposal

Significant Investment Held

The Group did not hold any significant investment during the Review
Period.

Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries, Associates and
Joint Ventures

The Group did not make any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures during the Review Period.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any future plan for
material investments or capital assets for the coming year.

Employee, Remuneration Policies and Share Option Scheme

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 2,534 full-time employees
(2022: 3,023). The salaries of the Group’s employees were determined
by reference to the personal performance, professional qualification
and industry experience of the relevant employee and relevant market
trends. The Group ensures all levels of employees are paid according
to market standard and employees are rewarded on a performance-
related basis within the framework of the Group’s salary, incentives
and bonus scheme. The management reviews the remuneration policy
of the Group on a regular basis and evaluates the working performance
of the employees. The remuneration of the employees includes salaries,
allowances, year-end bonus and social insurance. In accordance with
the relevant prevailing laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group has
participated in the social insurance plans set up by the relevant local
government authorities, including pension funds, medical insurance
(including maternity insurance), unemployment insurance and work-
related injury insurance. The Group has also participated in the mandatory
provident fund scheme for its Hong Kong employees in accordance with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). The Company also adopted a share option scheme
on 17 June 2019 to reward eligible participants (including directors and
employees of the Group) for their contributions to the Group.

The emolument of Directors are recommended and approved by the
Remuneration Committee and the Board respectively, having regard to
the Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Feng Ming Zhu, aged 60, is an executive Director, the Chairman of
the Company and a member of the Corporate Governance Committee.
He is primarily responsible for the development of the Group’s strategy,
the management of the Group’s legal affairs, the management of the
Group's daily operations and monitoring the Group's internal control
procedures on a day-to-day basis. He joined the Group in March 2007
and successively served as the Director of Investment, the Director of
Administration and the General Manager of SMT Business Unit of the
Group, and was appointed as the Vice President of the Group in April
2013. Mr. Feng graduated from the Anhui University of Finance and
Economics in the PRC with a Bachelor’'s degree in Engineering, and
served as the Chairman of the Battery Technology Association of Fujian
Province, a Specialist of Fujian JingXin Think Tank Industry Research
and a member of the Steering Committee of the Master of Materials
Engineering of Fujian Normal University. As at 31 December 2023, Mr.
Feng did not have any interests in the shares of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Lian Xiu Qin, aged 52, is an executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. She is primarily responsible for the management
of the Group’s daily operations. She joined the Group in March 1998
and she has been the Deputy General Manager and the Division Head of
the first business division of Scud (Fujian) Electronics Company Limited
("Scud Electronics”) since January 2016 and July 2016 respectively,
responsible for managing the Group’s business with its major customers.
Previously, she held other key positions such as the Production Head and
Engineering Manager of Scud Electronics. Ms. Lian has over 20 years’
experience in engineering and manufacturing technologies. She was
awarded the honorary title “Second-term Outstanding Highly Skilled
Talent of Fuzhou” by the Human Resources and Social Security Bureau of
Fuzhou in May 2013. The polymer battery metal shell structure registered
by the State Intellectual Property Office of the PRC as a patent in the
name of Scud Electronics was invented by Ms. Lian and two other staff
of the Group. Publications by Ms. Lian on “Lithium Battery Production
Technologies” and “Electronic Products Assembly Process” are used as
teaching materials at the Fujian Scud Senior Technician Training School.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Lian is a qualified senior technician specialising in the production of
battery cells. She graduated from the Shenyang University of Technology
in July 1995 specialising in Applied Electronics Technology. She also
obtained an undergraduate qualification in Business English at the Fujian
Normal University in June 2009 and a part-time Master’'s degree in
Business Administration at the Seton Hall University of the United States
of America in 2021. Ms. Lian has completed professional training on
"Quantitative Methods in Process Improvement” (ISO 13053-1&2:2011)
published by the International Organisation for Standardisation and on
cost control management. As at 31 December 2023, Ms. Lian did not
have any interests in the shares of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO.

Ni Chen Hui, aged 37, is an executive Director and a member of the
Corporate Governance Committee. He is primarily responsible for the
planning and development of the Group’s strategy, financing, operating
and risk management. He joined the Group in June 2019 and successively
served as the assistant to the Chief Executive Officer of the Group,
the Director of the Group’s President Office, the executive director of
Scud Electronics and Scud Battery Co., Ltd.. Mr. Ni graduated from the
Yang-En University in 2009, majoring in financial management, with a
bachelor’s degree in management. Before joining the company in 2019,
he had more than 10 years of experience in the financial industry and
was familiar with national financial policies, financial instruments and
products, and investment and financing businesses. As at 31 December
2023, Mr. Ni did not have any interests in the shares of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Loke Yu, alias Loke Hoi Lam, aged 74, is a non-executive Director and
a member of the Corporate Governance Committee. He rejoined the
Group on 1 September 2020. Dr. Loke was an independent non-executive
Director and the Chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee from May 2009 to September
2018. Dr. Loke has over 40 years of experience in accounting and
auditing for private and public companies, financial consultancy and
corporate management. Dr. Loke is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute,
and a life member of the Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive
Directors Association. Dr. Loke obtained a degree of Master of Business
Administration from the Universiti Teknologi Malaysia in April 2001 and
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a degree of Doctor of Business Administration from the University of
South Australia in March 2006. Dr. Loke is currently an independent
non-executive director of the following companies, the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange: China Silver Technology Holdings
Limited (formerly known as TC Orient Lighting Holdings Limited) (stock
code: 515), Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited
(stock code: 3626), Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 2882), Matrix Holdings Limited (stock code: 1005), and
Zhenro Properties Group Limited (stock code: 6158). Mr. Heng Ja Wei
Victor, an independent non-executive Director, is his nephew-in-law.
Dr. Loke was also an independent non-executive director of Tianjin
Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 882) from 21 December
2012 to 21 June 2023, TradeGo FinTech Limited (stock code: 8017)
from 29 August 2018 to 8 February 2023, Crazy Sports Group Limited
(stock code: 82) from 17 May 2005 to 26 May 2022, Times Universal
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 2310) from to 18 April 2016 to 1
September 2022, Chiho Environmental Group Limited (stock code: 976)
from 23 June 2010 to 6 Dec 2021 and Zhong An Group Limited (stock
code: 672) from 30 June 2009 to 10 June 2021, the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange, and CIMC TianDa Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 445) from 1 August 2006 to 25 January 2021, the
shares of which was listed on the Stock Exchange. On 4 December 2023,
the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange issued an announcement
in which, among others, certain members and former members of the
board of Hong Kong Resources Holdings Limited (stock code: 2882)
were censured, details of which in respect of Dr. Loke are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 5 December 2023. As at 31 December
2023, Dr. Loke did not have any interests in the shares of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Heng Ja Wei Victor, aged 46, is an independent non-executive
Director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee and
Corporate Governance Committee. He joined the Group on
1 September 2016. Mr. Heng is a partner of Morison Heng, Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Heng holds a Bachelor of Engineering degree
in Electronic Engineering from the University of Warwick in the United
Kingdom and a Master of Science degree in Computer Science from the
Imperial College of Science, Technology and Medicine of the University
of London. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He holds a Certified Public Accountant (Practising)
certificate issued by the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council.
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Mr. Heng has served as an independent non-executive director of Best
Food Holding Company Limited (stock code: 1488) since May 2011, Lee
& Man Chemical Company Limited (stock code: 746) since June 2010,
Matrix Holdings Limited (stock code: 1005) since December 2012 and
TradeGo Fintech Limited (stock code: 8017) since February 2023 and as
the company secretary of China Life Insurance Company Limited (stock
code: 2628) since April 2013, the shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Heng has served as an independent non-executive
director of Bacui Technologies International Ltd (SGX stock code: YYB)
since June 2023, the shares of which is listed on the Singapore Stock
Exchange. Mr. Heng was also an independent non-executive director of
CIMC TianDa Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 445) from 4 March
2009 to 25 January 2021, the shares of which were listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Heng is a nephew-in-law of Dr. Loke Yu, a non-executive
Director. As at 31 December 2023, Mr. Heng did not have any interests
in the shares of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Lam Yau Yiu, alias Lam Yau Yiu Laurence, aged 60, is an independent
non-executive Director, the Chairman of the Corporate Governance
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. He joined the Group on 27
September 2018. Mr. Lam is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has about 32 years of experience
in auditing, accounting and corporate management. Mr. Lam has served
as an independent non-executive director of China New City Commercial
Development Limited (stock code: 1321) since February 2023, the shares
of which is listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also a non-executive
director of Bank of Asia (BVI) Limited since June 2021.

Mr. Lam holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration and a Master
of Science in Information Systems Management from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and a Bachelor of Accounting from
the City University of Hong Kong. He was the consultant to Chase Solar
Limited from January 2018 to December 2018 and he was the chief
financial officer and company secretary of Million Cities Development
Limited from January 2017 to July 2017. Mr. Lam was also the company
secretary of Crazy Sports Group Limited (stock code: 82) from February
2019 to December 2022 and he was the financial controller and the
company secretary of Zhong An Real Estate Limited (now known as Zhong
An Group Limited, stock code: 672) from October 2008 to December
2016, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. As at 31
December 2023, Mr. Lam did not have any interests in the shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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Cheung Wai Kwok Gary, aged 70, is an independent non-executive
Director, the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee. Mr. Cheung joined the Group on 19 May 2020.
Mr. Cheung holds a Bachelor’s degree of Arts in Business Administration
and a Bachelor’'s degree of Arts (Honours) in Economics from York
University in Canada and he has over 40 years of experience in the
financial services industry. Mr. Cheung was an executive director of Sun
Hung Kai & Co. Limited, the chief executive of the Hong Kong Securities
Institute, the chief executive officer of Tung Shing Securities (Brokers)
Limited (currently known as Sinopac Securities (Asia) Limited), the chief
executive officer of Investport (H.K.) Limited, the responsible officer of
YF Securities Company Limited, YF Futures Company Limited and YF
Asset Management Limited, and the chief executive officer of Blackwell
Global Investments (HK) Limited. Mr. Cheung also served as a committee
member of the banking and finance training board of the Vocational
Training Council of Hong Kong from April 2017 to March 2019. Mr.
Cheung has been the chief executive officer and the responsible officer
of Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 4 (advising on securities)
regulated activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO") of OnePlatform Securities
Limited since April 2018 and June 2018 respectively. Mr. Cheung is the
responsible officer of Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 4 (advising
on securities) regulated activities under the SFO and was the responsible
officer of Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts), Type 3 (leveraged foreign
exchange trading), Type 5 (advising on futures contracts), Type 6 (advising
on corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities
under the SFO of various other companies. Mr. Cheung was elected
as the chairman of the board of directors of the Hong Kong Securities
Association Limited in November 2017 and became its permanent
honourary president in September 2019, prior to which he was the
vice chairman of its board of directors from 2011 to 2015. Mr. Cheung
was a member of the Steering Committee of the Asian Financial Forum
2018 and has been the chief supervisor of East Asia Qianhai Securities
Limited since October 2017, a director of the board of the Financial
Dispute Resolution Centre from March 2018 to February 2024, a panel
member of the AntiMoney Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Review Tribunal of Hong Kong since April 2018 and a senior fellow
of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute since September
2014. Mr. Cheung is a member of the Academic and Accreditation
Advisory Committee of the Securities and Futures Commission since
April 2020. Mr. Cheung was an independent non-executive director of
Sang Hing Holdings (International) Limited (stock code: 1472) from 29
January 2020 to 1 September 2023 and was the executive director and
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the managing director of South China Financial Holdings Limited (stock
code: 619) from June 2009 to June 2011, the securities of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange. As at 31 December 2023, Mr. Cheung did
not have any interests in the shares of the Company within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA, CPA), aged 47, is the Company Secretary
of the Company. He is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group and
is responsible for its overall financial and accounting affairs. He is a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Prior to joining the Group in September 2005, Mr. Yeung worked as
an auditor in an international accounting firm. He has more than 20
years' experience in the accounting field. He holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Business Administration and Accounting.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Veson Holdings
Limited (the “Company"” and, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
presents its annual report and audited consolidated financial statements
for the financial year from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023
("Review Period”).

The discussions in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion
and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” sections of this
annual report form part of the discussions of this directors’ report.

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance
and community investment can be found in the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” of the Company.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its major subsidiaries are set out in Note 1 and Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 85.

The Board has decided not to recommend any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2023 to preserve cash for the working capital
requirement of the business of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the Review period in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the Review period in the share capital
are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
December 2023 comprised retained earnings, other reserves and share
premium of approximately RMB983.9 million (2022: RMB962.6 million).
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the Review Period and up to the date of this report
were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Feng Ming Zhu (Chairman)
Lian Xiu Qin (Chief Executive Officer)
Ni Chen Hui (appointed on 9 October 2023)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
Loke Yu

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Heng Ja Wei Victor
Lam Yau Yiu
Cheung Wai Kwok Gary

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 9 October
2023, Mr. Ni Chen Hui has been appointed as an executive Director and
a member of the Corporate Governance Committee with effect from
9 October 2023. Mr. Ni Chen Hui obtained legal advice from a firm of
solicitors on 9 October 2023 and has confirmed that he understood his
obligations as a Director of the Company.

In accordance with Article 83(3), Mr. Ni Chen Hui will retire and, being
eligible, offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

According to Article 84(1) of the articles of association of the Company,
at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, Ms. Lian
Xiu Qin and Dr. Loke Yu will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with Article 84(1) of the articles
of association of the Company. Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, Ms. Lian Xiu Qin
and Dr. Loke Yu all being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. There are
no service contracts or appointment letters of any of the Directors who
are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
which are not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Update on Directors’ Information under Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules are set out below:
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Dr. Loke Yu retired as an independent non-executive director of TradeGo
FinTech Limited (Stock Code: 8017) on 8 February 2023 and resigned as
an independent non-executive director of Tianjin Development Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 882) on 21 June 2023.

Mr. Lam Yau Yiu was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of China New City Commercial Development Limited (Stock Code: 1321)
on 17 February 2023.

Mr. Heng Ja Wei was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of TradeGo Fintech Limited (Stock Code: 8017) on 7 February
2023 and appointed as an independent non-executive director of Bacui
Technologies International Ltd (SGX Stock Code: YYB) on 30 June 2023.

Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok resigned as the independent non-executive
director of Sang Hing Holdings (International) Limited (Stock Code: 1472)
on 1 September 2023.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO") as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution passed on 17 June 2019 for the
purpose of rewarding eligible participants who have contributed or will
contribute to the Group and encouraging eligible participants to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of Company and its shareholders as a whole. Eligible participants
include directors and employees of the Group and any advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners, promoters or service
providers of any member of the Group who the board of directors of
the Company considers to have contributed or will contribute to the
Group. Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible employees, including directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. The Scheme
was adopted for a period of 10 years expiring on 16 June 2029 and
the Company by ordinary resolution in general meeting or the board of
directors of the Company may at any time terminate the Scheme without
prejudice to the options granted during the life of the Scheme and which
remain unexpired immediately prior to such termination.
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The number of shares in respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the Scheme was Nil as at 1 January 2023
and 31 December 2023. No options have been granted under the Scheme
since the adoption of the Scheme and during the Review Period. The
total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the Scheme without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders
shall not exceed 109,000,124 shares, representing approximately 10%
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
this annual report. The number of options available for grant under the
Scheme as at 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 is 109,000,124.
The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options
granted and may be granted to any individual in any 12-month period
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders shall not exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue for the time being. The number
of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted
and may be granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive Director or any of their respective associates representing in
aggregate over 0.1% the Company’s share capital on the date of such
grant or with an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be
approved in advance by resolution of the Company’s shareholders (voting
by way of poll). Subject to the terms of the Scheme, an offer of grant of
an option will remain open for acceptance by the eligible participant for
28 days from the date of the offer. Upon the acceptance of the offer,
a consideration of HK$1 for the grant of the option is payable and the
relevant option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during the exercise period to be determined by the
Board, which shall not exceed 10 years. The Board may with respect to
each grant of options, determine the minimum period, if any, for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised. The exercise price of
the options shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion
but will in any event not be less than the higher of:—

(1) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of an
offer of an option by the Company (which must be a business day);

(2) the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
5 business days immediately preceding the date of the offer of an
option; and

(3) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Options”, at no time
during the Review Period or at the end of the Review Period was
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2023, the following persons (other than the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions (ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued
share capital of the Company)

Name of shareholder Capacity and nature of interest

REREE SO RERNEE

Swift Joy Holdings Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner
AARERERAT (FE2) EnEAA

Right Grand Holdings Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner

ERERBRAR (MEE2) BmERA
Fang Jin (Note 3) Interest in controlled corporations
e (FIFE3) REAE

Note 1:  We have applied the number of shares of the Company in
issue as at 31 December 2023, i.e. 1,090,001,246 shares,
when calculating this percentage.

Note 2:  Each of Swift Joy Holdings Limited and Right Grand
Holdings Limited was a private company directly wholly-
owned by Mr. Fang Jin.

Note 3:  Among 552,338,000 shares, (i) 423,770,000 shares were
owned by Swift Joy Holdings Limited and 128,568,000
shares were owned by Right Grand Holdings Limited (see
also Note 2 above).
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report on the corporate governance practice adopted by the Company
is set out on pages 52 to 77 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the total remuneration of the
Directors and the five highest paid employees are set out in Note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE, NOMINATION COMMITTEE,
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”),
a nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”), a remuneration
committee (“Remuneration Committee”) and a corporate governance
committee (“Corporate Governance Committee”).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in considering
how the Board should apply financial reporting principles and for
maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Company’s independent
auditor. As at 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee consisted of
three members who were Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor (Chairman), Mr. Lam
Yau Yiu and Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Nomination Committee is to identify, screen and
recommend to the Board appropriate candidates to serve as Directors,
to oversee the process for evaluating the performance of the Board and
to develop, recommend to the Board and monitor nomination guidelines
for the Company. As at 31 December 2023, the Nomination Committee
consisted of three members who were Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary
(Chairman), Mr. Lam Yau Yiu and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board in
determining the policy and structure for the remuneration of executive
Directors, evaluating the performance of executive Directors, reviewing
incentive schemes and Directors’ service contracts and fixing the
remuneration packages for all Directors and senior management. As at
31 December 2023, the Remuneration Committee consisted of three
members who were Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor (Chairman), Mr. Lam Yau
Yiu and Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Corporate Governance Committee is to assist the
Board in considering how the Board should apply risk management
and internal control principles, performing the corporate governance
duties and ensuring the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Listing Rules”). As at 31 December 2023, the Corporate Governance
Committee comprised three independent non-executive Directors namely
Mr. Lam Yau Yiu (Chairman), Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary and Mr. Heng
Ja Wei Victor, one non-executive Director namely Dr. Loke Yu and two
executive Directors namely Mr. Feng Ming Zhu and Mr. Ni Chen Hui.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
its existing shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the top five customers and the largest customer of the Group
represented approximately 81.0% and approximately 23.2% of the
Group’s total sales revenue of the Review Period, respectively. Purchase
from the top five suppliers and the largest supplier of the Group
represented approximately 66.3% and approximately 31.1% of the
Group's total purchases of the Review Period, respectively.

At no time during the Review Period did a Director, a close associate of
a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which, to the knowledge
of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares
of the Company) has any interest in the top five customers or suppliers
of the Group.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to article 164 of the articles of association of the Company,
every Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he/she shall or may incur or sustain
by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of his/her duties in his/her offices or trusts provided that
this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to the relevant Director. Such permitted
indemnity provision was in force during the Review Period and remained
in force as at the date of this report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Period, the Group had the following connected
transactions, certain details of which are set out below in compliance
with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in relation
to such transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The name of, and the relationship with, the parties connected with the
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Company are as follows:

Name

=1

Fang Jin ("Mr. Fang”)
Fe(AEED

Fang Ying
("Ms. Fang Ying")
e 8Lt ])

Fang Yubin
("Mr. Fang Yubin”)
FEETHAEERED

Scud Battery
REBEM

Scud Electronics
MERET

Scud Energy Technology
ARERRGEIREHR

Relationship
2EES

A controlling shareholder of the Company

AR REERR

The daughter of Mr. Fang, who owns Nil (2022: 10%) of Scud Energy Technology
FEEZ R - WEEBREREREHL (20224 1 10%)

The son of Mr. Fang, who owns approximately 80.04% (2022: 88.61%) of Scud Power
Technology

FREZR T BERERS HEHEA80.04% (20224 : 88.61%)

Scud Battery Co., Ltd., an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
REBREMERAF - AR ZHEZEWNBE QA

Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd., an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

RER (B2) EFERAR  ARRZHEAEZENE QR

Scud Energy Technology Co., Ltd., a limited liability company established in the PRC, which
is owned as to approximately 99.9% (2022: 90%) by Mr. Fang and Nil (2022:10%) by
Ms. Fang Ying

REBRREREHE AR AT - RPBIKMBR AT - B LEEBX99.9% (20224 : 90%)
N7EL W EER (20224 : 10%)
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Name Relationship
=1 2EES

Scud Power Technology

Fujian Scud Power Technology Co., Ltd., a limited liability company established in the PRC,
which is owned as to approximately 80.04% (2022: 88.61%) by Mr. Fang Yubin

BEREBBAMEERAR - RAERINBRLR] - B FBEEEFH80.04%

Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., a company in which Mr. Fang held 70% (2022: 70%)
shareholding interest and the remaining 25% (2022: 25%) and 5% (2022: 5%)

shareholding interest were held by Mr. Lin Chao (“Mr.Lin”) and Ms. Bian Zhen (“Ms.
Bian”), both third parties independent of the Company and its connected persons,

BERERIRMDAR AR » HEAHEAET70% (202249 : 70% )IXHE  F£225% (20224 :
25%) K 5% (20224 : 5% ) BES BIBEMBEE(TMEE DR TELZE ([T DEHE -

RERRE) HRHL
(20224 : 88.61%)
Scud Stock
REBRMD
respectively
ZANERBYRAR R REEEATHNE =R
() Continuing Connected Transactions

(A)

38

Lease agreements with Scud Stock (2023)

On 30 December 2022, Scud Electronics (as lessee) and Scud Stock
(as lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “First 2023 Lease
Agreement”) to renew the lease of certain premises owned by
Scud Stock.

Under the First 2023 Lease Agreement, Scud Stock agreed to lease
to Scud Electronics the premises (the “First 2023 Lease Premises”)
located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2, Kuai An Extension Area,
Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC comprising:

(i)  rental area of approximately 31,155 square metres in 4 blocks
of factories with a total construction area of approximately
40,627.68 square metres;

(i) rental area of approximately 7,826 square metres in 1 office
building with a total construction area of approximately
13,268.80 square metres; and

(iii) rental area of approximately 11,250 square metres in
1 warehouse building with a total construction area of
approximately 11,250 square metres.

The First 2023 Lease Premises were leased for use as factory, office
for administration use for the Group and warehouse for storage
of stocks.
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The term of lease was from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023.
The annual rental under the First 2023 Lease Agreement was
RMB10,361,765.64. The rentals were payable in cash on a monthly
basis.

On 30 December 2022, Scud Battery (as lessee) and Scud Stock (as
lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “Second 2023 Lease
Agreement”) to renew the lease of certain premises owned by
Scud Stock.

Under the Second 2023 Lease Agreement, Scud Stock agreed
to lease to Scud Battery the premises (the “Second 2023 Lease
Premises”) located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2, Kuai An
Extension Area, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC
comprising rental area of approximately 1,949 square metres in
1 office building with a total construction area of approximately
13,268.80 square metres. The Second 2023 Lease Premises were
leased for use as office for administration use for the Group.

The term of lease was from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023.
The annual rental under the Second 2023 Lease Agreement was
RMB668,228.52. The rentals were payable in cash on a monthly
basis.

Accordingly, the aggregate annual rental for the year ended 31
December 2023 payable by Scud Electronics and Scud Battery to
Scud Stock under the First 2023 Lease Agreement and the Second
2023 Lease Agreement was RMB11,029,994.16 (being the sum of
RMB10,361,765.64 and RMB668,228.52).

Further details of the First 2023 Lease Agreement and the Second
2023 Lease Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 30 December 2022.

As at 30 December 2022, Scud Stock was owned as to 70%
by Mr. Fang, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Scud
Stock is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules and accordingly, the above transactions constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company. Based on
information available to the Company, Mr. Lin and Ms. Bian hold
the remaining equity interests as to 25% and 5% respectively. To
the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having
made all reasonable enquiry, Mr. Lin and Ms. Bian are third parties
independent of the Company and its connected persons.
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The details on annual caps for the aggregate rental payable by REMEFRRERSMBEE —1H20231HE
Scud Electronics and Scud Battery to Scud Stock under the First WM E —H2023 M EHEERRERE G
2023 Lease Agreement and the Second 2023 Lease Agreement NES@E s FE FROFBET

are as follows:

RMB
AR

Annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2023 BE2023F 128318 LFEZFE LR 11,029,994.16

The actual rental amounts paid for the above continuing BZE2023F12A31B 1ELFE - FlERER

connected transactions for the year ended 31 December 2023 SMERCSNEE/ARK11,029,994.167T °

was RMB11,029,994.16.

Lease agreement with Scud Stock (2024) (B) EERERRMRDET LA EHZE(20245F)

On 29 December 2023, Scud Electronics (as lessee) and Scud MR2023F 128298 * REMET(HEAEEA)

Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “2024 Lease HRERR A ((ERHBA) I~ HE R

Agreement”) to renew the lease of certain premises owned by ([2024M & W% 1) - EFRERRNPIES

Scud Stock. ETWEZEL -

Under the 2024 Lease Agreement, Scud Stock agreed to lease to RIE20247E E % - RERBKRORBMMRER

Scud Electronics the premises (the “2024 Lease Premises”) located BFHEMLAPERREE RN SERRLTE

atland lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2, Kuai An Extension Area, Mawei (& 5539-25% [ 5544-25R H b R 2 W 2 (12024

District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC comprising: HEWE]D B

(i) rental area of approximately 31,155 square metres in 4 blocks (i) MHEBEAR31,155FTTK - IRRZEE
of factories with a total construction area of approximately EE# 540,627 .68F KB MRS A :
40,627.68 square metres;

(i) rental area of approximately 7,040 square metres in 1 office (i) HEMELRT7,040F 77K » IR BEE
building with a total construction area of approximately EEXR12,852.26F F KK —EHAK
12,852.26 square metres; and R Rk

(i) rental area of approximately 11,250 square metres in (i) HEEBEREAS/1,2505F 7K - IR AEREE
1 warehouse building with a total construction area of EEA/11,331.92F T KN —BERA KX
approximately 11,331.92 square metres. BR-

The 2024 Lease Premises were leased for use as factory, office CHEM2024HEYRZRAIERAREZME

for administration use for the Group and warehouse for storage TBERREREYREZER

of stocks.



The term of lease is from 1 January 2024 to 31 December
2024. The annual rental under the 2024 Lease Agreement is
RMB10,092,279.96. The rentals are payable in cash on a monthly
basis.

Further details of the 2024 Lease Agreement are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 29 December 2023.

As at 29 December 2023, Scud Stock was owned as to 70%
by Mr. Fang, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Scud
Stock is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules and accordingly, the above transactions constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company. Based on
information available to the Company, Mr. Lin and Ms. Bian hold
the remaining equity interests as to 25% and 5% respectively. To
the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having
made all reasonable enquiry, Mr. Lin and Ms. Bian are third parties
independent of the Company and its connected persons.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

B HI IR B2024%1 818 £2024%12 831
He RE2024B EWiz FHEABARKE
10,092,279.967T ° G MUIBEIZ AT ©

2024 ERE2E—DHIBERARRIHEA
2023F12A29B 2 A& -

2023512290 - REMKRG AR AT 2%
BRAR B 5 A T0% R o RERRKH K
BEETRNARNAR ZEEALT - Bt Ll
RGBRARRZFHEBERS o BREBEAQF
AESZER  MEERTREDRIEEET
25%R5%EE - BEZEL -5 EERE
Fisn - B RATE  MEERTZETRBIRN
RRBREBEATZE=F -

41



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

(9

42

The details on annual caps for the rental payable by Scud Electronics
to Scud Stock under the 2024 Lease Agreement are as follows:

Annual cap for the year ending 31 December 2024

The rentals are payable commencing 1 January 2024 as the term of
lease is from 1 January 2024.

Lease agreement with Scud Stock (2023)

On 30 December 2022, Scud Battery (as lessor) entered into a
lease agreement with Scud Stock (as lessee) to renew the lease
of certain premises owned by Scud Battery (“the “Scud Battery
Premises 2023") to Scud Stock for the period commenced from
1 January 2023 and ended on 31 December 2023 (the “Lease
Agreement (2023)").

Under the Lease Agreement (2023), Scud Battery agreed to lease
to Scud Stock the Scud Battery Premises 2023 located at No. 135,
Rujiangdong Road, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC
comprising:

(i)  rental area of approximately 17,193 square metres in 1 factory
building with a total construction area of approximately 26,665
square metres; and

(i)  rental area of approximately 8,450 square metres in 1 warehouse
building with a total construction area of approximately 8,450
square metres.

The Scud Battery Premises 2023 were leased for use as manufacturing
facility.

The term of lease was from 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2023. The annual rental under the Lease Agreement (2023) was
RMB4,689,005.76. The rentals were payable in cash on a monthly
basis.
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Further details of the Lease Agreement (2023) are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 30 December 2022.

As at 30 December 2022, Scud Stock was owned as to 70% by
Mr. Fang, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Scud Stock
is therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules and accordingly, the lease under the Lease Agreement (2023)
constitutes a continuing connected transaction of the Company.
Based on information available to the Company, Mr. Lin and
Ms. Bian hold the remaining equity interests as to 25% and 5%
respectively. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief having made all reasonable enquiry, Mr. Lin and Ms. Bian
are third parties independent of the Company and its connected

persons.

The annual cap for the aggregate rental payable by Scud Stock to
Scud Battery under the Lease Agreement (2023) for the year ended
31 December 2023 was RMB4,689,005.76.

The actual rental amount paid for the above continuing
connected transaction for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
RMB4,689,005.76.

Lease agreement with Scud Stock (2024)

On 29 December 2023, Scud Battery (as lessor) entered into a
lease agreement with Scud Stock (as lessee) to renew the lease of
certain premises owned by Scud Battery (the “Scud Battery Premises
2024") to Scud Stock for the period from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2024 (the “Lease Agreement (2024)").

Under the Lease Agreement (2024), Scud Battery agreed to lease
to Scud Stock the Scud Battery Premises 2024 located at No. 135,
Rujiangdong Road, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

comprising:

(i)  rental area of approximately 29,600 square metres in 3 blocks
of factories and 1 warehouse building with a total construction
area of approximately 93,313.27 square metres; and

(i) rental area of approximately 2,597.2 square metres in 1 office
building with a total construction area of approximately 3,603.68

square metres.

(D)
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The Scud Battery Premises 2024 were leased for use as factory, office
for administration and warehouse for storage of stocks.

The term of lease is from 1 January 2024 to 31 December
2024. The annual rental under the Lease Agreement (2024) is
RMB7,479,760.92. The rentals are payable in cash on a monthly
basis.

Further details of the Lease Agreement (2024) are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 29 December 2023.

As at 29 December 2023, Scud Stock was owned as to 70% by
Mr. Fang, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Scud Stock
is therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules and accordingly, the lease under the Lease Agreement (2024)
constituted a continuing connected transaction of the Company.
Based on information available to the Company, Mr. Lin and
Ms. Bian hold the remaining equity interests as to 25% and 5%
respectively. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief having made all reasonable enquiry, Mr. Lin and Ms. Bian
are third parties independent of the Company and its connected
persons.

The annual cap for the aggregate rental payable by Scud Stock to
Scud Battery under the Lease Agreement (2024) for the year ending
31 December 2024 is RMB7,479,760.92.

The rentals are payable commencing 1 January 2024 as the term of
lease is from 1 January 2024.

Processing Framework Agreement with Scud Power
Technology and Scud Energy Technology

On 25 November 2021, Scud Battery entered into the processing
framework agreement (“Processing Framework Agreement”) with
Scud Power Technology and Scud Energy Technology, pursuant
to which Scud Battery has conditionally agreed to provide the
processing services for printed circuit boards (“Processing Services”)
to Scud Power Technology and Scud Energy Technology for a term
of three years commencing from the first day of the calendar
month immediately following the date on which the independent
shareholders approval relating to the Processing Framework
Agreement and the proposed annual caps having been obtained
pursuant to the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The proposed resolution set out in the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held to consider and approve the
Processing Framework Agreement and the proposed annual caps
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(the "EGM") notice dated 14 December 2021 was duly passed by
the shareholders of the Company as an ordinary resolution by way
of poll at the EGM held on 31 December 2021.

A summary of the principal terms of the Processing Framework
Agreement is set out below.

Date:

Parties:

Duration:

Processing Services:

Processing Fee:

25 November 2021

(i)  Scud Battery, as the provider of the
Processing Services

(i) Scud Power Technology and Scud Energy
Technology, as the receivers of the
Processing Services

Three years commencing from the first day
of the calendar month immediately following
the date on which the requirements under the
Listing Rules that are relevant to the Processing
Framework Agreement having been complied
with, and such term may be extended by the
parties’ mutual agreement subject to compliance
with applicable Listing Rules at the time.

Scud Battery shall provide the Processing Services
to Scud Power Technology and Scud Energy
Technology by processing printed circuit boards
through applying surface mount technology,
manual plug-ins and conducting product tests,
depending on specific requirements and designs
specified in purchase orders to be placed by
Scud Power Technology and Scud Energy
Technology and to be agreed by Scud Battery.

Within three (3) working days after Scud Power
Technology or Scud Energy Technology places
a purchase order, Scud Battery shall provide
a fee quote for Scud Power Technology’s or
Scud Energy Technology’s confirmation, which
shall be signed by the relevant parties. The
processing fee (“Processing Fee”) shall, depend
on the size of the purchase orders be as follows:
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(ii)

(iii)

for orders of one thousand and one (1,001)
or more pieces of processed products:

(@) RMBO0.01 (excluding tax) per point
will be charged for applying surface
mount technology;

(b) RMB30 (excluding tax) per hour will
be charged for manual plug-ins; and

() RMB30 (excluding tax) per hour will
be charged for conducting product
testing;

for orders of between two hundred and
one (201) and one thousand (1,000)
pieces of processed products:

(@) RMBO0.02 (excluding tax) per point
will be charged for applying surface
mount technology;

(b) RMBG60 (excluding tax) per hour will
be charged for manual plug-ins; and

() RMBG60 (excluding tax) per hour will
be charged for conducting product
testing;

for orders of two hundred (200) or
less pieces of processed products, the
Processing Fee will not be calculated based
on the number of processed products, and
will be a one-time charge of RMB1,740
per order.

The Processing Fee was determined after arm’s length negotiation
between Scud Battery, Scud Power Technology and Scud Energy
Technology with reference to Processing Fee charged by Scud
Battery to clients which are independent third parties.
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The details on annual caps for the maximum Processing Fee payable
by Scud Power Technology and Scud Energy Technology to Scud
Battery under the Processing Framework Agreement are as follows:

Maximum Processing Fee payable for the year

Further details of the Processing Framework Agreement are set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 25 November 2021 and
the circular dated 14 December 2021.

As at 25 November 2021, Scud Power Technology is owned as
to approximately 93.95% by Mr. Fang Yubin, who is the son
of Mr. Fang, the controlling shareholder of the Company, and
Scud Energy Technology is owned as to approximately 90% by
Mr. Fang and approximately 10% by Ms. Fang Ying, who is the
daughter of Mr. Fang. Scud Power Technology and Scud Energy
Technology are therefore connected persons of the Company under
the Listing Rules and accordingly, the Processing Services under
the Processing Framework Agreement constitutes a continuing
connected transaction of the Company.

The annual cap for the processing fee payable by Scud Power
Technology to Scud Battery under the Processing Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
RMB40,000,000.

The actual processing fee paid for the above continuing
connected transaction for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
RMB13,021,825.21.
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(II) Connected Transactions

Further details of the transactions and relationships of the connected
parties are also set out in Note 23 and 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions set out above and have confirmed that, during the
year ended 31 December 2023, such transactions have been entered into:

(1

(except for the Lease Agreement (2023) and, the Lease Agreement
(2024) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms or better; and
according to the relevant agreements governing such transactions

on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The independent auditor of the Company has also confirmed that in
relation to the above continuing connected transactions:

(1

48

nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that such
transactions have not been approved by the Board;

for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group;

nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that
such transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that such
transactions have exceeded the relevant annual cap as set by the
Company.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Period, the Group entered into certain transactions
with parties regarded as “related parties” under the applicable
accounting principles. Details of the related party transactions are set out
in Note 23 and 37 to the consolidated financial statements. The related
party transactions which are also non-exempted continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are disclosed in the
section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” above.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” above and in Note 23 and 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other contracts of significance between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries and no other contracts of significance for the provision
of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during
the Review Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors were interested in any business apart from the
business of the Group, which competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Review
Period and up to the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Director or entity connected with a Director (within the meaning
of section 486 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong)) had any direct or indirect material interests in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company, its subsidiaries, its holding company or its fellow subsidiaries
was a party entered into during, or subsisting during or at the end of,
the Review Period.
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PENSION SCHEME

The Company participates in a mandatory provident fund scheme,
which is registered under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”), for all its employees in
Hong Kong. The scheme is a defined contribution scheme and is funded
by contributions from employer and employees in accordance with the
provisions of the MPF Ordinance. No forfeited contributions (by employers
on behalf of employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
such contributions) may be used by the employer to reduce the existing
level of contributions.

Furthermore, the employees of the Group in the PRC are members
of state-managed defined contribution retirement benefits schemes
operated by the local governments. The employers and the employees
are obliged to make contributions at a certain percentage of the payroll
under the rules of the schemes.

Details of the pension scheme contributions of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 are set out in Note 4(n) to the consolidated

financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group was entered into
or existed during the Review Period.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group values its employees and provides competitive remuneration
package to attract and motivate its employees. The Group regularly
reviews the remuneration package of its employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to market standard. The Group also provides
regular training to its employees for their career development.

The Group values the views and opinions of its customers and regularly
communicates with them in order to obtain feedback and opinions and
understand their business needs and demands.

The Group has developed long-term and good relationships with its
suppliers. The relevant departments of the Group work closely together
to ensure that the procurement process is conducted in an open, fair
and just manner.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there was no material non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group which
had a significant impact on the business and operations of the Group
during the Review Period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Review
Period.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his or her independence pursuant to rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, and the Company considers such independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board

FENG MING ZHU
Chairman

28 March 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

Veson Holdings Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are committed to maintaining and ensuring a high level
of corporate governance standards and continuously review and improve
the Group’s corporate governance and internal control practices. Save
as otherwise specified, set out below are the principles of corporate
governance as adopted by the Company during the financial year from 1
January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (the “Review Period”). The Company
has adopted the code provisions set out in Part 2 of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance Code”) in Appendix C1
of The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”). The Company complied with
all the applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
during the Review Period.

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER (“CEO")

During the Review Period, Mr. Feng Ming Zhu served as the Chairman
(the “Chairman”) since 19 May 2020. The Chairman is responsible
for leading the Board in protecting the interest of the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) as a whole and for overseeing the
Group, whilst Ms. Lian Xiu Qin served as the Chief Executive Officer
(“CEO") of the Company and is responsible for managing the overall
business operations of the Group, proposing strategies to the Board and
monitoring the effective implementation of the strategies and policies
adopted by the Board.

Save for their business relationships as a result of their respective
directorships and positions in the Group, there are no financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships between Mr. Feng Ming
Zhu and Ms. Lian Xiu Qin.

THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2023, there were seven members on the Board,
which comprised of three executive Directors, one non-executive Director
("NED") and three independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"), whose
names are shown in the table on page 63. The INEDs are considered
by the Board to be independent of the management and free of any
relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of their
independent judgments. The Board considered that each of the INEDs
brings his own relevant expertise to the Board and its deliberations.
The term of appointment of Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, Mr. Cheung Wai
Kwok Gary and Mr. Lam Yau Yiu, the INEDs, commenced on 25 May
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2023 and will end on the earlier of 24 May 2024 and the date of
the annual general meeting to be held by the Company in 2024. All
appointment letters of the INEDs can be terminated by the Company
or the INED giving at least 3 months’ prior written notice. Each of the
INEDs confirmed their respective independence to the Group. The term
of appointment of Dr. Loke Yu, the NED commenced on 25 May 2023
and will end on the earlier of 24 May 2024 and the date of the annual
general meeting to be held by the Company in 2024. The appointment
letter of the NED can be terminated by the Company or the NED giving
at least 3 months’ prior written notice. Save for the Directors’ business
relationships as a result of their respective directorships and positions
in the Group and save that Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor is a nephew-in-law
of Dr. Loke Yu, there are no financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationships among members of the Board and they are
independent from each other.

The Board met regularly during the Review Period on an ad hoc basis as
required by business needs. The Board’s primary purpose is to set and
review the overall strategic development of the Group and to oversee
the achievement of its business plans to enhance Shareholders’ value
as a whole. Daily operational decisions are delegated to the executive
Directors and the senior management. Management is entrusted with
the task of implementing and executing business plans set by the Board.
Such Board meetings involved the active participation, either in person
or through other electronic means of communication, of the Directors.
During the Review Period, the Board met 7 times and the Directors’
attendance record is shown in the table on page 63. In advance of the
Board meetings, appropriate notices, meeting agenda and other relevant
information were given to all Directors. All Directors were consulted to
include additional matters (if any) in the agenda for Board meetings.
Draft and final versions of the Board meeting minutes were sent to all
Directors for their comment and record respectively. The original minutes
of Board meetings are kept by the company secretary of the Company
and such minutes are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable prior notice by any Director. The Company has put in place
appropriate insurance cover in respect of Directors’ liability.

The Company’s overall management is vested in its Board, which accepts
that it is ultimately accountable and responsible for the performance
and affairs of the Group. The Board's role is to provide entrepreneurial
leadership, set the Company’s strategic aims and the Company’s values
and standards, and to ensure that its obligations to its stakeholders
and others are understood and met. To facilitate the operations, the
Board has established a schedule of matters reserved for its approval.
The specific responsibilities reserved for the Board include (1) setting
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the Group's strategies and dividend policy; (2) reviewing operational
and financial performance; (3) approving major investments and
divestments; (4) reviewing risk management and internal control system
of the Group; (5) ensuring appropriate management development and
succession plans are in place; (6) approving appointments of Directors
and other senior executives; (7) approving corporate social responsibility
policies; (8) ensuring effective communication with Shareholders and
(9) other significant operational and financial matters. The day-to-day
management, administration and operation of the Group are delegated
to the management.

DIRECTORS’" TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company. Directors are continually provided with updates to regulatory
and governance developments. The Company provides all members of
the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s performance, position
and prospects. Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development courses and seminars to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills, including updates to laws and regulations
applicable to the Company and its Directors as well as any amendments
thereto. During the Review Period, the Company provided regular
updates to the Directors on material changes to regulatory requirements
applicable to the Directors and the Company and on the latest business
development of the Group on a timely basis. Mr. Feng Ming Zhu, Ms.
Lian Xiu Qin, Mr. Ni Chen Hui, Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, Mr.
Lam Yau Yiu and Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary confirmed that they have
complied with code provision C.1.4 of the Corporate Governance Code
in relation to continuous professional development. During the Review
Period, all of the Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars, e-seminars, in-house briefing and
reading materials to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in
areas related to their roles, functions and duties of Directors such as
corporate governance and regulatory updates. In addition, during the
Review Period, Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, Mr. Lam Yau Yiu
and Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary attended various directors’ training
seminars and e-seminars arranged by various organisations including
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. On a continuing basis, Directors are encouraged
to keep up to date on all matters relevant to the Group and attend
briefings and seminars as appropriate.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference as suggested under the
code provisions and recommended best practices under the Corporate
Governance Code and adopted with reference to “A Guide for Effective
Audit Committees” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in February 2002. As at 31 December 2023, the
Audit Committee comprised three INEDs, namely Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor,
Mr. Lam Yau Yiu and Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary, and the chairman
of the Audit Committee was Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor. Each committee
member can bring to the Audit Committee his valuable experience in
reviewing financial statements and evaluating significant control and
financial issues of the Group, who among themselves possess a wealth
of management experience in the accounting profession or commercial
sectors. The Audit Committee was established on 3 December 2006 and
held 3 meetings during the Review Period. The committee members’
attendance is shown on page 63.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(i) to review the half-year and annual financial statements of the
Group before they are submitted to the Board for approval;

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor,
and any questions of its resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

(iii) to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

(iv) to review the Company’s financial controls;

(v) to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

(vi) to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit
function;

(vii) to review the arrangements which the employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters; and
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(viii) to review the terms and conditions of ongoing connected
transactions of the Group.

During the Review Period, the Audit Committee carried out its duties
as set out above, including reviewing certain financial information of
the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and held 2 meetings during the
Review Period. The committee members’ attendance is shown on page
63. As at 31 December 2023, the Remuneration Committee comprised
three INEDs, namely Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, Mr. Lam Yau Yiu and Mr.
Cheung Wai Kwok Gary. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee
was Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor. Its main duties are summarised as follows:

(i)  to make recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing such remuneration policies, and to determine, with
delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of all individual
executive Directors and senior management;

(i)  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

(iii) to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved
in deciding his/her own remuneration;

(iv) to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules; and

(v) to advise Shareholders on how to vote in respect of any
service contract or appointment letter of Directors that requires

Shareholders’ approval in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The work done by the Remuneration Committee during the Review
Period included the above and the following:

(i)  determining the policy for the remuneration of executive Directors;
(i) assessing performance of executive Directors; and

(iii) approving the terms of executive Directors’ service contracts.
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Details of the amount of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in Note
11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, the
remuneration payable to member of the senior management by band
for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out below:

In the band of

AN e S/
TRERRE
BREEMS BN FEHN RS M REMEN -

IRIB (2B A F B2 FRIMSTEE 56 - B1E2023
FANBLFE BREREBREZHHA TN
TR -

Number of individual(s)

5B 48 B AE

Nil to RMB901,100 =z AR®901,1007T 2
(equivalent to Nil to HKD1,000,000) (FEEMNEZ1,000,000/%7T)

RMB2,252,751 to RMB2,703,300 AR#2,252,751 0% ARE2,703,3007T 1

(equivalent to HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and held 2 meetings during the
Review Period. The committee members’ attendance is shown on page
63. As at 31 December 2023, the Nomination Committee comprised
three INEDs, namely Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary, Mr. Lam Yau Yiu and
Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor. The chairman of the Nomination Committee
was Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary. The Nomination Committee selects
and recommends appropriate candidates based on the candidates’
prior experience and qualifications to the Board on the appointment of
Directors. The main duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural background, educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and/or
length of service) of the Board on a regular basis and to make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes;

(i) to develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the qualifications
of and evaluating candidates for directorship;

(iii) to identify individuals who are suitably qualified to become a Board
member and to select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships having
regard to each candidate’s merit against an objective criteria and
the benefits of diversity of the Board;

(iv) to assess the independence of independent non-executive directors
to determine their eligibility;
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(v) to review and assess the adequacy of the corporate governance
guidelines of the Company and to recommend any proposed
changes to the Board for approval; and

(vi) have regard to the Company’s policy concerning diversity of
Board members (“Board Diversity Policy”), and make appropriate
disclosure of the policy or a summary of the policy in the Company’s
corporate governance report.

The work done by the Nomination Committee during the Review Period
included the above and determining the policy for the nomination of
Directors.

NOMINATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORSHIP

The Board has approved and adopted a nomination policy for directorship
with effect from 1 January 2019 (the
Nomination Policy aims at setting out the processes and criteria for

“Nomination Policy”). The

the nomination of a candidate for directorship in the Company. The
Nomination Committee shall consider the following factors in assessing
the suitability of a proposed candidate:

(@) reputation for integrity;

(b) accomplishment and professional knowledge and industry
experience which may be relevant to the Company;

(c) commitment in respect of available time;

(d) merit and potential contributions that such candidate could bring to
the Board with reference to the Company’s Board Diversity Policy,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, independence,

skills, knowledge and length of service;
(e) in case of a candidate for an independent non-executive director
of the Company, to assess the independence of such candidate;

and

(f)  board succession planning considerations and the long-term needs
of the Company.

The Nomination Committee has the discretion to consider any other
factors and matters and nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

58

(v) B|HEEFEARRLEERESIZERME - A
BRI AR2EETSHE &

(vi)y EEEBATRAXRBGEEARETIRNE
FEXRBEZTIBRR(EFEKESZ TR
R MABRIBRHBRELESHE -

REZEENOEARN TIERE L RHIFERS
BEEHNHRER -

ESRBER

EEeCHETRN —BEFRBBER(TIRAHK
%) ZBEBE2019F 1 A1 BBERN - ZIRBHEE
EEVHAREEARNAESHREAZREFRIZHE - 2

FEEENRFEREREANSBEILR - E2EIU
E
(@ WE1

BARRRL - EERMBRITELR

(0 FERARER

d ZERRBANEEGREZTILBE
BATTREERS
BARRRER -
& BERER
=SS

- BRAMR
mARMIFRENEEER B
Fie XERBEER &
JBILIE - dBE - AN R E

() BMARRBUFANTEFHREAMS -
EABIREANELE &

# ¥

nm'

T

(h EFENBEIRIEZEAZEARANENF

Eo

REZEGANBREECANAMEEZREELIR
HERBEENERAL



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD MEMBERS AND DIVERSITY POLICY

In August 2013, the Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity in the Board to ensure that the Board has
the balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of the Company’s business. With a view to achieving
a sustainable and balanced development, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development.
In designing the Board’s composition, the Company will consider its
own business model and specific needs. In selecting candidates, the
Company will consider a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on merit and contribution that the
candidates will bring to the Board, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.

The Nomination Committee of the Company is responsible for reviewing
the structure, size, diversity profile and skills matrix of the Board, selecting
individuals to be nominated as directors, reviewing succession planning
for directors, and making recommendation on such matters to the Board
for adoption. The Nomination Committee will review the composition
of the Board annually and set a diversity target for the Board for the
ensuing year.

The Board of the Company currently comprises a total of seven
members, including three independent non-executive Directors and
one non-executive Director, whose professional areas cover finance and
accounting, electronics and electrical machinery, financial service, and
corporate management, etc. More than half of the Board members are
non-executive Directors to ensure the independence of the Board, only
three of the Board members are responsible for specific management
affairs. Among the three independent non-executive Directors, two has
a tenure of more than five years, and one have a tenure of less than five
years. The Company has always paid attention to gender diversity among
the Board members, and has committed to maintaining an appropriate
level of female representation in the Board, which shall be no less than
10% with immediate effect. Currently, female directors make up 14.3%
of the Board and 33.3% of executive Directors.
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EMPLOYMENT FIGURES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 2,534 full-time
employees (2022: 3,023) and 1 (2022: 2) senior management members.
The Group adheres to the principle of equality and non-discrimination in
its business operations. All employees are entitled to equal opportunities
regardless of their gender, age, nationality, ethnic background, religion,
political background, marital status, pregnancy status, military service
status and physical disability. The Group has always paid attention
to gender equality among employees. At present, the ratio of male
and female employees is 64.1% (2022: 66.4%) and 35.9% (2022:
33.6%) respectively, among which the ratio of male and female senior
management members is 100% (2022: 100%) and 0% (2022: 0%)
respectively. The gender ratio of the Group is in line with industry norm.
The Group is committed to maintaining the current level of female
employees in its workforce.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy with effect
from 1 January 2019 (the “Dividend Policy”). It is the policy of the
Board, in considering the payment of dividends, to allow shareholders
of the Company to participate in the Company’s profits whilst retaining
adequate reserves for the Group’s future growth. The Board shall consider
the following factors before declaring or recommending any dividends:

(@) the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;
(b) the Group's liquidity position;

(c) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the members of the Group;

(d) the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity and
the relevant financial covenants;

(e) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group's lenders;
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(f) the Group’s expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

(g) general economic conditions and other internal or external factors
that may have an impact on the business or financial performance
and position of the Company; and

(h) any other factors that the Board deem appropriate.

The declaration, recommendation and payment of any dividends are also
subject to compliance with applicable laws, regulations and the articles
of association of the Company. The Board will continually review the
Dividend Policy from time to time and there can be no assurance that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a corporate governance committee (the
“Corporate Governance Committee”) on 27 September 2018 and
held 3 meetings during the Review Period. The committee members’
attendance is shown on page 63. As at 31 December 2023, the Corporate
Governance Committee comprised Mr. Lam Yau Yiu (an INED), Mr.
Cheung Wai Kwok Gary (an INED), Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor (an INED),
Dr. Loke Yu (a NED), Mr. Feng Ming Zhu (an executive Director) and
Mr. Ni Chen Hui (an executive Director). The chairman of the Corporate
Governance Committee was Mr. Lam Yau Yiu. All of the committee
members have significant experience in the internal control, corporate
governance, legal and/or accounting areas. The committee is primarily
responsible for performing corporate governance functions and risk
management and internal control functions in accordance with the
Corporate Governance Code. Mr. Feng Ming Zhu and Mr. Ni Chen Hui,
executive Directors, who are responsible for the daily operations of the
Group are the key members of the committee. Mr. Feng Ming Zhu and
Mr. Ni Chen Hui play a key role in experiencing the actual implementation
status and/or progress of various internal control and ongoing monitoring
policies, and therefore can identify key issues as and when they arise and
interact with the staff and the operational systems in order to identify
any such issues on a timely basis.
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The main duties of the Corporate Governance Committee are as follows:

(a)

62

to develop, review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Company;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors;

to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Company’s corporate governance report;

to oversee the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis (including reviewing the Company’s
risk management and internal control systems, which includes
assessing the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
system), evaluate and determine the nature and extent of the
risks the Company is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and ensure that the Company establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems; and

to conduct an annual review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems, covering all material

controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.
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During the Review Period, the Corporate Governance Committee carried
out its duties as set out above, including discussing with the Group's
risk management department in relation to the internal control systems
of the Group.

The following table summarises the attendance of each individual Director
and committee member in the respective Board, committee and general
meetings held during the Review Period.
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Meetings attended/held in 2023
RNBELRE/BhNES

Board Audit  Nomination Remuneration Corporate General
Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee  Governance Meeting
Committee
Exe ENZRT RAZBE  FHZRE LYEAZERe LEVN-
Number of meetings held during the REESEETHEEHA
Review Period 7 3 2 2 3 1
Executive Directors: YTES:
Feng Ming Zhu (Chairman) BB () n N/ATER N/ATER N/ATER 33 7
Lian Xiu Qin BAZ n NATER NATER NATER NATER 1
Ni Chen Hui (appointed on 9 October 2023)  RRE (#2023510A9R% 0 N/ATE N/ATE N/ATE N N/ATE
Zf)
Non-executive Director: FUTES !
Loke Yu B m NATER NATER NATER 23 il
Independent non-executive Directors: BUkyTES:
Heng Ja Wei Victor x4 1 33 22 22 33 1
Lam Yau Yiu HRIE 1 33 22 22 33 "
Cheung Wai Kwok Gary R AR 1 33 22 22 33 "
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GOING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards on
a regular basis and the Board endeavors to take the necessary actions
to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual written
confirmation of his independence, and the Company considers such
Directors to be independent in accordance with each and every guideline
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions as set out in its terms of reference, the
main duties of which are set out above.

During the Review Period, the Corporate Governance Committee reviewed
the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE OF THE LISTING RULES

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in Part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code
under Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules throughout the Review Period.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk Management Structure of the Group

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for overseeing
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group and
assessing their effectiveness. The risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk Management Department

The Group has set up a risk management department which is responsible
for the design and implementation of the risk management system,
assisting the Board in monitoring and supervising the implementation
and effectiveness of the risk management framework and process and
reviewing the measures on dealing with risks. The risk management
department performs an internal audit function and is responsible for
performing review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
control systems of the Group.

The Corporate Governance Committee reports to the Board after review
of the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
system. Upon consideration of the work and results of review of the
Corporate Governance Committee, the Board forms its view on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.
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The Board ensures that a review of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group is conducted annually in respect of the
relevant financial year.

During the Review Period, the Corporate Governance Committee and the
risk management department conducted a review of the internal control
systems and procedures of the Group and to make recommendations
accordingly (“Internal Control Review").

The scope of work of the risk management department included an
independent assessment of the internal control systems of the major
subsidiaries of the Group. During the Review Period, the risk management
department performed reviews on the internal control systems of the
major subsidiaries of the Group which involved collecting relevant
information and conducting walkthrough tests.

The Internal Control Review has been completed. Having reviewed the
findings and results of the report on the Internal Control Review prepared
by the risk management department, and having taken into consideration
the improvements and/or remedial measures implemented in accordance
with the risk management department’s recommendations, the Board is
of the view that the Company has put in place adequate internal control
system and financial reporting procedures to meet its obligations under
the Listing Rules. In view of the above, the Board considers that a review
of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
was conducted during the Review Period and the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group are effective and adequate.
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Major Risks and Uncertainties of the Group

The Group is exposed to different risks and uncertainties. Some of
the Group’s major risks are set out below and appropriate mitigation
measures have been devised to manage such risks.

(A)  OPERATIONAL, STRATEGIC AND FINANCIAL RISKS

The smart electronic products industry advances at a tremendous
pace. Lithium-ion battery module, being the Company’s main
product, is mostly used in smartphones, notebooks, tablets and
wearable devices. The sales of consumer smart electronics may
change rapidly in response to consumer demand or taste. As
a supplier of lithium-ion battery modules for a number of PRC
smartphone brands, the drastic fluctuation in customers’ sales of
smartphones will have significant effect on the sales of the Group’s
lithium-ion battery modules.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i)  investment of resources in development of new products and
application of lithium-ion battery in new industries and new
fields in response to changes in market demands;

(i)  diversification of product portfolios in order to reduce the
impact of a reduction in sales of individual products on the
Group’s overall business; and

(iii) proactive recruitment and training of skilled and experienced
technicians to enhance the Group’s R&D capability.
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For lithium-ion battery products, great importance is attached to
their quality and safety. The performance and safety of lithium-
ion battery is very sensitive to ambient environment. The safety of
lithium-ion battery lies in effective use of external circuit design
to ensure battery’s operation is normal and safe. However, the
efficiency and reliability of these safety devices are closely connected
with good and consistent manufacturing quality. Various different
circumstances or causes may also lead to short circuit and other
risks.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i)  inthe pursuit of higher efficiency and endurance for batteries,
the Group conducted more rigorous review of the safety of
batteries to ensure that all the batteries delivered by the Group
meet high safety standards;

(i) the Group ensures it purchases sufficient product liability
insurance for protection. Product liability insurance covers the
liability arising from a defective product that causes personal
injury, property damage or other losses; and

(iii) the raw materials and other auxiliary materials used for the
Company’s products shall be certified by authorities before
being used. In the process of production, the Company’s
quality control department shall conduct inspection at each
stage throughout the whole production process to ensure the
quality of the Company’s product and safeguard the interests
of consumers with a quality monitoring system.

In 2023, more than 90% of the Group's turnover was derived from
its ODM business. Over 60% of the sales of its ODM business was
to three smartphone brand manufacturers. If the Group loses one of
these top customers, it may have adverse effects on the operation
and financial results of the Group’s ODM business.
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Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i)  look for more potential customers to reduce its dependence
on top customers;

(i)  strengthen after-sales services for customers, pay regular visits
to customers and conduct customer satisfaction survey to
continuously improve the quality of products and services,
consolidate the Group’s competitiveness in the industry and
increase customer loyalty; and

(iii) develop more new products to meet customers’ needs.

The vast majority of the Group’s sales revenue is from operating
units in the PRC. Adverse events in the PRC’s operation and political
environment may result in material adverse effects on the Group's
business, financial position and operation results.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i) development of overseas markets to increase revenue from
overseas operations; and

(ii)  continuous monitoring of PRC's operations and political
environment, anticipation of possible problems, and establish
quick strategic response to changing business environment.

Overdue payments by customers granted with credit by the Group
will increase the financial risk to the Group and affect the Group'’s
financial performance and operating cash flow.
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Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i)  regular review of the amount of accounts receivable from key
customers to control it at an appropriate level; and

(i) implementation of strict internal control measures and increase
collection efforts for overdue accounts receivable.

The main raw material for lithium-ion battery modules (being the
Group’s main product) is lithium-ion bare battery cell. The Group
purchases lithium-ion bare battery cells from many well-known
international manufacturers. In recent years, lithium-ion bare battery
cell has been widely used in smartphones, notebooks, tablets,
wearable devices, power tools, electric bicycles, energy storage
and other fields. Any increase in the price or shortage of supply
of lithium-ion bare battery cells will have a material impact on the
profitability and production costs of the Group.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i) regular research on and evaluation of suppliers to ensure
stable supply of raw materials; and

(ii)  through automation upgrade of production lines, the Group
solves the problem with human resources and effectively
controls production costs, which have positive effects on
improvement of the Group’s profitability and control of
production costs.

ACCIDENT RISKS

Major accidents including fires, natural disasters or serious infectious
diseases will affect the Group's assets and operations, thus affecting
the Group's operational capacity and reducing profitability.
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Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the

following:

()

(i)

(iii)

ensure comprehensive insurance coverage over the Group’s
properties and business is purchased;

provision of regular education and training sessions on safety
for all staff to strengthen staff’s awareness of production
safety;

training on fire safety, fire emergency evacuation and fire drill
at workplace are organised at least twice a year to ensure staff
have a solid understanding of the significance and necessity of
production safety and improve their own awareness of safety
protection; and

(iv) organise physical examination for the benefit of its staff to
help in assessing possible occupational and serious infectious
diseases.

INDUSTRY RISKS

The possible slowdown of the Chinese economy, the possible drop

in global shipment of smartphones and the possible substantial

decrease in consumers’ demands for replacement of smartphones

will have material adverse effects on the Group’s business, financial

position and operation results.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the

following:

)

(i)

proactively pay attention to the application of lithium-ion
batteries in new industries and new fields, grasp opportunities
for access to the market and adjust the development strategy
in response to changes in the market; and

proactively build a platform for communication with consumers,
pay close attention to consumers’ demands, timely listen to
consumers’ opinions, and provide good products and after-
sales services to increase customer loyalty.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

o is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
and the Listing Rules;

e  conducts its affairs in strict compliance with the relevant guidelines
and policies relating to inside information issued by the Securities
and Futures Commission and the Stock Exchange from time to

time;

o has implemented procedures for responding to external enquiries
about the Group’s affairs; and

o requires all employees of the Group to abide by the Code of Conduct
and Inside Information Disclosure Policy to keep inside information
in strict confidence and refrain from accepting personal benefits
through the power or authority derived from their positions.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules
(the "Model Code”). Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, the
Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code for the financial year ended 31
December 2023.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by
the external auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could
lead to any potential material adverse effect on the Company. During
the Review Period, the Group paid approximately RMB1,379,000 to its
external auditors, namely BDO Limited, and approximately RMB297,000
to its PRC auditor for their audit services. The Group paid approximately
RMB243,000 to BDO Limited for their non-audit services in respect of
the review of the interim financial information of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. The Directors’
responsibilities for the accounts and the reporting responsibilities of
the external auditors are set out on pages 81 to 84 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA,
CPA). Mr. Yeung took no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Review Period.

SHAREHOLDER AND INVESTOR RELATIONS
COMMUNICATION STRATEGIES

The Board established a Shareholders’ communication policy setting
out the principles of the Company in relation to its communication
with the Shareholders, with the objective of ensuring the Shareholders
are provided with access to information about the Company in order
to enable Shareholders to assess the Company’s overall performance,
exercise their rights in an informed manner and engage actively with
the Company.

Information would be communicated to Shareholders mainly through
the Company’s corporate communications including interim and annual
reports, annual general meetings and other general meetings that
may be convened, as well as by making available all the disclosures
submitted to the Stock Exchange, its corporate communications and
other corporate publications on the Company’s website. Shareholders
may direct enquiries about their shareholdings to the Company’s share
registrars. To the extent the requisite information of the Company is
publicly available, Shareholders and the investment community may at
any time put forward enquiries to the Board in writing to the Company’s
head office in Hong Kong by post, facsimile or email via the address,
facsimile number or email address provided on the Company’s website.

If Shareholder(s) would like to express their views to a matter mentioned
in a proposed resolution or other business to be dealt with at an AGM
or extraordinary general meeting, they can submit a written statement of
not more than 1,000 words with respect to that matter or business and
request the Company to circulate their written statement to Shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the meeting. Such Shareholder(s) must
represent at least:—
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(@) 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having the
relevant right to vote at the meeting; or

(b) 50 shareholders having the relevant right to vote at the meeting.

The Company concluded that the Shareholders’ communication policy
was effectively implemented during the Review Period, as the Company
had made use of multiple communication channels.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, any one or more
Shareholders holding on the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary
at our head office in Hong Kong by post, facsimile or email via the
address, facsimile number or email address provided on the Company’s
website, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
The written requisition may also be deposited at the Company’s head
office in Hong Kong at Room 1017, 10/F Leighton Centre, 77 Leighton
Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Board or the
Company Secretary. If within 21 days of such deposit of the written
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the constitutional documents of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

STAKEHOLDERS

The continuing development and present scale of the Group were
benefited from the trust and support of the stakeholders. We have
been dedicating efforts not only to maximise the present value of the
Group but also to maximise the interest and return for all parties so
as to achieve harmonious development and collaboration with mutual
benefits in the long run.
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INVESTORS

The Group has always paid much attention to communication and
interaction with investors, and continues to improve communication
channels with shareholders and investors, so as to enhance
governance transparency. The Group’s management regularly meets
with investors, and proactively announces the latest information
and business development plans.

CONSUMERS
PRODUCT SAFETY

The Group has placed emphasis on the safety of products, especially
on mobile phone batteries, and has implemented strict quality control
such as the ISO standards so as to meet safety requirements. With
our product testing centres, we administer stages of tests, including
crash, high-temperature, damp and long period recharging, on
our battery products. We also invest resources in product R&D to
develop more reliable products. The battery products of the Group
have also passed the stringent requirements on quality control and
safety set by the relevant government authorities.

EMPLOYEES
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY

The Group has focused on factory production safety, strived to
enhance employees’ safety knowledge and training, and increased
factory fire prevention facilities and safety patrols, so as to ensure
unobstructed fire passages and the availability of water in case of
fire. In addition, the Group has regularly held fire drills and increased
investments in fire prevention facilities in factories, so as to ensure
the sufficiency of fire prevention equipment and facilities.

The Group has proactively taken and implemented various measures,
including:

(i) increase factory fire prevention facilities and safety patrols
(once a week), resolve problems in a timely manner and ensure
unobstructed fire passages and the availability of water in case
of fire;

(i) hold regular safety seminar and training for employees,
especially for new staff, striving to enhance employees’ hazard
prevention and safety awareness;

(iii) conduct at least two large scale fire drills every year and
conduct general safety checks on such days;
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(iv) enhance factory management and divide it into safety
responsibility districts, appoint safety examiners at the
workshops with routine patrols, and eliminate potential
problems in a timely manner; and

(v) improve and formulate storage, safe keeping, transportation
and processing procedures for flammables, and provide
training for staff frequently in contact with such flammables.

ESTABLISHMENT OF OWN SKILL TRAINING INSTITUTE

Apart from occupational safety, the Group has also placed emphasis
on providing on-the-job training for its staff. The Group started
a comprehensive talent training programme, which is tied to the
establishment of its own skill training institute. Talents are cultivated
at the skill training institute and made available to the production
pipeline to resolve the labour shortage issue faced by industry
participants. After a period of training, the Group will allocate
labour resources directly to various departments, which will shorten
the time for staff replacement and reduce labour cost. Automated
production will also be implemented at different phases. Moreover,
in the training process, participating staff can understand the
practical operation issues arising from the course of production,
which will effectively enhance production efficiencies and qualities.
The Group invites talents from society and selects personnel with the
required management and technical expertise through professional
and rigorous training processes. At the same time, this also brings
to society a new generation of trained talents in fulfillment of the
Company’s social responsibilities.
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PROTECTION OF EMPLOYEES’ LEGAL RIGHTS

The Group promotes and undertakes a fair and non-discriminative
employment policy. Employees are employed on contract basis and
employment contracts are signed based on principles of fairness and
on employees’ own volition, with clear provisions on contractual
terms such as scope of work, remuneration, social insurance and
working hours, among others. The legal rights and obligations of
the employer and employee are clearly defined. We also strictly
comply with the relevant laws and regulations in relation to national
social insurance to set up insurance scheme for basic pension,
medical, work-related injuries, unemployment and maternity for
employees and cover the various insurance expenses. Meanwhile, to
further protect the interests of individual employees, the Company
has taken out a commercial accident insurance scheme for all
employees. The Group has complied with the Labor Contract Law
of the PRC since 1 January 2008 and established a labor union.
We hold an employees’ meeting every two weeks, in support of
the construction and development of a harmonious and stable
employee and employer relationship.

COMMUNITY
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

As a responsible enterprise, the Group has always put emphasis
on supporting environmental protection. We strictly control the
production procedures and reduce waste generation. Although
small amounts of waste are generated during the packaging
process, some of them are delivered to qualified recycling plants
for treatment.

For the environmental, social and governance report of the Group,
please refer to the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
of the Company.
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

IBDO

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
EEE 1 +852 2218 8288 HEETHEER1115E
8K : +852 2815 2239 KRHIDH25
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED BB EERERATRE

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Veson
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 85 to 190, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policies information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly,
in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (”IFRS Accounting
Standards”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code"),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1. Impairment assessment of trade and notes receivables
(Refer to notes 4(f), 5(iii), 21 and 41(a)(iv) to the
consolidated financial statements)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had trade and notes receivables
with net carrying amount of approximately RMB2,326 million and a
net impairment loss of approximately RMB2.8 million was reversed for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

The directors of the Company have performed an impairment
assessment on the trade and notes receivables in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policies which required the exercise of
significant management judgement in considering factors such as the
credit history including default or delay in payments, ageing analysis,
settlement records during the year and subsequent settlements after
the year end.

Our response

Our key procedures in relation to the directors’ impairment assessment
included:

o Understanding the Group’s relationship and transaction history
with the customers;

o Reviewing the ageing analysis of the trade and notes receivables;

o Reviewing payment patterns during the year and amount
of subsequent settlements after the year end made by the
customers;

o Assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s estimation of
recoverability of trade and notes receivables with reference to
factors considered by the directors.

e Assessing the appropriateness of the expected credit loss
provisioning methodology, examining the key data inputs on
a sample basis to assess their accuracy and completeness, and
challenging the assumptions, including both historical and
forward-looking information, used to determine the expected
credit losses.
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2. Impairment assessment of non-financial assets (Refer
to notes 4(m) and 5(iv) to the consolidated financial
statements)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, investment properties and right-of-
use assets with carrying amount of approximately RMB630 million,
RMB3 million, RMB96 million and RMB16 million respectively.
Notwithstanding that the Group earn profits during the current year,
the market capitalisation of the Company of approximately RMB237
million fell below the net asset value of the Group of approximately
RMB1,086 million as at 31 December 2023. This constitutes
an impairment indicator on the Group’s non-financial asset in
accordance with International Accounting Standard 36. The directors
of the Company have performed an impairment assessment on the
cash-generating units in which these assets belonged to in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies and concluded that, there was
no impairment loss for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Estimation of the recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
required the exercise of significant management judgement.

Our response

Our key procedures in relation to the directors’ impairment assessment
included:

o Assessing the appropriateness of methodology used for assessing
the recoverable amounts; and

e  Assessing the reasonableness of the underlying key assumptions
used.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other

INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL

information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B A2 BT S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Chan Tsz Hung

Practising Certificate no. P06693

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

Reversal of impairment/(impairment loss)
recognised on trade and
notes receivables, net

Impairment loss recognised on
prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, net

Finance costs

Profit before income tax
Income tax credit/(expense)

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the
year, net of tax:
Item that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
— Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the
year

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents)

FmeEmkHMEEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 31 H 1 F/Z

2023 2022
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E ARBT T AREET T
EHEE 6 6,145,228 6,359,226
SHER A (5,726,450) (5,902,519)
EF 418,778 456,707
H bl 7 40,502 58,593
SHE RO HEMAY (83,159) (94,666)
THAX (265,680) (294,716)
HEMgeErms 9 (24,825) (8,066)
MEWE ZFHEREREERERZ
BEERE, CREEIE)F5E
21 2,802 (7,548)
MIEMFIA - e MEMEK
FRIEER ZREEIBFE
22 (6,160) (5,620)
R E R 12 (71,343) (77,782)
R FT1S B A8 8 10,915 26,902
FrigfiE e, (%) 13 3,299 (6,836)
NE i 14,214 20,066
REEREEMBE UK !
REERERENREREREN
IHH
—BEEINER 2 ER Z5E
2,580 (12,189)
AEFEREEMEEE
2,580 (12,189)
AEERXHEKFEE
16,794 7,877
THIALEEARERZGZF
ZIN/NEIE DN 20,109 24,038
EE2 34 (5,895) (3,972)
14,214 20,066
THALTEGEEIRE LA
ZiN/NETEZ =N 21,309 12,596
AR (4,515) (4,719)
16,794 7,877
A F
—EAREEARESD) 15 1.84 2.21
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE RIRR R

At 31 December 2023 2023F 12 H31H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and notes receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Amounts due from related parties

Current tax recoverable

Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Total current assets

Current liabilities

Trade and notes payables

Other payables, contract liabilities and
accrued charges

Lease liabilities — current portion

Bank loans — current portion

Amounts due to directors

Amounts due to related parties

Total current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Lease liabilities — non-current portion
Bank loans — non-current portion
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets
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Notes

BiaE

16
17
18
19

22

23
31

20
21

22
24

25
26

27

28
18
29
30
24

18
29
31

2023
RMB’000
AR®TF T

630,486
95,511
16,431

3,034

20,940
102,635

869,037
574,067
2,326,312
125,527
117,449
15,074
709,064
133,825

4,001,318

2,362,724
103,590
6,731
1,036,837
49

1,162
3,511,093
490,225
1,359,262
4,852
262,995
5,360
273,207

1,086,055

2022
RMB’000
ARBTT

775,369
45,922
22,211

4,192

31,189

20,940
98,698

998,521
787,276
1,963,797
235,469
129,618
15,061
710,965
200,944

4,043,130

2,613,130
148,481
7,018
879,442
34

1,105
3,649,210
393,920
1,392,441
10,724
307,096
5,360
323,180

1,069,261



Total equity

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R

At 31 December 2023 7202312 H31H

Capital and reserves

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Non-controlling interests

ﬁwm

FENG MING ZHU
R
DIRECTOR
EF

BEARR B
B
Gl

ROFEE NEIEES

IR RS

s

2023
Notes RMB’000
BiaE AR®TR

32 107,590
983,926

1,091,516

34 (5.461)

1,086,055

LIAN XIU QIN
ERE
DIRECTOR
£

2022
RMB’000
ARETTT

107,590
962,617

1,070,207

(946)

1,069,261
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GERRER S

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1 F/Z

At 1 January 2022

Profitfoss) for the year

Exchange differences on translating

foreign operations

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Appropriations

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023

Profit/loss) for the year

Exchange differences on translating

foreign operations

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Appropriations

At 31 December 2023
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Share
capital

B

RVB'000
ARETRL

107,590

107,590

107,590

Share
premium

Bt
RMB'000
ARETL

619,288

619,288

Capital
reserve

Lty ]
RMB1000

ARETT

186,133

186,133

Statutory
reserve
fund

EE
Mg
RNB'000
ARETTL

143,193

4,068

147,261

2219

149,540

Enterprise
expansion
fund
iz 4

YRES
RMB'000

ARETTL

2,034

13,151

1,140

74291

Translation
reserve

Eifif
RNB'000

ARETTC

(64,09)

(11,442)

(11,442)

(75,540)

1,200

1,200

(74,340)

(Accumulated
losses)/
Retained
profits

(BstER)/
REEA
RMB000

ARBTTL
(5612

2,038

2,038

(6,102)

12324

20,109

20,109

(3419

29,014

Attributable
to owners
of the
Company
N
EEA
Efba
RMB'000
NEHTT
1,057,611

24,038

(11.442)

12,59

1,070,207

20,109

1,200

21,309

1,091,516

Non-
Controlling
Interests

B2 4
RVB'000
ARETR

3173

(397)

(747)

(@n9)

(946)

(5,899)

1380

(4519)

(5.461)

Total
equity

2 13
V1000

ARETT

1,061,384

20,066

(12,189)

1871

1,069,261

14214

2,580

16,794

1,086,055



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Notes:
Share premium

The share premium account represents the excess of the issue price
net of any issuance expenses over the par value of the shares issued
and has been credited to the share premium account of the Company.
The application of the share premium account is governed by Section
34 under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company and the
aggregate amount of the paid-in capital of subsidiaries acquired plus
the consideration received by the Company pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation in preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares.

Statutory reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") applicable to foreign investment enterprises and
the Articles of Association of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company,
these PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain two statutory reserves,
namely a statutory reserve fund and an enterprise expansion fund
which are non-distributable.

Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Scud Electronics”), Scud Battery
Co., Ltd. (“Scud Battery”), Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen Hongde”), Dongguan Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan
Hongde”), Scud Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd. (“Scud Intelligent
Technology”) (together the “PRC Subsidiaries”) are required to
transfer 10% of their respective profit after income tax as reported in
the PRC statutory financial statements to the statutory reserve fund
until the balance reaches 50% of their respective registered capital.
Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the PRC Subsidiaries, they
are also required to make appropriation from their respective profit
after income tax as reported in the PRC statutory financial statements
to the enterprise expansion fund at rates determined by their
respective boards of directors.

The statutory reserve fund may be used to make up prior year losses
incurred and, with the approval from the relevant government
authorities, to increase capital for expansion of production of the PRC
Subsidiaries. The enterprises expansion fund, subject to the approval
by the relevant government authorities, may also be used to increase
capital of the PRC Subsidiaries.

Translation reserve

Gain/loss arising on translating the net assets of foreign operations
into presentation currency.

Retained profits
No dividend is proposed for the year ended 31 December 2023 and

2022. As at 31 December 2023, the balance of retained profits of the
Group was RMB29,014,000 (2022: RMB12,324,000).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

I‘/j—\ EE%/)“JE’%E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1 F/Z

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Finance costs
Gain on acquisition of finanacial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive
income
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation of investment properties
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment
loss recognised on trade and notes
receivables, net

Impairment loss recognised on prepayments,

deposits and other receivables, net
Impairment loss recognised on inventories
Write-off of property, plant and equipment
Write-off of inventories

Operating profit before changes in
working capital

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

(Increase)/decrease in trade and notes
receivables

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from
related parties

Decrease in trade and notes payables

Decrease in other payables, contract liabilities
and accrued charges

Cash used in operations

Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Investing activities
Interest received
Decrease in pledged deposits

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Payments to acquire property, plant and
equipment

Payments to acquire intangible assets

Payments to acquire financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income

Net cash (used in)/generated from
investing activities
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2023
RMB’000
ARBT R

10,915

(10,365)
71,343

1,310
108,437
494
6,842
6,752
(2,802)

6,160
712

1,149
22,259

223,206
190,238

(359,713)
134,971
12,169
(250,406)
(44,891)

(94,426)

(7,024)
(651)

(102,101)

10,365
1,901

4,469

(28,242)
(152)

(11,659)

2022
RMB’000
ARET T

26,902
(12,798)
77,782
(17,618)

2,236
103,373
74
5,073
6,944
7,548
5,620
54

3,769
3,747

212,706
(238,032)

532,896
(66,100)
(50,896)
(504,950)
(44,987)

(159,363)

(18,249)
(242)

(177,854)

12,798
277,724

10,592

(73,386)
(1,886)

(1,030)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEI\/IENT OF CASH FLOWS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #2023 12431H

2023 2022
Noj:g RMB’000 RMIB'OOO
FiE ARMT T ARETTT
Financing activities MEEE 38
Bank loans raised ERBTER 1,968,546 1,929,847
Repayment of principal portion of bank loans EERTERALHH (1,855,196) (1,917,503)
Repayment of interest portion of bank loans 155§§Eﬂ;mﬂ —;‘ 152 (62,978) (61,423)
Repayment of principal portion of leases BERELRS (7,051) (6,551)
Repayment of interest portion of leases 1%?5%@%%@%%5% (1,341) 2, OOO)
Increase in amounts due to directors JEATE B IEE N 15
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to related FERTRAE AL EIBIE N (R
parties 57 (1,190)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEFTEFE/(FTA)RLEE
financing activities 42,052 (58,820)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents REeRBSZEEARSFE (71,708) (11,862)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FHHEERBEELEEER
year 200,944 226,695
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ExgnyE 4,589 (13,889)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year EXRBEERRLEEER 133,825 200,944
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash ReRBREEEERERIN
equivalents
Bank balances and cash RITEBR NI E 133,825 200,944

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB1,122,000
(2022: RMB978,000), in respect of the lease arrangements for the
leased factory, office and staff dormitory.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had non-cash
enhancement and transformation of property, plant and equipment
with net carrying amount of RMB1,009,000 (2022: RMB3,912,000)
from their original uses. These property, plant and equipment were
accounted for as disposal when they were being enhanced and
transformed; and accounted for as addition when they were ready to
use.

HZE2023F12A31BEFE  ~XEBENFEAEEE
LHEEAEIHFREANE A AR,122,00070(2022
F: AR¥978,0007T) " NEBAERE  PAE
ETEENHELHERM -

HZE2023F12A31BIEFE  ZEBNBERE AR
RIERSRARKEYE BERRENRDFE
A A R #1,009,0007T(20224 = A K #3,912,000
TC) ° iZEWME  BEKF ﬁvﬁﬂ&aﬁzzﬁﬁ%éﬂ’ﬁtﬂ
€ MREARERFERE
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GENERAL

Veson Holdings Limited (the “Company”), is a public limited
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 20 July 2006 as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 21 December 2006.

The Company’s principal activity is investment holding and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in manufacture and sale of
lithium-ion battery modules and related accessories for mobile
phones, notebooks, tablets and digital electronic appliances,
while also engaging in manufacture and sale of lithium-ion bare
battery cells.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable IFRSs, International Accounting Standards
("IASs"”) issued by the IASB and Interpretations issued
by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee of the IASB (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “IFRS”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis, except for notes receivables, and
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income that have been measured at fair value. The
measurement bases are fully described in the accounting
policies below.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB"), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1FF/Z

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRS 3.
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

(@) Adoption of new or amended IFRS Accounting

RN R NS FTBIBR A B 3R 5

ZER g 2Rl

(a) ERAVETE] RAMEETEIRR A M 5 2 Al

Standards - effective from 1 January 2023

In the current year, the Group has applied following new
or amended IFRS Accounting Standards, which are relevant
to and effective for the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 January
2023.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

RE AT ERISE 1 5E M BIPR B 5 S R B RS E B 28R (IBFTAC)

Amendments to IAS 8

B & R B8R (ERTA)
Amendments to IAS 12
BB ERIE 125 (18ETA)

Amendments to IAS 12

BIFR 5T 2R ZE 1258 (85T A)
IFRS 17 and amendments to IFRS 17

BIPRBA A5 s BRI 581 758 R BIRR B S i S B RSN 75 2B RT AR

Except for Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2, none of the new or amended standards have
a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2,
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

IAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policy information” with “material
accounting policies”. Accounting policy information
is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it
can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make

on the basis of those financial statements.

%Al - 852023118 8BEXK
RAEE » NEBERERNTHTHE
BRI SRS E RS 2R - mEH
AREEMN2023F1 A1 HRABFEEER 2
RAMBRRABIEE LR -

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

BRTBR 2 B

Definition of Accounting Estimates

Bt 2 ER

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

HE - HELEERABEERNE
FEFLIE

International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model
Rules

BB AT 5 2 — St — R EE AR Al

Insurance contracts and related
amendments

Rz A K MABRERT

BREIRR 2 Et ERIE 1R R E R SRS %
AIEBREE2R BRI AN FaT K
ERTERG TS HAEENEGRS M BEHREK
EEBATE -

B & st 2R 155 K B PR A 75 3R & £ R
EBREF2H (BT ) » B BERZHK
P

BfR &t EAFB1REARER] - WERE
AR IBKAMEIEREABRER | —
& o MR BERE M LB B HmR T
PREvR A B K —OFZ B - AT S IR IAH
ERE RAGMBERREBZERERE
ZEMBHRREHAORTE - AIREFER
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRS

94

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued)

(a) Adoption of new or amended IFRS Accounting

Standards - effective from 1 January 2023
(Continued)

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information
must not obscure material accounting policy information.

IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the “Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate
how an entity applies the “four-step materiality process”
to accounting policy disclosures and to judge whether
information about an accounting policy is material to its
financial statements. Guidance and examples are added to
the Practice Statement.

These amendments have no effective on the measurement
or presentation of any items in the consolidated financial
statement but affect the disclosure of accounting policies of
the Group.

Amendment to IAS 8, Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments provide further guidance on the
distinction between changes in accounting policies and
changes in accounting estimates. The amendments do
not have a material impact on the consolidated financial
statements as the Group’s approach in distinguishing
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates is consistent with the amendments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued)

(@) Adoption of new or amended IFRS Accounting

Standards - effective from 1 January 2023
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 12, Deferred Tax Related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of IAS 12 such that it
does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and
offsetting temporary differences on initial recognition, such
as leases and decommissioning liabilities.

When the amendments are initially adopted, for leases
and decommissioning liabilities, the associated deferred tax
assets and liabilities are required to be recognised from the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented,
with any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to
retained earnings or other components of equity at that
date. For all other transactions, the amendments are applied
to those transactions that occur after the beginning of the
earliest period presented.

The amendments do not have a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 12, International Tax Reform -
Pillar Two Model Rules

The amendments introduce a temporary mandatory
exception from deferred tax accounting for the income
tax arising from tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
to implement the Pillar Two model rules published by the
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development
("OECD") (income tax arising from such tax laws is hereafter
referred to as “Pillar Two income taxes”), including tax laws
that implement qualified domestic minimum top-up taxes
described in those rules. The amendments also introduce
disclosure requirements about such tax including the
estimated tax exposure to Pillar Two income taxes.

The amendments do not have a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

RE IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 220234 12 431 H 1 F/Z
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRS
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ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued)

(a) Adoption of new or amended IFRS Accounting

Standards - effective from 1 January 2023
(Continued)

IFRS 17 and amendments to IFRS 17, Insurance
contracts and related amendments

In May 2017, the IASB issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts,
a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance
contracts covering recognition and measurement,
presentation and disclosure. IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts that was issued in 2004. IFRS 17
applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life,
direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type
of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees
and financial instruments with discretionary participation
features; a few scope exceptions will apply. The overall
objective of IFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model
for insurance contracts that is more useful and consistent
for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in IFRS 4,
which are largely based on grandfathering previous local
accounting policies, IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive
model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant
accounting aspects. IFRS 17 is based on a general model,
supplemented by:

(i) A specific adaptation for contracts with direct
participation features (the variable fee approach)

(i) A simplified approach (the premium allocation
approach) mainly for short-duration contracts.

The adoption of IFRS 17 and its amendments does not have
a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRS 3. HAHITRKETBERMERE
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Continued) RS 2R (%)

(b) Amended IFRS Accounting Standards that have (b) T FEMF{E 8 R4 2 LG 5T B PR B 7%

been issued but are not yet effective

The following amended IFRS Accounting Standards,
potentially relevant to the Group’s financial statements,
have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group.

Amendments to IAS 1

REETERE 15 (IBETA)
Amendments to IAS 1

BIFR & s R E 158 (1B 5T )
Amendments to IFRS 16

R B 5 R 5 22 A 28 1 65% (85T A)
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

B B 75 e = R R B 1 05 I B BR Rt R RSB 285 (1B 7T &)

Amendment to IAS 7 and IFRS 7

BB & s E RIS 75 REIBR M SR E 75 (BET4)
Amendments to IAS 21

BIFR & 5t RIS 21 58 (BETAN)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2025

S No mandatory effective date yet determined but
available for adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the potential impact of these new pronouncements. The
Directors so far concluded that the application of these new
pronouncements is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the Group'’s financial performance and financial position.

HEEASTHER
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Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current!

BESBEARBIERE

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants’

M RABERE BE

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback®

ERERTHEEAE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

REFEBRABENANGECEZEALE
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Supplier Finance Arrangements'

HERmRE 7

Lack of Exchangeability?
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

98

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

4, EESFHER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1FF/Z
4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continves)y 4. EESFTBER 2)

(b) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (b) W% -  BMERRZREE)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful
lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period. The useful lives are as follows:

Building 3%

Plant and machinery 10-33%

Motor vehicles 20-25%

Electronic equipment, furniture and 10-33%
fixtures

Leasehold improvements 10% or the remaining
lease period whichever

is shorter

anIg B AR R A AR E F 21 18 AT BE R AR
B - MEE KA FEMAE - RIHK
KA G ABERNREEXER SR
BUBERERE) BEMHHNKRHE
SWEUHER

ME  BEERESETIE - FURE
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R EIEAR BERENRER - 0E
foE - AIS(ELAR - AIEAFHOT ¢

BF 3%
S e 128 10-33%
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

100

(9)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct costs of construction as
well as borrowing costs capitalised during the periods of
construction and installation. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assets
for their intended use are completed. No depreciation is
provided for in respect of construction in progress until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale
in the ordinary course of business, use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Investment property is measured at cost on initial
recognition less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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)

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. BEEEHHE &)
(d) Leases (d) BE

purny

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an
entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-
term leases and/or (i) leases for which the underlying asset
is of low-value. The Group has elected not to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets
and leases for which at the commencement date have a
lease term less than 12 months and does not contains a
purchase option. The lease payments associated with those
leases have been expensed on straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability (see below for the accounting policy
to account for lease liability); (i) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; and (iii) any initial direct costs incurred
by the lessee; the Group measures the right-of-use assets
applying a cost model. Under the cost model, the Group
measures the right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liability.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

102

Leases (Continued)
Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease,
if that rate can be readily determined which is generally
the case of the Group. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable; and (ii) payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an
option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made;
and (iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications.

Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight — line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Intangible assets

(f)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised
at cost.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over
their useful lives as follows. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss and included in administrative
expenses.

Software 3-5 years

Financial instruments
(i) Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade
receivable without a significant financing component
is initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Financial Instruments (Continued)

104

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are two measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition

is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI"):
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial

Assets that are held for collection of

assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at
FVTOCI. Debt investments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value. Interest income calculated
using the effective interest method, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other

comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

(f) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment'’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVTOCI are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss unless
the dividend income clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investments.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs
on trade receivables, financial assets measured at
amortised cost and debt investments measured at
FVTOCI.
following bases: (1) 12-months ECLs: these are the

The ECLs are measured on either of the

ECLs that result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date; and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The
shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the
assets’ original effective interest rate.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Financial Instruments (Continued)

106

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables using IFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1 F/Z

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Financial Instruments (Continued)

108

(iii) Financial liabilities

(iv)

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable
costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and notes payables, financial liabilitiies included in
other payables and accrued charges, borrowings,
amounts due to related parties, amounts due to
directors and lease liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

(f) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(v)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with IFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of
that liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the financial
liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured
to reflect the fair value of the financial liability
extinguished. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss for the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1 F/Z

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

110

(9)

(h)

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group'’s
performance:

. provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

. creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains

control of the goods or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Sale of lithium-ion battery modules and related
accessories for mobile phones and digital
electronic appliances

Customers obtain control of the products when the
goods are delivered to and have been accepted.
Revenue is thus recognised upon when the customers
accepted the products. There is generally only one
performance obligation. Invoices are usually payable
within 60-90 days.

Other revenue

Processing income is recognised over time when
processing services are provided.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to

transfer services to a customer for which the Group has

received consideration (or an amount of consideration is

due) from the customer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1 F/Z

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

112

()]

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits and does not give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences,
deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

(k) Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate(s) (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the rates approximating
to those ruling when the transactions took place are
used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
foreign exchange reserve (attributed to minority interests
as appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in profit
or loss of group entities’ separate financial statements on
the translation of long-term monetary items forming part
of the Group’s net investment in the foreign operation
concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1 F/Z

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Employee benefits

114

(m)

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when the
employees render the related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when
the services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews

the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine

whether there is any indication that those assets have

suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously

recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

Property, plant and equipment;

Investment properties under cost model;

Intangible assets; and

Right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

(m) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

(n)

(o)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expenses
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another IFRS, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under
that IFRS.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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(p) Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

(p) Related
(b)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

=

(viii

parties (Continued)

(Continued)

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the group or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity

and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(ii)

and

(iii)

children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.
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N

5.

118

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards requires the directors
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The directors have considered the development, selection
and disclosure of the Group’s critical accounting policies and
estimates. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets or liabilities are as follows:

(i) Useful lives and depreciation of property, plant
and equipment and investment properties

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges of its property, plant and
equipment and investment properties. These estimates
are based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of similar nature and functions. The Group will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, and will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in
a change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation
charges in future periods.

5. EESHERMAGTIRERE

ZEBERR

RAENABERTBREEASTHENNGE Y
BHRRERESHEMTBETHBNEERE
BRI EEEL HE - et RRR - Bt
MR IDERBEZR LM RE S EE
B - BRARAER RN FbE

ZEMFT RERRREFER - BT SE
A - A BERT R BRI AT HIRE - Al
EZHARHER  MAREBITFEI A RIAEL
HARE - BITEME AT AR R A 1% HRFR AR o

EFEEZRAEEFEGHBREK MM 2%
R EZBERKE BRFHEENAGBREE
FRERAEZ T ZRARA M et RERERN
s s

() W% BERRBUARRENEZT
ERFHRITE
AEBBEME  BELREBARKRED
EZ AR e AFRA R AR ER S o
ZEHFATRBEE RIERa 2 W
55 B R A DA I R B W S B R AT R R 1A
ZBEKBRMEL - M ERFEHERZA
ZEFRE AIAKESERRITERN
X WEHEmESK L E 2T LR
FESRBE B EE WS SMURL - BERAEEFHIR]
REEMAE AT A E AR o F Bt Al
P EEZAIFEFRHLIRES - Fif 5
BAKEERKBRZFTERS -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and variable selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes
in customer taste and competitor actions in response to any
industry downturn. The directors reassess the estimations at
the end of each reporting period.

Allowances for trade receivables and notes
receivables

The Group uses a provision of matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade and notes receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various debtors that
have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is based
on management’s estimate of the lifetime expected credit
losses to be incurred, which is estimated by taking into
account the credit loss experience, ageing of overdue fee
receivables, customers’ repayment history and customers’
financial position and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions, all of which involve a
significant degree of management judgement. The provision
of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of
forecast general economic conditions. The information
about the ECLs and the Group's trade and notes receivables
are disclosed in Notes 21 and 41. If the financial condition
of the customers or the forecast economic conditions were
to deteriorate, actual loss allowance would be higher than
estimated.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(iv) Impairment of non-financial assets

120

(v)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for property, plant and equipment, investment
properties, intangible assets and right-of-use assets at the
end of each reporting period. These assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.
When value in use calculations are undertaken, the directors
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

Further details on deferred taxes are disclosed in Note 31.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(vi) Control over Cybertech Optiemus Holdings
Limited (“Cybertech”)

The Group owns 50% equity interests in Cybertech. For the
purpose of assessing whether or not the Group has control
over Cybertech and its subsidiaries (collectively “Cybertech
Group”), the directors considered whether the Group has
the ability to direct the relevant activities of Cybertech
Group. In making this judgement, the directors considered
that the relevant activities of Cybertech are directed by the
board of directors and all resolutions of directors’ meeting
are passed by simple majority. Since the Group is entitled
to appoint 3 out of 5 directors into the board of directors
of Cybertech in accordance with investment agreement,
the Group dominates the board of directors of Cybertech
and is able to direct the relevant activities of Cybertech
Group. The directors of the Company were therefore in
the opinion that Group has control over Cybertech Group
during the year despite its shareholding therein was
50% and Cybertech Group were qualified as subsidiaries
of the Company under IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements” for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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5. EEESTHERMATTTIEERE
ZEERR#
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

122

(a) Turnover

Turnover represents gross invoiced sales, less returns and
trade discounts.

The following table provides information about trade
receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with
customers.

Trade and notes receivables (Note 21) FEUE 55738 & EUW =1 (Hi3E21)

Contract liabilities (Note 28) AHEE(HE28)

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights
to consideration for work completed but not billed
at the reporting date on revenue. The contract assets
are transferred to receivables when the rights become
unconditional. This usually occurs when the Group provides
the invoice to the customer.

The contract liabilities mainly relate to the advance
consideration received from customers. RMB14,916,000 of
the contract liabilities as of 31 December 2022 has been
recognised as revenue for the year ended 31 December
2023 from performance obligations satisfied during the
year (Note 28).

The Group has applied the practical expedient to its sales
contracts for lithium-ion battery modules and related
accessories for mobile phones and digital electronic
appliances and therefore the above information does not
include information about revenue that the Group will be
entitled to when it satisfies the remaining performance
obligations under the contracts that had an original
expected duration of one year or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z20234% 12 431H 1} f“ﬁ/x

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. &EXZENoHER =)
(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (b) E¥HEB

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the
basis of internal reports about components of the Group
that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
makers in order to allocate resources to segments and to
assess their performance.

The Group is engaged in the business of original design
manufacturing (“ODM business”) as well as bare battery cells
(“Bare battery cells business”). The chief operating decision
makers (i.e. the Company’s directors) review the segment
information of these businesses and based on it to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance. The
Group’s reportable segments are set out below:

ODM business — Manufacture and supply of lithium-
ion battery modules, power banks, motive battery and
related accessories for branded mobile phone, notebooks
and tablets manufacturers within and outside China and
provision of processing services.

Bare battery cell business — Manufacture and sale of
lithium-ion bare battery cells for mobile phones, tablets and
power banks.

Others — Sales of raw materials, work-in-progress, and
rental income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1 F/Z

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued)

Segment information about these businesses is presented as

follows:

Segment revenue and results

Total Turnover
Less: Intersegment sales

Turnover

Segment profit/(loss)

Unallocated income
- Bank interest income
— Exchange gain
- Others

Unallocated expenses
— Other corporate expenses
- Auditor’s remuneration
- Legal and professional fees
- Staff costs
- Rental expense
- Finance costs
- Others

Profit before income tax
Income tax credit

Profit for the year

124

BEXE
- RERIHE

CEL

o EbEA/ (B8

KHERA
—RAFBMA
~E i
~Hfh

ADERX

— A RRIRAX
— RS
—ARREXER
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—HERX
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FEHES

AR

(b) ERERDER(4E)
ERZEXBNOHBERZ5IT

TEY R FEE

ODM Bare battery
business cell business
ODME# ERER
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTRT AR¥ETR
6,719,593 165,430
(973,757) (24,319)
5,745,836 141,111
108,815 3,195

2023

EEBERDTEHER )

Others

Hity
RMB'000

AR®TR

602,089
(343,808)

258,281

(4,144)

Total

@t
RMB’000
ARETR

7,487,112
(1,341,884)

6,145,228

107,866

10,365
1,439
159

(4,368)
(1,622)
(216)
(22,851)
(381)
(70,002)
(9,474)

10,915
3,299

14,214
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Total Turnover (re-presented)
Less: Intersegment sales

Turnover (re-presented)

Segment profit/(loss) (re-presented)

Unallocated income
- Bank interest income
- Exchange gain
- Others

Unallocated expenses
- Other corporate expenses
- Auditor’s remuneration
- Legal and professional fees
— Staff costs
- Rental expense
- Finance costs
— Others

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

RExB(KEY)
W AEEE

ExB(RED)

AEEF,/ (R (EE75)

RAEMA
~FAREMA
—~ BRI
~Efp

ADEHX
—HfrREIHX
~ %Y EE
—EEREEER
—BTRA
~-HERY
—BERAK
—HAth

W)’T SH AT R
FTEHFX

ARERET

(b) HR¥RDER(E)

ERERDBER

DEBY R FEAE (E)
2022
ODM  Bare battery

business  cell business Others
ODMZ7% BUER Hith
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT
7,086,189 167,031 585,523
(1,039,344) (26,800) (413,373)
6,046,845 140,231 172,150
111,898 (1,533) (23,624)

Total

FeEy
RMB'000
ARETT

7,838,743
(1,479,517)

6,359,226

86,741
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXFEKoHER &)

(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets

Unallocated corporate assets
— Property, plant and equipment
— Investment properties
— Financial assets at FVTOCI

— Bank balances and cash
— Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
— Amounts due from related parties
— Others

Consolidated total assets

Segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate liabilities
— Other payables
— Amounts due to directors
— Amounts due to related parties
— Deferred tax liabilities
— Others

Consolidated total liabilities

126

(b) ERERDER(4E)
PEEEREE

2023
ODM Bare battery
business cell business
ODME EREHK
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®BTR

DEPEE 4,476,533 170,027

ADBRREE

—WE - BB NERE

—REME

—RAFEFAEM

EHRENTHEE

—IRITHEBIA S

—FENRIE B2 R
HAth YR

—F’EHW@ AR

HEAaE 3,679,225 95,814

KB ARIAE
— H b AR08
—ENESHIE
—FEfSREE A L RUA
—REFHIEEE
—Hth

Total

et
RMB’000
ARBT T

4,646,560

40,164
95,511

20,940
2,525

136
60,005
4,514

4,870,355

3,775,039

2,209
49
957
5,360
686

3,784,300



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z20234% 12 431H 1} f“rt/x

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

6. EXFRDHER

(b) Reportable segments (Continued) (b) BIF|DE(E)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) THEERBE(E)
2022
ODM  Bare battery
business  cell business Total
ODMET BHER #E
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBTT ARBTET
Segment assets DESEE 4,741,510 146,545 4,888,055
Unallocated corporate assets ROBARIEE
— Property, plant and equipment — W% - BB KB 37,459
— Investment properties — B 45,922
— Financial assets at FVTOCI — B AT ERAEM
EHRENCREE 20,940
— Bank balances and cash —RTEHR KRR 3,891
— Prepayments, deposits and —TERIE  Re Rk
other receivables H fth FEU SR IR 420
— Amounts due from related parties —F’Eqﬁlﬁﬁ BATFRIA 37,346
— Others —Efh 7,618
Consolidated total assets e BAERE 5,041,651
Segment liabilities HEEE 3,881,707 81,006 3,962,713
Unallocated corporate liabilities RAOBEARAE
— Other payables HAth 5k 2,576
— Amounts due to directors —J'EﬁLé%m 34
— Amounts due to related parties —EREEALTRIA 719
— Deferred tax liabilities —IREBHIEEE 5,360
— Others —Hfb 988
Consolidated total liabilities meBBERE 3,972,390
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 Ct12023$72»’737 HIFFE

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXFEKoHER &)

(Continued)
(c¢) Other information () HaER
2023
ODM Bare battery
business cell business Others Total
ODM£% ETER Hit @t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR

128

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment NE  BERRETE 104,597 3,797 ;3 108,437
Depreciation of investment properties REMENE - - 6,842 6,842
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 1,642 4,769 341 6,752
Interest on lease liabilities BEEEME 545 730 66 1,341
Write-off of property, plant and equipment ME - BERRERH 1,080 69 - 1,149
Amortisation of intangible assets EFBEEH 1,292 18 - 1,310
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment loss recognised on ~ StENE SFBREUZERETZ

trade and note receivables, net (RERR)/HESEFE (3,609) 807 - (2,802)
Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment loss) recognised ~ ETERTEE - 24 REM RN ERTZ Y

on prepayments, deposits and other receivables, net HEEE/ (REERER)SE 9,961 (3.801) - 6,160
Write-off of inventories FENE 22,259 - - 22,259
Impairment loss on inventories HFERESR - 712 - 712
Research and development costs HEER 78,766 6.213 - 84,979
Income tax (credit)/expense FER(ER)/ B (3,956) 1 678 (3:299)
Additions to property, plant and equipment W% BRRRERE 28,070 1,181 - 29,251
Additions to intangible assets B EENE 119 33 - 152
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. ZEX Kk oHEE )

(Continued)
(c) Other information (Continued) (c) HERE)
2022
ODM  Bare battery

business  cell business Others Total
ODMEH  EUEHK Afts @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETR
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment NE - BERRENTE 99,506 3,804 63 103,373
Depreciation of investment properties RENENE - = 5,073 5,073
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREEERE 2,003 4617 324 6,944
Interest on lease liabilities REARME 964 1,010 26 2,000
Write-off of property, plant and equipment WE - BERREMS 3,706 63 - 3,769
Amortisation of intangible assets EFBEEH 2218 18 - 2,236

Impairment loss on trade and note receivables, net EWESTERERZERE
BRI 6,110 1438 - 7,548

Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment loss) on FNFE ke R AR

prepayments, deposits and other receivables, net BZHEEE/(REFEER)FE 6,576 (956) - 5,620
Write-off of inventories FENE 3,747 - - 3,747
Impairment loss on inventories FERERR - 54 - 54
Research and development costs WEER 120,302 1,772 = 128,074
Income tax expense RS 5,471 694 671 6,836
Additions to property, plant and equipment % - BEREZERE 74,797 6,391 - 81,188
Additions to intangible assets EREENE 1,886 = = 1,886
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1 F/Z

6.

130

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(d) Turnover from major products

6. EXHERIIBER #)

(d) TEEmMZEXE

The Group’s disaggregated turnover from its major products

were as follows:

ODM Business

Turnover recognised at a point in time
Mobile phone batteries
Tablet batteries
Notebook batteries
Power banks
Other batteries
Others

Turnover recognised over time
Others

ODM business

Bare battery cell business

Turnover recognised at a point in time
Lithium-ion bare battery cells

Others

Revenue from other sources
Rental income

Total turnover

ODME %

PR — B BN A0
FHE

IRt

FRATH

BHER

Hib Bt

£t

E-BREEAERNEER
Hity

ODM¥E %

RE-RBHBEIANEXE
EEETET

Hits

H WA SRR
HE2 WA

L E

KEREEERERZD

2023
RMB’000
AR®TF T

4,263,980
746,527
252,865
211,897
212,239

36,900

5,724,408

21,428

5,745,836

141,111

252,256

6,139,203

6,025

6,145,228

BEXEWT

2022
RMB'000
AREFT
(re-presented)

(RE7)

4,831,644
556,494
246,317
273,634

81,895
34,772

6,024,756

22,089

6,046,845

140,231

165,761

6,352,837

6,389

6,359,226



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(d) Turnover from major products (Continued)

(e)

(f)

To confirm the current year's presentation, processing
income of RMB22,089,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022 has been reclassified from "Others" segment to
"ODM business" segment. The Group considered the
reclassification better reflects the nature and financial
effects of the business activities in which respective
operating segment engages.

Geographical information

Analysis of the Group’s turnover and results as well as
analysis of the Group’s carrying amount of each relevant
segment’s assets and additions to property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets by geographical market
have not been presented as they are substantially generated
from or situated in the PRC.

Turnover contributed by the subsidiary in India was minimal
to the Group's turnover.

Information about major customers

Revenue from major customers, each of them accounted for
10% or more of the Group's revenue, are set out below:

Customer A ZPA
Customer B =B
Customer C BFEC
Customer D =FD

RE IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1FF/Z

6. EXFRDHER

4

(d) EREMZEXE(E)

(e)

(f)

AERFENEIRE - HE2022
FNRANBLEFENMIKRAARYE
22,089,000 E Al Efth [ HEFHEE
[ODME D E - NEBRAEFHEA
BT RS A DI B E S
ME RIS RE -

& & K
AEBWEZY|LH R TMISE DAL
EEBREESTARNEEGFES A
HEABERAEWE BEREERER
BEMNEEES T REAAEZRZHR
FBIEESA R E -

NEMBAREMMNEEREARENZ
EEMEMTEE -

FEEFER
REFTBEFPZHF(HEIEAEEK
2= 10% 3 A B)EFIuT -

2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBFR ARBT T
1,425,243 825,381
1,220,056 1,669,254
1,070,611 928,671
961,690 907,521
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #; 22023412 431H 1}

7. OTHER REVENUE

Gain on acquisition of financial assets at
FVTOCI (Note 23)

Government grants

Interest income

Sales of moulds

Compensation from suppliers

Sundry income

BERAFESFAHEBE2EKED

T RVEEE 2 W (M E23)

BURT 2 Rh
M BHA
HERA
HEmEfE
FERUWA

The government grants represent subsidies received from the PRC
Government to appreciate the industrial contribution to the city,
substantial amount of export trade and technology development
incurred by the Company’s wholly-owned PRC-based subsidiaries.
There are no unfulfilled conditions relating to the grants.

8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

This is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Auditor’s remuneration:
— audit service
— review service
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (including depreciation
recorded in research and development
costs of RMB2,059,000
(2022: RMB2,574,000))
Depreciation of investment properties
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment loss on inventories
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses
Cost of processing income
Operating lease rentals for office premises
Research and development costs
Staff costs (including staff costs recorded
in research and development costs of
RMB42,232,000 (2022: RMB61,096,000))
(Note 10)

Net foreign exchange gain

132

H bWz
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBT T
- 17,618
11,728 16,527
10,365 12,798
10,091 5,128
18 286
8,300 6,236
40,502 58,593

BT RRh TR B P BB R 2 /R - ARSA
REZPEE2EMB AR ZMAAIELNESE
ARl RBHAE S RERMFHE - 2F2UY
BT AERE AR AR o

BRATS 8 A& R
BB (G A)TFIBEE ¢

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBT T
ZEEM S
— ZH R 1,379 1,467
— &R 243 259
M - R REETE
(BIETAHZEERN
#rE ARK2,059,0007T
(20224 + AR¥2,574,0007T))
108,437 103,373
KEMERE 6,842 5,073
FRAEEENE 6,752 6,944
B EEHE 1,310 2,236
FERERE 712 54
BRAERZ 2 FEKA 5,710,408 5,883,883
INTWA Z B AR 16,042 18,636
WAELEHERS 14,953 19,370
HEER 84,979 128,074
BIRA(BIEFTAREERN
BTRAARY42,232,0007TC
(20224 : AR¥61,096,0007T))
(FfzE10) 432,903 500,865
R C e (1,439) (19,504)



10.

11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

RE IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1FF/Z

9. HMKERMX

2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®T R AREET T

Write-off of inventories (Note i) TFEMEE (HEED) 22,259 3,747

Write-off of property, plant and equipment %1% - = KR &S 1,149 3,769

Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BB MREER

equipment 494 74

Sundry expenses MIER 923 476

24,825 8,066

Note: BT -

) Included in the amount, there were RMB19,453,000 which ) ZEFETP - AR®19,453,0007T & & E
represented inventories damaged caused by flooding of [ B | ERREREHLTERRNLIK N
factories and warehouses in the SCUD Battery Industrial EERKMEENTFEERL -HEREAH
Park caused by Typhoon “Haikuai”. Up to the date of the H AR RERREDERES - REEMF
report, the related insurance claim was in the process and ] BE(E
no compensation is accrued.

STAFF COSTS 10. B T A

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T R ARBT T

Directors’ remuneration (Note 11) BEMS (FIE11) 3,446 3,272

Other staff costs Ha8TRA 409,271 463,372

Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIREFIET B LK 20,186 34,221

432,903 500,865

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION 11. EE R {EE H M

(a) Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and
the Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) is as follows:

Salaries, housing allowances, other
allowances and benefits in kind

Fees

Other emoluments:

Retirement benefits scheme contributions

(a)

RIEE B R aHEHI(5622F ) F3831K K&
ARI(BEBEZEEFEER) BOI(FE622G

HH - BERRL - EfE R

EYEH
BE
Hisf g -

BIRER BT

BRBENEEMENT
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARET T
1,474 1,388
1,924 1,856
48 28
3,446 3,272
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1 F/Z

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION

134

(Continued)

(b)

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors (b)

are as follows:

Feng Ming Zhu

Lian Xiu Qin

Ni Chen Hui (appointed on
9 October 2023)

Loke Yu

Heng Ja Wei Victor

Lam Yau Yiu

Cheung Wai Kwok Gary

BT
BAEE
REE (7202310898
BEZ)
REIG AR
TR #
MR
KEEH

Salaries,
housing
allowances,
other
allowances
and benefits
in kind
M EE
BE - Hit
BER
BYEN
RMB’'000
AR¥TR

572
664

1,474

M. EEREEFHFHN

2023

Retirement
benefits

scheme

Fees contributions

RBHKEF

we sTEIER
RMB000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥TR
214 16

214 16

37 16

487 -

324 -

324 -

324 -
1,924 48

AEBRMESINOMEFBRT

Total
emoluments

At
RMB'000
ARBT T

802
894

291
487
324
324
324

3,446



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1FF/Z

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION
(Continued)

(b)

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors
are as follows: (Continued)

Feng Ming Zhu 5B

Lian Xiu Qin BEE

Hou Li (term of appointment & ({EEA7 2022465 A27H
expired on 27 May 2022) [E)

Loke Yu e

Heng Ja Wei Victor TR 4

Lam Yau Yiu MR

Cheung Wai Kwok Gary RAE

During both years, none of the directors have received any
bonus payments paid by the Group.

M. EBEEREEFHFHN

(b)

Salaries,
housing
allowances,
other
allowances
and benefits
in kind
- BE
28 - HAh
AR
BT
RMB’000
ARBFT

644
744

1,388

AEBRESINOMESFBNT (&)

2022
Retirement
benefits
scheme Total
Fees  contributions emoluments

RMB'000
ARETT

196
196

65
466
311
311
311

1,856

R E S E R
MEMEES

RIKGER
AR Mers
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT AR®TRT

14 854
14 954

= 65
= 466
= 31
= 31
= 311

28 3,272

I EE R AR E S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R AR Y A

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1 F/Z

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION 11.ZEEREEHFM»)

(Continued)

(c) The five highest paid individuals include two directors for () BEZE2023F12A31BLEFEE A¥&e
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: two), details of FALTBIERZ(2022F : MB)ES -
whose emoluments are set out above. BEMWSFBIHN L -

The emoluments of the remaining three (2022: three) non- Her=4(2022%F : =8 ) IFESHe 5 b
director highest paid individuals are as follows: ATBIEIT :

2023 2022

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBFR AR¥TT

Salaries, housing allowances, other e - BEEEL - HEfbEEL

allowances and benefits in kind REWEF 3,755 3,451
Retirement benefits scheme RRAENIET B R
contributions 48 45
3,803 3,496
The emoluments of the remaining non-director, highest HRFESHRITMATHOMENTAT
paid individuals are within the following bands: #HE :
2023 2022

Nil to RMB901,100 (equivalent to Nil ~ ZZ& AR¥901,100;c(HHEREZEE

to HK$1,000,000) 1,000,000/ 7T) 2 2
RMB1,802,201 to RMB2,252,750 AR#1,802,2010E ARY2,252,750

(equivalent to HK$2,000,001 to JL(#EE K 2,000,00180E

HK$2,500,000) 2,500,000/ 7T ) - 1
RMB2,252,751 to RMB2,703,300 AR¥2,252,75170 2 AR¥2,703,300

(equivalent to HK$2,500,001 to JL(FE R 2,500,001 E

HK$3,000,000) 3,000,000/ 7T) 1 -

(d) During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to (d) PRMEFEAN AEEBERNTLERSE

the five highest paid individuals (including both directors and AT (BEEZRES)HARAEMES
employees) or any directors of the Company as an inducement SAHMEMIBNE - {ERWRSIINAZE B
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss ARG ERHRE) - SEABERAFE -
of office. None of the directors has waived or agreed to waive REEFERY EEENEKRERES
any emoluments during both years. & -
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12.

13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCE COSTS

RITRERAME
BRI RIEN S

Interest on bank borrowings
Interest on discounted notes receivable
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 18)

St

 : f

o

GNDEN- N[

Less: Capitalisation of borrowing costs

No borrowing cost is capitalised in current year. In last year,
borrowing costs capitalised arose on the specific and general
borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a weighted
average capitalisation rate of 7.3% to expenditure on
construction in progress.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

No provision for income tax has been made by the Company
as it is not subject to tax in the Cayman Islands or other
jurisdictions save for the PRC where it conducts its principal
business operations.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group's profits were neither arising in nor derived from Hong
Kong during both years, and all subsidiaries incorporated in
Hong Kong incurred losses during the current and prior years.

Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated based on
the estimated taxable income for PRC taxation purposes at the
rate of taxation applicable for the year.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the subsidiaries
of the Group that established in the PRC are subject to PRC
Enterprise Income Tax rate at 25%. Subsidiaries established in
the PRC which are qualified as an Advance and New Technology
Enterprise ("ANTE”) for a 3-year period are entitled to a
concessionary Enterprise Income Tax rate of 15%, subject to the
fulfilment of certain conditions on yearly basis during the 3-year
period.

MEREMS(HFE18)

RE IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 220234 12 431 H 1 F/Z

12. ®E KA

2023 2022

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

62,978 61,423

7,024 18,249

1,341 2,000

71,343 81,672

- (3,890)

71,343 77,782
AEELEBERAARENE - £F - AR

ZERARAE LR R—BERE S B
e TR A0 B0 B9 S 5 PR A 0 B AL %739 £t

i
B o
=5

FrEB(ER) BixX
MG ERTEBEHEES - ADAE
BEMNS BB E A TERE IR - HA
DAL A S B -

13.

HREMFARESEN G MRAFEREBEL
TRIERAEE - MATH R E S ML RIS
RAPRAFERBEFEERSER - SUY
ERBEENSRELEE -

FREIGRAEHRBEIREREBERERD
RIER BB IEAEN G ERTEBRAME -

RIBPBEICEPSHOE - AEBET B A S
NEVRIZ B RATS R R25% 87 © B
VA ABRIERSH=FNSIEMERE( S
i3 DEMB AR A RZA15%MEEMEHE
BE - ARG =FHREEmE s T -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1 F/Z

N

13.

138

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (continued) 13.

On 22 December 2022, Dongguan Hongde was approved to
continue as an ANTE for a period of 3 years and the certificate
number is GR202244005132. It is subject to income tax at 15%
accordingly.

Details of the income tax (credit)/expense in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
as follows:
Current tax — PRC BIEARE —
Enterprise Income Tax: REMEH

— Tax for the year —REFEHIE

— Over provision in prior years —BAFEBERE
Deferred tax — current year (Note 31) EERIE — ANFE (FTEE31)
Income tax (credit)/expense FrEB (%), Fx

FrigBi (%), B @)

2022128228 © R 5= B 13 O # &
RETEMCE RBA=F BFEERA
GR202244005132 ° H1215% &) & 4 44 A8 &
FriS%t

AFAGABREEMEEKERNAFHRE
%)/ FXFBWT

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
638 682

- (506)

(3,937) 6,660
(3,299) 6,836



13. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (continued)

14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The reconciliation between profit before income tax and income
tax (credit)/expense in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income is as follows:

Profit before income tax

Tax at tax rates applicable in the relevant

jurisdictions

Tax effect of revenue not taxable for tax purposes
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax

purposes

Deduction of research and development costs
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Tax effect of temporary difference not recognised
Utilisation of tax losses not previously recognised

Over provision in prior years

Effect of concessionary rate granted to

the PRC subsidiaries
Others

Income tax (credit)/expense

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was declared for the years ended 31 December

2023 and 2022.

= A\
e

B 75 R AR Y R E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1FF/Z

B TS B ALt 7

BEAR AR RN R E
HTIE

BABHRRANREZE

RRIB S h OB &

R % & A
AERHBABERORBEE
NERERR M Z AT &
BABERERZHAER
BEFEBERE
RPhEELREENEN
-2

HAh

PREEi (%), Fx

14. BB

KRS,

13. IS H(ER) BX @)

fReiEm R E M2 R ER T RS T AR A
EPTSH(HR), P 2 HRAT

2023
RMB’000

ARBFR

10,915

3,391
(2,118)

17,594
(20,236)

7,015
(2,590)
(6,299)

253
(309)

(3,299)

2022
RMB’000
ARETIT

26,902

6,966
(891)

19,403
(31,673)

8,206

6,060
(730)
(506)

H E2023F N2022F12A31HItEFEN &£
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N

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1 F/Z

15.

140

EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. 8RR EF|

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

RRBHA ANEETREAR REE RN R A

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the TEEE -
following data:
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREFTT
Profit for the purposes of basic and diluted RRAESRERREERFH
earnings per share (profit for the year = M (A RIEE A B

attributable to the owners of the Company) REEGEF)

20,109 24,038

Number of ordinary shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares — FRFAEHE G REE AN N #5E B K

for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings LB ke
per share

Diluted earnings per share is of the same amount as the basic
earnings per share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary
shares outstanding as at 31 December 2023 (2022: same).

HERE

2023 2022

‘000 ‘000

i i

1,090,001 1,090,001
SREFENSERERERBNER - BA

R2023F 12 A3 BB EEEENEHITLR
A% (20224 : #8RA) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 220234 12 431 H 1 F/Z

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. % - BENRRE

Electronic
equipment,
Plant and Motor furniture ~ Construction  Leasehold
Building machinery  vehicles and fixtures in progress improvements Total
(A ik
e HEREE hE  BLRZE ERIR VELD Eh
Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
WE  AREBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR

Cost A

1 January 2022 0251718 433335 563,729 9,584 69,774 16,987 136,901 1,230,310
Additions AE 30 53,073 19 3921 20473 3,672 81,188
Disposals e (495 (3054 - (1,000) - - (30)
Written off i - (170 - (7.459) - - (20179
Exchange realignment ERAE - 1335 - - - - 1335
31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 20225128318 R202351A1A 432,870 574,875 9,603 65,236 37,460 140,573 1,260,617
Additions AE - 23279 276 2,951 2,704 4 29,251
Disposals e - (1% (152) (1275) - - (1873)
Written off i - (11,180 @) (9,163) - - (2043%)
Transferred to investment properties #\RENE 17 (59,000) - - - - - (59,000)
Exchange realignment B - 2,811) = - - = (2.811)
31 December 2023 23E12A31H 373,810 568,227 8,260 57,149 40,164 140,614 1,188,884
Accumulated depreciation ZitirE

1 January 2022 W2E1A1R 2,19 279,536 6,686 53,658 - 72,747 415,421
Charge for the year TEERY 13,002 68,325 906 7,609 - 13,531 103,373
Disposals e (15 (16704) - (740) - - (174%9)
Written off it - (9,381) - (7,029) - - (16,410)
Exchange realignment fE i AR - 33 - - _ _ 33
31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 20225128318 k202351 A1A 15,781 322,099 1,592 53,498 - 86,278 485,248
Charge for the year REERX 11,218 75,751 770 6,733 - 13,965 108,437
Disposals e S (103%) (1303 (1,000 - - (12,6%)
Written off i - (10629 (87) (8,570) - - (1986)
Transferred to investment properties 8 \RENE 17 (2,569) - - - - - (2,569)
Exchange realignment AR - (737) = = = = (737)
31 December 2023 20235128318 24,430 376,092 6,972 50,661 - 100,243 558,398
Net book value RARE

31 December 2023 20235128318 349,440 192,135 1,288 7,088 40,164 40,371 630,486
31 December 2022 2022%12A31H 417,089 252,776 2,01 11,738 37,460 54,295 775,369
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R AR Y A

N
For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1 F/Z
16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17.

142

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, plant and machinery with a carrying
amount of RMB177,000 (2022: RMB212,000) has been pledged
to a landlord as collaterals for electricity expenses payable (Note
25).

As at 31 December 2023, building with a carrying amount of
RMB304,324,000 (2022: RMB412,421,000) has been pledged by
the Group in favour of a bank to secure a bank loan granted by
a bank to the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, plant and machinery with a carrying
amount of RMB37,007,000 (2022: RMB13,982,000) has been
pledged by the Group in favour of a bank to secure a bank loan
granted by a bank to the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, construction in progress with a
carrying amount of RMB20,592,000 (2022: RMB17,887,000)
have been pledged by the Group in favour of the banks to
secure bank loans granted by the banks to the Group (Notes 25
and 29).

16. Y15 - BMERRE #)

7202312 A31H » BREE A A R ¥177,0007T
(20224 :+ ARR#212,00070) = K2 B 1B A
FERTE BRI IR F 3 3 (FIRE25) -

2023128318 - BREE & A K #304,324,0007T
(20224 : AR#5412,421,0007T ) ST AN E K
HFERIT - DUESRI TR T AER ZR1TER °

20231283108 + BRE B & A R #37,007,0007T
(20224 : ARR1#13,982,0007T ) KR = K ibe= B2 e 7K
EEIIRTIRTT - WESHRITR TAEE ZRTE

e
e

72023124318 @ BREE A A K #20,592,000
(20224 : AR#17,887,0007T ) EEETIRE 4
ANEBIMIATIRT - UEBRTR T AEE 2R
TER(FMIFE255%29) -

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REY*
Notes RMB’000
P aE ARBT T
Cost @S
1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 and 2022F1H18 ~ 2022612318 &

1 January 2023 2023%F1H1H 106,797
Transferred from property, plant and equipment B - BERFHEEA 16,# 59,000
31 December 2023 2023%12H31H 165,797
Accumulated depreciation ZEtineE
1 January 2022 2022%1A1H 55,802
Charge for the year REERX 5,073
31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 202212 A31H X2023F1 511 60,875
Charge for the year REERE 6,842
Transferred from property, plant and equipment B - BEREEEBA 16,# 2,569
31 December 2023 20234128318 70,286
Net book value IREFE
31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H 95,511
31 December 2022 2022%12H31H 45,922



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

#  During the year, the Group transferred certain properties
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB56,431,000 from
property, plant and equipment to investment properties due
to change in use of the properties from owner-occupation
to leasing out.

The Group leased out certain buildings located in the PRC
under operating lease to Scud Stock, where Mr. Fang lJin is the
common controlling shareholder and has beneficial interest. The
fair value of the building at 31 December 2023 amounted to
RMB109,900,000 (2022: RMB74,231,000).

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2023 and 31 December 2022 has been arrived at
on market value basis carried out by Ascent Partners Valuation
Service Limited, an independent valuer who holds a recognised
and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience
in the location and category of the investment property being
valued.

The fair value was determined based on the market comparison
approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square metre basis.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment properties
has been categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”. All of the fair
values of the investment properties as at 31 December 2023 and
2022 is a level 3 recurring fair value measurement, which uses
significant unobservable inputs in arriving at fair value. During
the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no
transfers between level 1 and level 2, or transfers into or out of
level 3.

RE IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 220234 12 431 H 1 F/Z

17. REWZE (»)

# RAFE AEEEYME  BEMEED
T AR E A ARE56,431,0007T
MMEEREYNE - ARHERNEORSR
ERERAZALHAE -

AEERESEHESETUNRFTENEFE
HATRERRD  HeAERZARZERE
PEAR BRI RS B sk - FA2023F 1243184
FZAFEAEARE109,900,0007T (20224 :
AER#74,231,0007T) °

M2023F 12 A318 K20226F12A31H » A&E
ZIREYEZ A FETDRBY AT EZRAER
RRA(FHERARMEEFTEER - WHEERAE
B R EME L HELR B GE
BT 2 HEETEEEE -

RFEDRBETISLEESZTNELBYEN
AT IHEERIR T F K EBRETE -

REBEZREYEN R T EF 2B IRBEREME
HEERNE IR AT EFEIMAEHLTE
= A RFIEIEDLE - R2023F K%20224F12
RA31BZBRENMEZ ATEBE=RKE
MAFEANE  EQAFEFERTEATAEHR
ZEAZEMAE - B ZE2023F 2022612 A
BNEIEFE  RFEFAEWERE IR RE2R
2R - IR A SR B3 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1 F/Z

17.

144

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2023 are as
follows:

Fair value hierarchy

NP EER
Buildings located in the PRC Level 3
I B H R T BE=R

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rate per annum:

Buildings Over the remaining lease term of the land
As at 31 December 2023, investment properties with a carrying
amount of RMB95,511,000 (2022: RMB45,922,000) have been

pledged by the Group in favour of the banks to secure bank
loans granted by the banks to the Group (Notes 25 and 29).

17. REWE »)

R2023F 128310 BEEAAEBREMERR

FEBRARZEMNT

Carrying
value at

31 December
2023

S

20234
12A31H
ZBREE
RMB’000
AR®T T

95,511

Fair

value at

31 December
2023

S

20234
12A31H8
ZAFE
RMB’000
AR¥T T

109,900

B EPEANBARER AT FRFTE :

B TR T A

#2023%12H318 © BREE A AR95,511,0007T
(2022% : AR#45,922,00070) R EWMED B
NEBEIFTIRT  UERBRTETFAEE

IRITER(MI5E25%29) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. LEASES

The Group has lease contracts for various items of leasehold land
held under operating lease, factory, office and staff dormitory
used in its operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront
to acquire the leased land from the owners with lease periods
over the lease term, and no ongoing payments will be made
under the terms of these land leases. Leases of factory, office
and staff dormitory generally have lease terms between 1 to
5 years (2022: between 1 to 5 years). Generally, the Group is
restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside
the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use assets and
the movements during the year are as follows:

1 January 2022 20221818
Additions INE

Charge for the year FARX

Disposal (Note 23) & (fF5E23)

Leases terminated during the — FRKILHE
year

Exchange realignment I H T

31 December 2022 and 20229 12A318 &
1 January 2023 2023F1H1H
Additions INE

Charge for the year FARX
Exchange realignment M 3, 8

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

As at 31 December 2023, leasehold land with a carrying
amount of RMB6,150,000 (2022: RMB6,340,000) have
been pledged by the Group in favour of the banks to
secure bank loans granted by the banks to the Group (Notes
25 and 29).

ARE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 220234 12 431 H 1 F/Z

18. &

REERELEPMEANSHRBREEHEE
BEMHEET - TR #J#/‘*&,E\I%%J
BHRESH - AEEE — X MEEMNEERIEA
LAMERERE ﬁixﬂﬂai%i,ﬁﬁmrm%ﬁ/\# Y|
E4i - BT EREZE T ENGERE
BEFH IR MAEREIEEHE—RE
1E5FHER (20224 : 1B55) c —fkM =
REBTESEAEBUINEREREHRREEE -

(a) ERMERE

REEFEREEENREERNF AN E
E
Factory, office
and staff
Leasehold land dormitory Total
I #Aa

AE i BIBES et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T AR¥T T
8,885 21,397 30,282
- 978 978
(253) (6,691) (6,944)
(2,292) = (2,292)
- (142) (142)
= 329 329
6,340 15,871 22,211
- 1,122 1,122
(190) (6,562) (6,752)
- (150) (150)
6,150 10,281 16,431

72023F12A318 REE A AR
6,150,0007T (20224 : A R #6,340,000
L)WM TEE L E%ﬁwil%fﬁ?fﬁ%fﬁ
17 - URLERITIR FASBMRITERIER
A (PffsE25829) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1 F/Z

18. LEASES (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements
during the year are as follows:

At 1 January 2022

18. HE (&)

(b) HEEE

R2022F181H

Additions NE

Interest expense (Note 12) FEFXZ (KEE12)
Lease payments HERK

Leases terminated during the year FRKIEHEE
Exchange realignment b 5, 8 B

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 72022412 H31H K202351H1H

Additions

Interest expense (Note 12)
Lease payments

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2023

Future lease payments are due as follows:

Within one year
More than one year but not
exceeding two years

Total

146

NE

FEFXZ (FEE12)
HEMZK

bE N

M2023F12H31H

31 December 2023

2023512A31H

Total

Interest of the

minimum lease  minimum lease

payments
BREHE
NRAE
RMB’000
AR®T R

—FR 7,406
—FE HETBBRE
4,981

e
G
ik
—+

12,387

payments
REHE
HRZHE
RMB’000
AR%TR

675

129

804

HEBBENEMERNFANBENT

RMB’000
ARMBT T

23,026
978
2,000
(8,551)
(124)
413

17,742

1,122
1,341
(8,392)

(230)

11,583

AREENRRATHERE :

Present value
of the minimum
lease payments
REEE
NRZBE
RMB’000
AR¥TR

6,731

4,852

11,583
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18. LEASES (continued) 18. *ﬁ% =P
(b) Lease liabilities (Continued) (b) HEEBE)
31 December 2022
2022 12A31H
Total Interest of the Present value of
minimum lease minimum lease the minimum lease
payments payments payments
REEE RIEEE HIEMEE
R4 R FIE Rz BE
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETT ARETT
Within one year —FR 8,338 1,320 7,018
More than one year but not —FLA L ETNBBRE
exceeding two years 6,911 600 6,311
More than two years but not  RFIA HETBBRE
exceeding five years 4,524 111 4,413
Total st 19,773 2,031 17,742
The Group leases its investment properties as disclosed in Note AEBERBELCEHERHHEMT17MEE
17 consisting of a factory building and a warehouse building MIEEWE  BRARTEN—ERE R —IE
in PRC under operating lease arrangement. Rental income BE - AEERFREZNASWABARE
recognised by the Group during the year was RMB6,025,000 6,025,0007T (20224 : AK¥6,389,0007T) °

(2022: RMB6,389,000).

At 31 December 2023, the undiscounted lease payments 72023F 12 A318 » NEBE R KRR AR %

receivable by the Group in future period under non-cancellable MR TR REHEE HE EUCRITIREE N R
operating lease with its tenants are as follow: R

2023 2022

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARBTT

Within one year —&FR 5,303 3,937
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19.

148

2 [

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BILEE
Software
B4
RMB’000
AREFT
Cost %S
1 January 2022 20221818 19,242
Additions NE 1,886
31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 2022412H31HKX2023F1H1H 21,128
Additions INE 152
31 December 2023 2023412H31H 21,280
Amortisation and impairment B R E
1 January 2022 20221 A1R 14,700
Charge for the year RFEERY 2,236
31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 20224128318 KX2023F181H 16,936
Charge for the year REERZ 1,310
31 December 2023 2023512H31H 18,246
Net book value SREFE
31 December 2023 2023412H31H 3,034
31 December 2022 2022%12A31H 4,192
Note: MisE -
i)  The amortisation charge recognised for the year is included ) AFEEEROBERX DR AR ERR
in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement Hi 2 E RS R TTBFX AT

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z20234% 12 431H 1} f“ﬁ/x

20. INVENTORIES 20. 78

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBT T
Raw materials B 343,246 398,091
Work in progress X 144,493 162,975
Finished goods BUAK o 86,328 226,210
574,067 787,276
At 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of inventories 72023F12A318 » R KA SR FER
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value amounted EES R FEMNRAEAARKS74,067,000
to RMB574,067,000 (2022: RMB787,276,000), after provision T0(20224F :« AR #787,276,0000) * EF E
for impairment of RMB2,218,000 (2022: RMB1,506,000). During BB (E B AR 2,218,000 (20224 + A
the year, impairment loss of inventories of RMB712,000 (2022: K #1,506,0007T) - FN - FEREEEAR
RMB54,000) and a write-off of inventories of RMB22,259,000 #712,00070(20224F © AR #54,0007T ) M 1F
(2022: RMB3,747,000) were recognised in consolidated B85 A R #22,259,0007T(20224F + AR

statement of profit or loss. 3,747,00070) ERER A B R IER o

21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES 21. EWEZRERERREE
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBT T
Trade receivables FEUNE 5508 2,252,419 2,023,905
Notes receivables e ZE 162,366 41,182
2,414,785 2,065,087
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts J& : RIZRE (88,473) (101,290)
2,326,312 1,963,797
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21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

150

An aged analysis of trade and notes receivables at the end of

the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of

allowance, is as follows:

0 to 60 days
61 to 180 days
181 to 365 days

0%60H
612180H
181%2365H

The average credit period granted on sale of goods ranged from

60 to 90 days.

Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the

year were as follows:

1 January
Written off
Impairment losses recognised

Reversal of impairment losses previously

recognised

31 December

Notes receivables are stated at FVTOCI.

1TH1H

WsH

ERERREEE
BERRZREEERED

12H31H

The directors are of

the opinion that the carrying amounts of notes receivables

approximate to their fair value.

21. BEIRE 5

REREWRE
BERER  EMRBEENREY

RN

SR NEREBROREONIT

2023
RMB’000
AR®T T

1,745,627
540,735
39,950

2,326,312

2022
RMB'000
ARETTT

1,305,297
652,905
5,595

1,963,797

RTHERMNFHEEHRNF60E0R °

2023
RMB’000
AR®TF T

101,290
(10,015)
3,680

(6,482)

88,473

2022
RMB’000
ARETTT

93,742

19,490

(11,942)

101,290

FEWRIB TR N AR AR M 2 H R ARR
EERRRREBE 2 ERERKSE 2 A FER

++

Eo
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 220234 12 431 H 1 F/Z

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22.F8{f&1E - &R HEWERE

RECEIVABLES

Prepayments AR
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts /& @ RIZAREME

Deposits and other receivables ReRHEMERRIE
VAT recoverable AT e ER

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF T ARETTT

Deposits paid for acquisition of property, HBEYE  BEMRENE MRS

plant and equipment
Refundable deposits RER
Others HAth

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts i : FIZEEE &

Total 1=t
Less: Current portion /Dl mENER D
Non-current portion EMRENEL S

Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the
year were as follows:

1 January 1H1H
Impairment losses recognised B HERREEE
Reversal of impairment losses WA ER I BEEERE

previously recognised

31 December 12A31H

None of the above assets is past due. The financial assets
included in the above balances relate to receivables for which
there was no recent history of default.

105,695 198,657
(2,024) (2,391)
103,671 196,266
16,825 18,251
663 5,815
604 31,494
18,292 22,833
36,384 78,393
(14,528) (8,001)
21,856 70,392
125,527 266,658
(125,527) (235,469)
- 31,189

FARZERBEOESHIT

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF T ARETTT

10,392 4,772

8,102 6,948
(1,942) (1,328)
16,552 10,392

NEBEEWARBE - A LEHPBENESHE
A BN LT A B {9 RC Bk FEROR -
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N

23.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. I AFEAHMZEWZNS

152

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

Non-current FERE
Equity investment designated at FVTOCI

(Note) REAESE (M)

Note:

On 7 November 2022, Scud Battery, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an investment
agreement (the “Investment Agreement”) with Fujian Scud
Power Technology Co., Ltd. (the “Target Company”), a related
company of the Company as disclosed in Note 37(a), pursuant to
which Scud Battery has conditionally agreed to acquire, and the
Target Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue to
Scud Battery, 5.68% of equity interest in the Target Company,
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Investment
Agreement.

Below is summary accounting impact at initial recognition of the
transaction:

Fair value of consideration KEBEAFE

Less: carrying amount of right-of-use assets
(Note 18(a))

Less: other taxes and surcharge of the

transaction

Gain on acquisition of financial assets at
FVTOCI (Note 7)

MEE

S AR ATEM AL 2ERELD

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR AR¥TT
20,940 20,940

fiat -

202211878 » REBEM(A R RIEES
EHBAR) BEERERD NEEERAA
([BERAR]]) » —MERME37@IFEN AR A]
ZBEERT IR EHHE(EERR]) - &
It REBREHEGEGREWE  MEZEAR
BEMERERBREHZNERRIEERRE
PR AL B [2 3217 B 15 A A)5.68 % HYARAE ©

UTRERERR RN GTHERE

RMB’000
ARETTT

20,940

B R E EREE(FRE18(a)

(2,292)

B X SRR A BIA KK i E A

(1,030)

BERAVEFAEMCEEARENSREE 2 W (H5E7)

17,618
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23.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. R AFEIAEMZEUKEIHS

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE MEE®)
INCOME (continued)
The movements in fair value of equity investment classified as DERATEEREINNRERE 2 AT EE
level 3 in the fair value hierarchy are as follows: T -
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARBT T

1 January 1H1H 20,940 -
Addition INE - 20,940
31 December 12A31H 20,940 20,940
As at 31 December 2023, the fair value of equity investment R2023F 128318 » D AE3IFMBRERE
classified as level 3 is calculated using discounted cash flow AVFEDEAFRRMEESE - WHT A
approach with the following key assumptions: T RS RER ¢

Re-levered beta 1.54 - ERE N EN N 1.54
Company specific risk premium 2.00% 1B 515 7E [ B S B = 2.00%
Market risk premium 7.12% miERE B &E 7.12%
Risk-free interest rate 3.77% 2 B e 1) = 3.77%
A higher in any of the above parameters would result in a AT — 285 A B BURER BN D TER
decrease in the fair value of equity investment, and vice versa. }‘ " [ROZINA o
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24.

154

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED
PARTIES

The amounts due from/to related parties are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

The information disclosed pursuant to Section 383 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) is as follows:

Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd. RERERKMD AR AT

(Note i) (Pt D)

EBTEB New Energy Technology ZEFFERREER AR
Co., Ltd. (Note ii) (B aED)

Fujian Scud Technology Co., Ltd. RERERE AR AR
(Note i) (PftaED)

Scud Communication Technology RERRBAM AR QA
Co., Ltd. (Note i) (BaED

Fujian Scud Power Technology Co., 1BERERBHEHZAR AT
Ltd. (Note ii) (P =)

Notes:

(

) Its director and shareholder, Mr. Fang Jin, is also the
controlling shareholder of the Company.

(i) Its director is the son of Mr. Fang Jin.

24. FEU HEBE A LB

U/ NEBALTHRBREBER 280E

HERIEE -

RBEEE N BMEGI(E622% ) F383 (AR TR

BRI -
Maximum
amount
outstanding
during the year
FR&E
RETH
RMB’000
ARBFT

49,063

74,692

342

12,428

6,811

GER

Balance at
31 December
2023
74202345
12A31H
Wi R
RMB’000
AR¥T T

34,755

63,721

12,428

6,545

117,449

Balance at

31 December
2022
720224
12A31H
YA R
RMB’000
AREFT

49,063

61,278

38

12,428

6,811

129,618

(i) HEFERBRRASEENRB/ARFZER

PRER
(iy HEERTSEEZTF -



25.

26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets have
been pledged by the Group in favour of the banks as guarantees
for the issuance of bank accepted notes for payments to
suppliers and grant of bank loans; and in favour of landlord as
collaterals for electricity expenses payable:

RE IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 220234 12 431 H 1 F/Z

25. EEHEA

RBERR - AEEE KA TEEER TIRT
ERRAHRERNRMELRITEALEZRET
RITERZER RERTEIERENEE
Y -

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTT

Property, plant and equipment (Note 16)  #1% - /= R &4 (KizX16) 362,100 444,502
Investment properties (Note 17) LEMEME17) 95,511 45,922

Leasehold land held under operating lease st AfFAEEEZ RIBKESHEREZ
included in right-of-use assets (Note 18) HE T (fzE18) 6,150 6,340
Bank deposits* RITIFE R 709,064 710,965
1,172,825 1,207,729

i These assets are pledged for the issuance of bank accepted
notes for payments to suppliers.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity period of
three months or less.

The Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”) is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

o REFEERRTRITEREMHERN KM
BHRITALERZ#IR -

26. MITEBRRIRE

RITEHREBASEEAEEFENRS RRE
HAHARR B =18 B Sk A TR HASRTT 73K

ARBTAREDATAERLBEMBES
A - B BSNEE B RO RAERE - EERM
EEEMRTE  AKREAKHFREETINESL
BMEBZRITHEARE -
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27. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES

Trade payables FERTE 5 R0E
Notes payables ANESE

An aged analysis of trade and notes payables at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

0 to 60 days 0£60H

61 to 180 days 612180H

181 to 365 days 181&365H

More than 1 year but within 2 years —FAEERRERN
More than 2 years but within 3 years MF A EBR=FA
Over 3 years =FLAE

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for
trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period
taken for trade purchases ranged from 30 to 90 days.

156

27. BENEZRERENE

2023
RMB’000
AR®TF T

941,700
1,421,024

2,362,724

e

2022
RMB’000
ARBTT

1,204,361
1,408,769

2,613,130

RIFHFR - RMEHRENE S KB RERN

SEOREOTAT

2023
RMB’000
AR®T R

1,831,889
500,083
7,395
3,064
3,010
17,283

2,362,724

2022
RMB’000
ARBTT

1,927,220
655,109
12,229
5,475
1,709
11,388

2,613,130

ENESHRATEBRESBERISERAN

AXNFRIE - BEHBENEE

£90H -

HFEHNF308
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1FF/Z

28. OTHER PAYABLES, CONTRACT LIABILITIES 28. H b fE{F K IE ~

AND ACCRUED CHARGES

Contract liabilities

Payroll and welfare payables

Accrued expenses

Payables for acquisition of property, plant
and equipment

Other tax payables

Others

Contract liabilities arising from:

Sale of lithium-ion battery modules and
related accessories for mobile phones
and digital electronic appliances

BHAE
ANET I INE R
FEETFX

BEWME  BFELREENKEA

H At R IR
Hity

EXBUTEEZAH
BfE:
HERRANTH#REBIEHR
ETEMNERTED
AR B REBCT

EHNEBRES

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFIT
17,767 14,916
20,762 34,254
5,402 5,417
9,131 7,967
32,064 28,772
18,464 57,155
103,590 148,481
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET R ARBFIT
17,767 14,916
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N

28.

158

OTHER PAYABLES, CONTRACT LIABILITIES
AND ACCRUED CHARGES (continued)

The deposit which the Group receives on sale of lithium-ion
battery modules and related accessories for mobile phones and
digital electronic appliances remains as a contract liability until
it is recognised as revenue when control of goods is transferred
to the customers. Typical payment terms which impact on the
amount of contract liabilities are set out in Note 4(i).

Movements in contract liabilities

1 A1 B Z 48R

Balance as at 1 January

28. HM BT KB »

EHNEBERES
EH®)

AEBEEHERANFRRBBRETERN
PR T AR A B (R B AT B R 2 AT
RAMAE  EEEVEFREBBEETFIEH
RERL/RER/IL FEANEBESHE LK
BESCTE N LN

Decrease in contract liabilities as RAFEARNERWFZARFEIBI/E

a result of recognising revenue
during the year that was included  (Fff5F6)
in the contract liabilities at the

beginning of the year (Note 6)

BHRBEAMERANARERD

Increase in contract liabilities as a #HESRZAWREMERENEE

result of receipts in advance on 0
sale of goods

M12 A318 Z &8

Balance at 31 December

Amount due to a shareholder of RMB160,000 (2022:
RMB160,000), which is included in other payables, contract
liabilities and accrued charges, is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

BHREEH
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
14,916 21,025
(14,916) (21,025)
17,767 14,916
17,767 14,916

ATAHMEMNKE  AHNEERENFEANE
~F PR B FIE A R #160,0007T(20224F « AR
#160,0007T ) BEKIF - £ B RAREKEFE
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29. BORROWINGS

Bank loans (Note):

Secured bank loans

Less: Amounts shown under current
liabilities

Amounts shown under non-current
liabilities

Notes:

29. Bk

RITER(HIEE) :
BEIMRITER

o RBRET2IIZ 2

FRBEETZ2IZEE

(@) The terms of repayment of the bank loans are as follows:

Current portion:
Within 1 year or on demand

Non-current portion:

More than 1 year but not exceeding
2 years

More than 2 years but not exceeding
5 years

More than 5 years

Total

mEES -
—FAFIRER

FEMBIE D
—F A BN EBREF

MFEA LETBBRF
RFENE

4 =

wes A

2023
RMB’000
ARMBTF T

1,299,832

(1,036,837)

262,995

B

(@) RITEFERFEHWT :

2023
RMB’000
ARBFR

1,036,837

43,832

162,810
56,353

1,299,832

2022
RMB’000
ARBTT

1,186,538

(879,442)

307,096

2022
RMB’000
ARETT

879,442

43,832

150,285
112,979

1,186,538
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29. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(Continued)

The terms of repayment of the bank loans are as
follows:(Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, bank loans of approximately
RMB1,299,832,000 (2022: RMB1,186,538,000) were
secured by: (i) the Group's property, plant and equipment
of RMB361,923,000 (2022: RMB444,290,000) (Note
16), and investment properties and leasehold land with
aggregate carrying amount of RMB101,661,000 (2022:
RMB52,262,000) (Notes 17 and 18(a); or (ii) by personal
guarantee from the Company’s controlling shareholder, Mr.
Fang Jin, and the son of Mr. Fang Jin for certain bank loans
of the Group up to an amount of RMB1,273,696,000 (2022:
RMB1,121,270,000); or (iii) corporate guarantee of the
companies within the Group (2022: same); or (iv) leasehold
land and building of a related company (2022: same); or (v)
corporate guarantee of a related company (2022: same).

The average effective interest rates per annum (which are
also equal to the contractual interest rates) on the Group’s
bank borrowings are as follows:

29. fa K (#)

B

(a)

Average effective interest rate on fixed- EEEFHZ FHHERF X

rate borrowings

30. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS

160

The amounts due to directors are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

(&)
RITERERFHNOT (&)

M2023F12 7318 » 49 AR%E1,299,832,000
T6(20224F : A R #1,186,538,0007T ) HY 3R
TERBANATIEE BT : (AEEARE
361,923,0007T(20224F : A R #444,290,000
TO)ZWE - BEMKEEMEe) - UKkE
BRE{E A R #101,661,0007T(20224F : AR
#52,262,0007T ) % & ¥ % R E i (Ft
FE17%18(@a)) ¢ k(i) AR BIFERR AR R 5 & S
ME&EENRFRANEBIRESERS
# AR #1,273,696,0007T(20224F : AR
#51,121,270,00070 ) K95 TR 1T E X FTE(E
AER i) AEBAZRA BB ERER
(2022% : #HAE) ¢ (v —KEERFNEE
T REF(20224F - 48R 5 Sv)—REFE
AT EPER(20224F : 18R) -

AEBHRITERNFHBERFEF XN
HERBQFR)MT

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARBTT
4.54% 4.82%

30. BN E==5FE

R o

ENESFADRERR 28 BARERE
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31. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 31.ERZEWELEHRESERAEE
RECOGNISED

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised RERNEGEVERARERNELEREE
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the B/ (BE)ERS D RESMT

movements during the year are as follows:

Impairment loss Provision for  Undistributed
on trade and  write down to net profits of
other receivables realisable value subsidiaries Tax loss Total
EWE S8
REAER WRZA# HEAR
NEREER REERE FOWEH  HEER @t
RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTFT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
1 January 2022 202241418 80,126 199 (5,360) 25,033 99,998
Charge to profit or loss REER G
(Note 13) (KrzE13) (5,860) (5) - (795) (6,660)
31 December 2022 and 2022128318 %
1 January 2023 2023F1 418 74,266 194 (5,360) 24,238 93,338
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss ~ REzHE A/ (1K)
(Note 13) (BtzE13) 8,469 % - (4,628) 3,937
31 December 2023 2023F12A31H 82,735 290 (5,360) 19,610 97,275
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31.

162

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
RECOGNISED (continued)

For presentation purpose, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

3. EANELERBEERAE#

MEIME BETEEHREERBBECRE
EUBHRRNKIEE - U T ARMBREMEL
HRE R IR AR DA -

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the B PIBARR TR AR 2 IEER
consolidated statement of financial position Iﬁééﬁ%fﬁ 102,635 98,698
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the IR A ISR R R 2 IR TR
consolidated statement of financial position HAESE (5,360) (5,360)
97,275 93,338

The Group has unrecognised tax losses carry forwards amounting
to approximately RMB117,694,000 (2022: RMB119,702,000)
which relate to subsidiaries that have a history of losses and may
not be used to offset taxable income elsewhere in the Group.
The unused tax losses of approximately RMB52,210,000 (2022:
RMB81,777,000) will be expired on 31 December 2024 and the
remaining unused tax losses of approximately RMB65,484,000
(2022: RMB37,925,000) will be expired in two to five years.
These subsidiaries have no temporary taxable differences which
could partly support the recognition of deferred tax assets. Also,
there are no tax planning opportunities available that would
further provide a basis for recognition.

If the Group was able to recognise deferred tax assets for all
unrecognised tax losses, profits would increase by approximately
RMB29,424,000 (2022: RMB29,925,000).

AEBEABREHEEERNBEHNARE
117,694,0007T(20224 : A K #119,702,000
L) - WEBESREHRGEENMB AT RR
WA ] FA A 87 7 £ B L ph 75 RO FE ER B UL o
AP HEFELH AR ®52,210,0007T(2022
& AR #81,777,0007T ) # M2024% 124
B1TEEE MEKRADABERBHOARE
65,484,0007T(20224F = AR #¥37,925,0007T)
BRZERFANEHE - thEHE QR W& &

DEFHEREETH BEENER NG R ZEE -
ﬁt’i\\ - WAERIIART B S 0] B DA — IR LR

/& °

u/h

MANEBEE BATE R ERE BT BERELTH
HEE w4 A K #29,424,0007T
(20224 : AFR#29,925,0007T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

RECOGNISED (continued)

According to Articles 3 and 37 of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax
Law, distribution of dividends by a foreign investment enterprise
in China to its non-tax resident foreign investor is subject to
Enterprise Income Tax at source on a withholding basis. The
standard withholding tax rate pursuant to Article 4 of the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax Law is 20%. According to Article 27
of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and Article 91 of the
Detailed Implementation Rules of the PRC Enterprise Income
Tax Law, the applicable withholding tax rate has been reduced
to 10%. Under the Arrangement between the Mainland China
and Hong Kong Special Administration Region (“HKSAR") for
the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal
Evasion, or Mainland China/HKSAR Double Taxation Agreement,
Hong Kong tax residents which hold 25% or more of a PRC
enterprise are entitled to a reduced dividend withholding tax rate
of 5%.

In addition, according to Cai Shui [2008] No.1, a circular jointly
issued by the Ministry of Finance and State Administration of
Taxation on 22 February 2008, distribution of dividends out of
pre 2008 retained profits by a foreign investment enterprise to
its foreign investor in or after 2008 is exempted from Enterprise
Income Tax, whereas distribution of dividends out of profits
generated by a foreign investment enterprise in or after 2008
shall be subjected to Enterprise Income Tax in accordance with
the relevant articles of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and its
Detailed Implementation Rules as described above. Accordingly,
dividends receivable from certain subsidiaries in respect of profits
earned since 1 January 2008 is subject to 5% withholding tax.

RE IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 220234 12 431 H 1 F/Z

1. EANELERBEEREE#

RIER B EMSHEEIEREITER - FE
INERECEREATERIIEREERE 2
REEREBNMBTRXBMEEMEGH - R
BHRBECEMSRAFME EEBBIRE A
20% ° MBHEFBBEMETHIEL 276K+ E
PEMSTOEEMRKEMIFEME - LilEAEN
FEBE10% ° BIECA N F B R BT R
([BARFRTERE @RISR AEEHH
Py IR E T HE) - F B R BB ZE25%3k
A ERE=OBEBRRER - ATREER K%
A% S FEINFL

SO0 - ARIR B IBED I B R B 48 B R 200842
R22BHEEMHO R EEMSHE TESR
BR R @A) (BAF{[2008]15%%) » 20084 Z B oh
PR EREFKR REARSBECFE - 7£20085
2 BDELINEIREER - A RBEEMSE
ﬁzﬁm%iiz&iﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%m%ﬁ
FESE - Bk bR B EREREEBIIK
M&EE@MH% EMEHR - Bt &F
B A RFE20084 1718 MAARESERM
FE U A% B B BN 5 % RO TE AT
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31.

32.

164

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
RECOGNISED (continued)

At 31 December 2023, the Group’s share of aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with retained earnings of the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries was approximately RMB405,383,000
(2022: RMB379,456,000). Deferred tax liabilities have not
been all provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of the Group’s share of temporary differences
attributable to retained profits of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

SHARE CAPITAL

Issued and fully paid: BEITREE :

3I.EHRRANELEHREERER®

2023512 A318 » ANEE E(h AR &) BT
BRARRBEBANEENEREESHNARKE
405,383,0007T(20224F : AR#379,456,0007T) °
A B ] IR B e R = B R - BERS
ZFERAI ARG TERE - AR EEG
RRRHREMER RSB EFEE B ERE
R e SRR LR B B &R -

32. g4

Number of
ordinary shares

of HK$0.10

each
#HK0.108 T Amount
ZERHE Ex-]
in Thousands RMB'000

TR ARETT

At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 R2022F1H1H ~ 2022F &

and 2023 2023%F12H31H

1,090,001 107,590
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33. RESERVES

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of

each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of

the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity

between the beginning and the end of the year are set out

below:

At 1 January 2022

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the
year

At 31 December 2022 and
1 January 2023

Loss for the year
QOther comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the
year

At 31 December 2023

20221318

TEEBH
Hity 2

$2022F12 8318
2023F1718

TEEER
Aty 2

REERENEER

2023128318

Share
premium
RAEE
RMB’000
ARETFT

619,288

619,288

619,288

l‘/j_\

33. {# 1
A e A RS B S AR 9 A 4 ) 2 4 R A
HEHERRGARSEHE - AATARETR

£ K AR E 5 M5 2

Capital
reserve

N1
RMB'000

ARETE

250,887

250,887

250,887

Translation
reserve

EifE
RMB'000

ARETE

(118,324)

60,622

60,622

(57,702)

10,354

10,354

(47,348)

Retained
profits

RERA
RMB'000

ARETE

44,503

(1,839)

(1,839)

(1,871)

40,793

B8 FISEIIMT

Total

@t
RMB'000
ARETT
796,354

(1,839)
60,622

58,783

855,137

(1,871)
10,354

8,483

863,620
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34. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 34. FERER
Summarised financial information in relation to the Group’s NEBEAE AR ([ IR 2
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests (“NCls"), FEARNEERNYHEAMZHBERREZY
before intra-group eliminations, is presented below: W

2023
Percentage of equity interest held by NCls: FEIZEMR ST hERZ A DL ¢
Shenzhen Hongde and its subsidiary e E R E M E AT 13%
Cybertech and its subsidiaries Cybertech }& E & A 7 50%
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BZE2023F12831HILFEE

2022

13%
50%

Cybertech and its Shenzhen Hongde

subsidiaries and its subsidiary

Cybertech

REKBE AR

RMB’000

AR%T

Revenue Weas -
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(FR),SwH (12,545)
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCls DEEIER RS 2 (B518), 87 (6,273)

Cash flows (used in)/generated from &2 EZ&(FTA), FIBERESRE

operating activities (35,939)
Cash flows used in investing activities REEBMRARESRE -
Cash flows generated from financing FEEBSRERE

activities 34,331
Net cash (outflows)/inflows BE&CRH),/RAFRE (1,608)
Current assets mENEE 9,981
Non-current assets IEMBEE 1,953
Current liabilities mEaE (46,276)
Non-current liabilities ERBNAE -
Net (liabilities)/assets F(BR)BE (34,342)
Accumulated NCls BT IEE R = (18,252)

166

RYIPRE
REMBEAT
RMB’000
ARBTR

141,111
2,871

378

12,541
(3,318)

118

9,341

139,532
35,605
(94,389)

(4,138)

76,610

12,791
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34. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

34, FIERER#)
HE2022F12A318LFE

Cybertech and its

Shenzhen Hongde

subsidiaries and its subsidiary

Cybertech Y=

MEKB AR MEKE AR

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBT T

Revenue Wzs - 140,231
Loss for the year REEEHRE (7,229) (1,597)
Loss allocated to NCls DAL= TR RS < BB (3,615) (357)
Cash flows used in operating activities #&Z/EEFTARSTRE (7,534) (9,431)
Cash flows used in investing activities & ZEFFARSREE - (7,230)
Cash flows used in financing activities B&ZBIFFARESEE (1,812) (17,892)
Net cash outflows WEMHFEE (9,346) (34,553)
Current assets REEE 13,662 112,530
Non-current assets ERBEE 17,078 42,417
Current liabilities mEaE (56,261) (72,826)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (535) (8,382)
Net (liabilities)/assets F(BE) EE (26,056) 73,739
Accumulated NCls RETIEERR A (13,359) 12,413
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35, A 7] B #& ik 3%
THE COMPANY

2023 2022
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000
Mk AR®T ARBFIT
Non-current asset F?‘Fibﬁé
Investments in subsidiaries REB R RRE 36 250,901 250,901
Total non-current asset JEmENE EARTE 250,901 250,901
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGB G 727,509 717,149
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LIRS 1,468 2,804
Total current assets MENEERLTE 728,977 719,953
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H A FE < 5RIB 3 3
Amount due to a subsidiary iR RENGIE ] 8,665 8,124
Total current liabilities mEN B EEE 8,668 8,127
Net current assets REBEETFE 720,309 711,826
Net assets FEE 971,210 962,727
Capital and reserves BEAXKR#EE
Share capital &N 32 107,590 107,590
Reserves s 33 863,620 855,137
Total equity BRER 971,210 962,727

7 v 1 1

=
FENG MING ZHU LIAN XIU QIN
LK EFE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
E2F E2F
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36. SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company at the end of the

reporting period are as follows. The class of shares held is

ordinary unless otherwise stated:

Name of companies

DRER

Great Speed Enterprises Limited
RREEERAT

Scud Group (Hong Kong) Company
Limited
REREE(EB)ERAA

Keen Power Holdings Limited
R AR

Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd.
(Note (i)
RER(BR)EFERAR (M)

Place of incorporation/

establishment and
operation
TMEL/ BILR
K

British Virgin Islands
RERIES

Hong Kong
Hong Kong
36

PRC
e

Issued and paid-
up share/registered
capital
ERTREHRE/
aMER

US$50,000
50,000% 7T

HK$1
157
HK$1,000

1,000%7

US$127,000,000
127,000,000 7T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE IR AR MR

T2 N =]
For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 220234 12 431 H 1 F/Z

36. fifEB 2 =)

RIBEFHRARBMBRARFHBENOT © FRIES
BHHA - FANROERN A EEK

Group's effective
ownership interest

rEERARRRR
2023 2022
100% 100%
100%* 100%*
100%* 100%*
100%* 100%"

Principal activities

TEER

Investment holding

RERR

Provision of corporate management
services

RERAEERRS

Investment holding

RERR

Manufacturing and sale of lithium-
ion battery modules, power
banks, motive battery and related
accessories for mobile phones and
digital electrical appliances

HERHEFRREBRESTERY
BEFSHEE BHER BN
B T
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36. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. Y B A=) (&)
Place of incorporation/ Issued and paid-
establishment and up share/registered Group's effective
Name of companies operation capital ownership interest
FMAL/ KL BRTREBARE/
DNEER Rend aHER FEEENETES
2023 2022
Scud Battery Co., Ltd. (Note (ii)) PRC US$30,000,000 100%* 100%*
REREBAB R (M) e 30,000,000357T
Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. PRC RMB38,000,000 86.84%° 86.84%°
(Note (i) i AR#38,000,0007T
AYMREE R HR AR (i)
Dongguan Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. PRC RMB50,000,000 86.84%" 86.84%"
(Note (iv)) i AR¥50,000,0007
RemBEERERAR (M)
Scud Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd. ~ PRC RMB50,000,000 100%° 100%®
(Note (v) il AR ¥50,000,0007T
REREEMBEERAF (M)
Scud Electronics Japan Co., Ltd. Japan JPY20,000,000 100%° 100%®
REREFANGARH P 20,000,008
Scud Hong Kong Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 100%*
REREEEHERLA BB 10,000/ 7T

170

Principal activities

TERK

Manufacturing and sale of lithium-
ion battery modules, power
banks, power management
module, motive battery, smart
wearable device battery and
related accessories for mobile
phones and digital electrical
appliances

HERHEFRREBERETER
MEEFENRA BHER
SREEEME PhEL By
FERESHRERRY

Research and development,
manufacturing and sale of
lithium-ion bare battery cells

BRFEL M HERKE

Research and development,
manufacturing and sale of
lithium-ion bare battery cells

BRETECLHE  LERFE

Not yet commenced business

HARRER

Research and development and sale
of lithium-ion battery modules,
power banks, chargers and
network terminal products

BRTEHEA BBER T
BRBEEHERTREREE

Not yet commenced business

HA IR
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36. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

establishment and Issued and paid-up

Name of companies operation share/registered capital
SRAY/MYR  CRARESRE/
ARER mE ZREE
Prime Power Technology Co., Ltd. Hong Kong HK$50,000,000
SERBERLD 0 50,000,000/7C
Cybertech Optiemus Holdings Limited  British Virgin lslands HK$50,000,000
(Note(vi)) (FiriE(vi)) EBANES 50,000,000 7
Cybertech Optiemus (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10
(Note(vi)) (FiiE(vi) BE 1087
Iluminar Merchand|5|ng Private Limited ~ India INR107,509,642
(Note(vi)) (KizE(vi)) HE 107,509,642 E tt,
Veson (Hong Kong) Co., Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000
HEEBRRAA Bk 10,0007C

Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises
Limited

Interest indirectly held through Keen Power Holdings
Limited

& Inéerest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co.,
Ltd.

A Interest indirectly held through Shenzhen Hongde Battery
Co., Ltd

C Interest indirectly held through Prime Power Technology
Co., Limited

@ Interest indirectly held through Cybertech Optiemus
Holdings Limited

B Interest indirectly held through Cybertech Optiemus (HK)
Limited

Notes:

(i)  Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years
commencing 31 October 1997.

(i) Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years
commencing 6 December 2005.

(iii) Limited liability company for a term of 20 years
commencing 21 January 2005.

(iv) Limited liability company commencing 11 April 2011.

(v) Limited liability company for a term of 30 years
commencing 3 May 2013.

(vi) The directors are of the opinion that, notwithstanding

having 50% shareholding on these companies, having
considered in substance all facts and circumstances, the
Group has control over these companies. See note 5(vi) for
further details.

During the year, none of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities.

ARE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 220234 12 431 H 1 F/Z

36. ftE AT (&)

Group's effective ownership

interest Principal activities
rERENERES TEXH
2023 2022
100%¢ 100%°  Investment holding
RERR
50%" 50%"  Investment holding
RERR
50%" 50%"  Investment holding
REZR
50%° 50%P  Provision of mobile phone battery cell and
_power bank assembly service in India
REEREFRECREDERER RS
100%* 100%*  Provision of corporate management services

Rt R R ER R
BRBRAPEER AR A ER

BBREEEEFRARMEESAER

BREBR(BR)ETERATDMEFHE

28
BRR)TBEELARARMESAER
BiBAERIR AR A RIS AR

% #@Cybertech Optiemus Holdings Limited

MERFEER

3% 3BCybertech Optiemus (HK) Limited# #
FEER

HNEBELE - 1997F10A31BiEst AHIR
+4F o

INEIBE (% - 2005F12 A6H T AR
T4 o

AREMTDQA  2005F1 8218t AH—
+4F o

AREERAT - 2011E4811 B ezt -
BAREMERAR - 2013F5 A3 AH=1

MAREE - BB QR BT E MBS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1 F/Z

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37.BEAELRF
(@) The name of and the relationship with related parties (a) FAEATEZRHREABENT :

are as follows:

Name

=L

Fang Jin
Pk

Scud Stock
RERR S

Scud Technology
FREBREIR

Scud Power Technology

RERE DR

EBTEB New Energy
AR

Scud Technical College

FREBR AL

Scud Energy Technology
HRERRBEIREH

Scud Communication Technology
RER BRI

Relationship
22[E

Controlling shareholder of the Company

AN RIEAR AR R

Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., a company in which Mr. Fang Jin was a
director and held 70% (2022: 70%) shareholding interest

BERERBRNDERAR  FE&EERZARIZERWIFEZART0%
(20224 : 70% ) R&#E

Fujian Scud Technology Co., Ltd., a company in which Mr. Fang Jin was a
director and held 17.81% (2022: 18%) shareholding interest

REREBRBRERRAA - HekERZAREEWFHAZARIT.81%
(20224 : 18%)i&HE

Fujian Scud Power Technology Co., Ltd., a company with its director and
shareholder holding 80.04% (2022: 88.61%) shareholding interest of
the company being the son of Mr. Fang Jin, the controlling shareholder
of the Company

za@m%ﬂaﬁ@mﬂﬁzﬁﬁﬁ » EA XA R180.04% (20224 : 88.61% )X
ENEZRRRRER ka%ﬁ%?ﬁiZ%

EBTEB New Energy Technology Co., Ltd., a company in which Scud
Communication Technology Co., Ltd. held 40% (2022: 40%)
shareholding interest and with its director being the son of Mr. Fang Jin,
the controlling shareholder of the Company

SENHEREEERAR - —MERERBARNERATEEI0%
(20224 : 40% ) BREN AR BEEETRARIERBRR T2 AEZ T

Fujian Province Scud Technical College, a company of which Mr. Fang Jin
was a director and had beneficial interest

BREARERKMER  — Bk EREFUHFEREANAT

Scud Energy Technology Co., Ltd., a company in which Mr. Fang Jin was a
director and held 99.90% (2022: 90%) shareholding interest

REMBEREHIARAGT - FRAEERZ A AEFWREZAR9.90%
(20224 : 90% ) iR H#

Scud Communication Technology Co., Ltd., a company of which Mr. Fang
Jin was a director and had beneficial interest
RERBARMBERAR  —MietEAEEUHAERERNA T
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1FF/Z

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions with related companies during the year

not disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements are

summarised as follows:

Rental expenses paid to:
Scud Stock (Note i)
Scud Technology (Note ii)

Rental income received from:
Scud Stock (Note iii)
Scud Power Technology (Note iii)

Purchases of finished goods from:
EBTEB New Energy (Note iv)
Scud Energy Technology (Note iv)

Purchases of raw materials from:
EBTEB New Energy (Note iv)
Scud Power Technology (Note iv)

Processing income from:
Scud Power Technology (Note vi)

Training expense to:
Scud Technical College (Note vii)

Sales of property, plant and equipment to:
Scud Energy Technology (Note v)
Scud Power Technology (Note v)

Sales of work in progress to:
Scud Power Technology (Note iv)

Sales of finished goods to:
EBTEB New Energy (Note iv)
Scud Communication Technology (Note iv)

BARSEY :
RERRM (5
REBREHR ()

BRALWA :
FREBRAT (7 (Bt =Eiii)
RERRE) H R (i wiii)

PSR
SRR (M)
TRERRREIRAH (F &Eiv)

FREERMH
SRR REIR (A Ev)
FEERE HRE (M)

WEIT WA :
TRERE DR (K zEvi)

XENERT -
TRE BRSNS (P tvii)

HEVE  BERRET
RERBERR (it aty)
FERE NRE (M)

HEXR@T
TRERRE) DR (K aEiv)

HERRK@T
SRR HAR (M)
TRERR B I (AEiv)

37.BBEA LR F &)

3 A A 75 Sk LA AR 0 R Y F N SRR

BRRZEARZ SR T

2023
RMB’000
ARBTR

11,030

4,689
1,330

244

128,472
100

13,022

1,692

31

655

836

2022
RMB'000
ARBTT

11,030
249

4,689
1,690

27

164,806
290

15,436
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1 F/Z

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

174

(b)

(Continued)

The above transactions were made at prices and terms as
agreed between the parties.

Notes:

(i)

On 30 December 2022, Scud Electronics (as lessee) and
Scud Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease agreement
(the “First 2023 Lease Agreement”) to renew the
lease of certain premises owned by Scud Stock and
extend the lease period of the existing leased premises
for the period commencing from 1 January 2023 and
ending on 31 December 2023. The annual rental for
the year ended 31 December 2023 was approximately
RMB10,362,000.

On 29 December 2023, Scud Electronics (as lessee) and
Scud Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease agreement
(the “First 2024 Lease Agreement”) to renew the
lease of certain premises owned by Scud Stock and
extend the lease period of the existing leased premises
for the period commencing from 1 January 2024 and
ending on 31 December 2024. The annual rental for
the year ending 31 December 2024 is approximately
RMB10,092,000.

On 30 December 2022, Scud Battery (as lessee) and
Scud Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease renewal
agreement (the “Second 2023 Lease Agreement”) to
extend the lease period of the existing leased premises
for the period commencing from 1 January 2023 and
ending on 31 December 2023. The annual rental for
the year ended 31 December 2023 was approximately
RMB668,000.

The rental payable under the First 2023 Lease
Agreement, the First 2024 Lease Agreement and the
Second 2023 Lease Agreement were determined after
arm’s length negotiations between Scud Electronics,
Scud Battery and Scud Stock with reference to the
market rental for similar properties nearby in the PRC
and having taken into account availability of similar
premises nearby and the cost of relocation.

37.FBEALTRF #)

(b)

(%)

LR 5 51 B R TT B E MER R IFR

#1T

o

BEE

(i)

MR2022412A30H » RELE T (E
BERMBAN)BRERRG(EAHA
N)FIHERZE(E—1%H2023FH
EWEl) NERARERROES
ZETUEREREEHEWE M
Hy - FHHIB52023F1A1H £ £2023
F128318 1k~ & F2023F12A°
BMBLEFEZFERESHNAEARE
10,362,0007T °

M2023%12H298 * REBRETF(E
BAEMBAN)BRERRG(EALH
N B HAE R E—H2024F 1
Szl UERARERBROES
ZETYEREREAEHEME M
B - FHHEIE2024F1 A1H £ E2024
F12H318 1k & F£2024%12H
BSMBEFEZFEHSHNABARE
10,092,0007T, °

M20224 12 A30H » REBLE M ({E
BERMBAN)BRERRG(EAHA
NI BB (5 =752023F M
Epzl)  MERREHEEWE A
By - FHHI52023F1A1H £ =2023
F128318 1k - B E2023F12731
BHtFEEZEFERASHAEBARE
668,000 °

F—1P023FHEWHE E—1H
2024 F HEHHE K E —7H2023F
EHE TNENESTIVERERS
T REBREMBERERBRHDES
FREKEEUMEZTSRSTER
B3 2R A 2 2 °] AR M R RSB Ak AR AR
NPHEEEETE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

The rental payable was determined after arm’s length
negotiations between the Group and Scud Technology
with reference to the market rental for similar
properties nearby in the PRC and having taken into
account availability of similar premises nearby and the
cost of relocation.

On 30 December 2022, Scud Battery (as lessor) and
Scud Stock (as lessee) entered into a lease renewal
agreement (the “Third 2023 Lease Agreement”) to
extend the lease period of the existing leased premises
for the period commencing from 1 January 2023 and
ending on 31 December 2023. The annual rental for
the year ended 31 December 2023 was approximately
RMB4,689,000.

On 29 December 2023, Scud Battery (as lessor) and
Scud Stock (as lessee) entered into a lease renewal
agreement (the “Second 2024 Lease Agreement”)
to extend the period for the existing leased premises
for the period commencing from 1 January 2024 and
ending on 31 December 2024. The annual rental for
the year ending 31 December 2024 is approximately
RMB7,480,000.

The rental receivable under the Third 2023 Lease
Agreement and the Second 2024 Lease Agreement
were determined after arm’s length negotiations
between Scud Battery and Scud Stock with reference
to the market rental for similar properties nearby in
the PRC and having taken into account availability of
similar premises nearby and the cost of relocation.

RE IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 220234 12 431 H 1 F/Z

37.BBEALRF %)

(b) (%)

BizE : (&)

(ii)

(iif)

FEA TS Th R AN R B R TREBE R AR
SERENTEUME 2 THEST
B M BN 5 2 AT A R B A
RGN FRERREETE

20229128308 * RERE W (1E
BHBEAN)BRERKD (EEEBA)
I B E=72023FHE W
Z) o NERBEHEMFE - HE
72 B B2023F1 A1H #£ £20234F12
A318 1k - & F2023512A318 Ik
FRZFERSHRAREAL689,000

JG °

M2023F12 298 » RERR B M(E
BHEA)ERERRMND (TEAEEAN)
T BB 2024 FFE W
#ED o NERBEHEMFE 2 HE
TH Hi B2024F1 A1H # 22024412
A318 1k - & £2024%12A31H 1t
FEzEERES4 A5 AREET, 480,000
7‘E o

FE=192023FHE % K 5B — 192024
FHEEE T ERYNIES Ty RERR
Bt RREREA M 2 E R B4R
LAY 2 518 S 0 B K% M ER )
R IRIERBERAD FERE
= E °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1 F/Z
37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv) The selling prices of finished goods, work-in-progress
and raw materials are determined and agreed by both
parties.

(v)  The selling price of property, plant and equipment is
determined and agreed by both parties.

(vij The processing income and processing fee is
determined by both parties.

(vii) The training expense is determined by both parties.

(c) Other transaction with related party:

As at 31 December 2023, Mr. Fang Jin and the son of Mr.
Fang Jin have guaranteed certain bank facilities made to
the subsidiaries of the Group to a maximum amount of
RMB3,071,000,000 (2022: RMB3,154,000,000).

(d) Remuneration for key management personnel, representing
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in
Note 11, is as follows:

37.BBEALRFZ %)

(b)

(@

(d)

(%)

BIzE : (&)

(v Hm - FREEEMHNEERE
FEELFEE

V) PE BERRENEERELETE
WRE -

(vi) INTWARINTEHEFEE -

(i) FIIERBESEE -
HEEATHEMRS

M2023F12A31H  FeEERFEEE
ZTHAAEENBARIRHESERS
# A R #3,071,000,00070(20224F : AR
3,154,000,0007T ) F & T ER1TRAE SR E VB
ER o

T2EREASHMSEMENARE
MEXNARREEZR)WAT

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TF T ARETTT

Fees, salaries, housing allowances, e He  EEZFR - HM=EAR
other allowances and benefits in EYEA
kind 3,398 3,244
Post-employment benefits B 3 12 48 A 48 28
3,446 3,272
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z20234% 12 431H 1} f“ﬁ/x

38. NOTE SUPPORTING STATEMENT OF CASH 38. T B4 A8 RMNME
FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: BE R EEN B ELHE
Amounts due
Amounts due to related
Bank loans Lease liabilities to directors parties
EAEE
BITER HEEE EAESRAE ATHIE
RMB000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
(Note 29) (Note 18) (Note 30) (Note 24)
(Fft&E29) (FizE18) (F$5£30) (FiE24)
As at 1 January 2022 202241718 1,174,984 23,026 34 2,295
Changes from cash flow Henesd
Proceeds from new borrowings KEHERZPTETE
Repayment of borrowings BRER 1,929,847 - - -
Repayment of principal portion of leases EEMRE 7 A2 %5 (1,917,503) - - -
Repayment of advances BEHZ - (6,551) - -
Advance received REEN - - - (1,190)
Interest paid TS (61,423) (2,000) - -
Other changes: Hip 2 E):
Foreign exchange movement H|\E 2 (790) 413 - -
Capitalisation of new leases Giisi=4-v:N|d - 978 - -
Lease modification HEER - (124) - -
Interest expense FEN 61,423 2,000 - -
As at 31 December 2022 and MW2022%612A318 %
1 January 2023 2023F1R1H 1,186,538 17,742 34 1,105
Changes from cash flow Reneg
Proceeds from new borrowings REFERZFTETE 1,968,546 - - -
Repayment of borrowings BEER (1,855,196) - - -
Repayment of principal portion of leases B E 7z K& &5 - (7,051) - -
Advances received RLEEN - - 15 57
Interest paid YIFIE (62,978) (1,341) - -
Other changes: Hin &5
Foreign exchange movement HNFE A ED (56) (230) - -
Capitalisation of new leases HHAEER - 1,122 - -
Interest expense FlB R 62,978 1,341 - -
As at 31 December 2023 ®2023F12A318 1,299,832 11,583 49 1,162
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 /31 H 1FF,

39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Contracted but not accounted for, in
respect of acquisition of property, plant
and equipment

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

FIR

39. EAXRIE

2023
RMB’000
AR¥TR
ERBEEVE  BEM
RIBETRERARR
41,009

instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets

Financial assets measured at amortised
costs

Trade receivables

Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Amounts due from related parties

Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Financial assets measured at FVTOCI
Financial assets at FVTOCI

Notes receivables

178

2023
RMB’000
ARET T
SREE
RBERASTENEREE
FEUWE 55/ H 2,163,946
STATEMFRIE © RS R E MR
CREE 5,392
FEUREE A L FIE 117,449
BEIRERITIER 709,064
RITEHR KRS 133,825
3,129,676
BRAFEFAEMEZEWETEN
ERMEE
BAFER AR 2R
TREE 20,940
FEW & 162,366
183,306

40. ZERIB D 2 EMT A
R EFK - SFBIeBTANBAENT -

2022
RMB’000
ARETTT

19,098

2022

RMB'000
ARBTT

—_

922,615
44,970
129,618

710,965
200,944

3,009,112

20,940
41,182

62,122
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1FF/Z

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 40.&RERE9>4mITE»)

(Continued)
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Financial liabilities c@mas
Financial liabilities measured at REBENATENEHEE
amortised costs
Trade and notes payables BN E S HIERENZER 2,362,724 2,613,130
Financial liabilities included in other AR RIE aHAER
payables, contract liabilities and accrued EErERANERAR
charges 23,866 29,114
Lease liabilities HEBE 11,583 17,742
Bank loans RITER 1,299,832 1,186,538
Amounts due to directors FENEEHIE 49 34
Amounts due to related parties JETRAE A T FIB 1,162 1,105
3,699,216 3,847,663
The above financial instruments which are measured at amortised LA BEKAAENSRTA  HEEHNE
costs are not measured at fair value due to their short-term ERARFEE - AESRTANKEERE
nature. The carrying values of the above financial instruments HERFEES

approximate their fair values.
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n‘/j_\

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Financial risk management

180

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks, which include market risk (including foreign currency

risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity

risk. Details of the policies on how to mitigate these risks

are set out below. The directors manage and monitor these

exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented

on a timely and effective manner.

(i)

Interest rate risk management

Interest-bearing financial assets are mainly pledged
bank deposits and bank balances which are all short-
term in nature and carry fixed interest rates. Interest-
bearing financial liabilities are mainly bank loans
with fixed interest rates; therefore, the Group is not
exposed to significant fair value interest rate risk due
to the short maturity of the items. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy and will
consider enter into interest rate hedging should the
need arise.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
assuming that a change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rates for financial
instruments in existence at that date. A 1% increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

MEcRERE
P&
(a) £REREE

BEREMIEZA

AEENEHEAZZHSBER - B
miERAKR(EENERE - FIRERXE
BER)  EERRBRERBERR - BB
WEZERBRHBEROFBRNTX - &
FEBREEZSAR - ARRKEIL A
BRI ABMEEOEH

(i) FIEEREE
AAEEREETERRHMENES R
WIRITF R IRITAER - DREEH
e USRI PN ﬂﬁﬁi%%&lm
MG BHIIRTT B AEE
I%FEEMﬂ%HL B B
AEXBRHRFHENEERE - AEH
IR B AT ) R SR R R S 2 R
WA B EZRET LA E S o

o

NERHRE D
A TEGURED T HRRNXEEHE
RBmERRBELEMETE - YERAR

HRMARERRASMIA LA

AR RMEBEREARER
$H&%W%ﬁ¢%ﬁ%ﬁM¢ﬁ¢
1% - PIREREHFRT AR
B2 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk management (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
the retained profits as of 31 December 2023 would
decrease/increase by approximately RMB1,730,000
(2022: profit and retained profits would decrease/
increase by approximately RMB1,497,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure, to interest
rates on its variable rate bank balances, pledged bank
deposits and bank loans.

The Group’s bank balance also expose it to cash
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rate on the bank balances.
The directors consider the Group's exposure on the
bank deposits is not significant as interest-bearing
deposits are within short maturity periods in general.

The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has not
changed significantly from prior year.

Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movements
in foreign currency exchange rates which will affect
the Group’s financial results and its cash flows.
Although the Group has certain bank balances and
bank loans denominated in United States dollars,
Japanese Yen, Indian Rupee and Hong Kong dollars,
the proportion of these foreign currency balances to
the Group’s total assets is insignificant. Furthermore,
the Group carries out majority of its transactions in
Chinese Renminbi. Accordingly, in the opinion of the
directors, the Group is not exposed to any significant
foreign currency risk.

B 75 ¥R AR B R

wm

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1FF/Z

MEecERE

BEFRE@MIAEZR

\/{E/,ﬁ\
(A5

(a) £RLEFR

()

(ii)

EE(E)

FIRE R EE(4E)
FIRBREDH (&)
it I SR 12 00,58 1 % 1 B Lt 2
BRI E  NEBEZE2023F12
A31H IEFE /G F R E £2023F
12831 B R 58 4 /14
4 N R 1,730,000 (20224 « %
FIRARB R F R G INA R
1,497,0007T) ° WIHEBREAEEH
FRIBITES  BEMBITTERRE
TEZFNMNERE -

BN IRITAESREIRITIIS MR IKE) -
REBMRITAERTEBRRSRETN
KRR - EERR - ANFTEFERE
FREHAZY  AKEHEEART
R K

745 81 5 B 5 55 4 AR 3 46
EREH -

SHE B EHE
SNEE L FiR $E SIS FE R BB i R B AR
B BEERERSRENER
BEAEEEAFE T AT - HE
ENE B RBTRHERRITERRIR
TER R ZFINEERER
SEMNBEELLPINLTNERK © 1IN
REBUAARBETERZHRS -
At - EFRA/REEL BASEM
BEREIMER
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an\

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

182

VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(iii) Price risk management

(iv)

In the opinion of the directors, the Group does not
have significant exposure to price risk.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
primarily relates to the Group’s bank balances, trade
and notes receivables, and other receivables. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that
the counterparties fail to perform their obligations
as at end of the financial year in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the statement
of financial position. In order to minimise the risk,
management of the Group closely monitors overdue
debts. The recoverable amount of each individual
debt is reviewed at each of the reporting period and
adequate allowance for doubtful debts has been made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that credit risk associated
with the Group’s trade and notes receivables, and
other receivables is significantly reduced.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has a certain level of concentration of credit
risk as approximately 22.7% (2022: 18.6%) and
approximately 76.8% (2022: 80.9%) of the total trade
and notes receivables, arising from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers, respectively.

The credit risk on bank balances is minimal because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-rating.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is mainly in the PRC.

41. £ @ A
SF

\f:’/

BEEREMIAEZA

(a) TRAREEE)

(iii)

(iv)

EEm R EE
EERRAEETEEMBEANERR

& o
AA

=EREBEE

EERKIEHFTIBITEHNEEM
BASEMBEEENER - AEEH
EERREZEERNEENRITLE

%W%%mﬁ&ﬁwﬁ%~uﬁﬁm
FEWFTBER R - WEFHFRIBEE
RAEEBITHRERSEOERERE
ENEE  FERRHE=ER AN
BARRERFMAZEEENERERE - 5B
TERERERR  AEENEREER
PIEESE HR(E TR o 508 EIE A AT
BIEEEN SRS AHER - LERT
AU B B SRR VR B SR R AR B o
FUME @ ARREERA - BAE
EHEKE S ZIERERERARE
b FENKIB BB EERRE KIER
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REFER AEERREKE SR
BREKZEBEFFEE— R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk management (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the

Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables as at 31 December 2023 and 2022:

As at 31 December 2023

0 to 60 days 0260H

61 to 180 days 61£2180H
181 to 365 days 1812365H
Over 365 days 3658 A £
Total #mEt

RE IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1FF/Z

MEcsuEREEREMIAZAD
SE @)

(a) ERIAREE(Z)

Gross
carrying
amount

HEREE
RMB’000
AREBFIT

1,609,024
524,057
39,963
79,375

2,252,419

(iv)

FEREREE (&)
REBZRBSZNFRARREERE
(R R BB ) WS BT ERK
BIFANBREE - IR AEEB
EEEBERERY AR TRETLDE
ERBETRMNEBERERN - RIL KL
AEBTREFEEBE - FRORE
BRIEREH N ERRE -

TRIRMHE B A S B RN2023F &
2022F12A31HATEBENERKRE 5
RENEERRMEREEBENE
=

720235128311

As at 31

December

2023

ECLs allowance 20234
BHMEEBEER 124318

RMB'000 RMB’000
% AREBTT AR¥TR

0.38% (6,058) 1,602,966
0.53% (2,753) 521,304
0.72% (287) 39,676
100.00% (79,375) -

(88,473) 2,163,946
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra MR R AR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1F F/Z

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41. ¢ EHMETERL4MI A A

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS S{E )
(Continued)
(a) Financial risk management (Continued) (a) SRIEEEE)
(iv) Credit risk management (Continued) (iv) EEREERE(E)
As at 31 December 2022 K2022%12H31H
As at 31
Gross December
carrying 2022
amount ECLs allowance 20224
HERHEE TRHIE BB IE G 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T % AR¥EFTT AREKETT
0 to 60 days 0£60H 1,283,979 0.60% (7,692) 1,276,287
61 to 180 days 61£180H 647,235 1.00% (6,502) 640,733
181 to 365 days 181%365H 5,743 2.58% (148) 5,595
Over 365 days 365H A £ 86,948 100% (86,948) -
Total WAt 2,023,905 (101,290) 1,922,615
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience FRHEEEDENBEIFNERE
over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to B - 2T RCBFARENRBIL
reflect differences between economic conditions S BB ARMMLENRR « Ea1k
during the period over which the historic data has TUUA Re 7S 65 8] 55 JRE W R IE T8 B ER IR
been collected, current conditions and the group’s KEMRANEBEZBNEL -

view of economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk management (Continued)

The Group has adopted general approach to measure
ECLs on financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, and other financial
assets at amortised costs. Under the general approach,
the Group applies the “3-stage” impairment model
for ECLs measurement based on change in credit risk
since initial recognition as follows:

— Stage 1: If the credit risk of the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the financial instrument is
included in Stage 1.

— Stage 2: If the credit risk of the financial
instrument has increased significantly since its
initial recognition but is not deemed to be credit-
impaired, the financial instrument is included in
Stage 2.

—  Stage 3: If the financial instrument is credit-
impaired, the financial instrument is included in
Stage 3.

The ECLs for financial instruments in Stage 1 are
measured at an amount equivalent to 12-month ECLs
whereas the ECLs for financial instruments in Stage 2
or Stage 3 are measured at an amount equivalent to
lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the risk of default
has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Group’s historical experience and informed credit risk
assessment and including forward-looking information.

RE IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1FF/Z

MEcsuEREEREMIAZAD

(a) SREAREEZ)
(iv) FERBREEE)

AEBERAABNRIE e REAM
FEWFIA 2 & BB E R E IR # HK
AAEBZERMEERA—RITEFE
BEMEEER - RE—RIDE - AE

B RHEREEETERAI =&
RMER - TIERINT B PR R IA
K2 zERBRE

- BRI WEMREANRD

BT ANEE R R EEEE
me Az TABRERR
1 o

- [BR2: WEeERIANEERR

B YA FER AR B EBE AN -
B R WEECEERE - A
Zem T EBIEERER2 -

- HBER3:-MWMEmIADEER

B AZemIABEERR
3o

ERIERTANBEHREERBEIAE
ERNEABRBEEEREN SR
B MEBR2KEERITE T AN
HEEBERAUUEERFRAERHE
EEBNEHETE -

EETENEREDBNISHERREX
RGN - AEEE E DR M EAN
HiBZ R AL S LB ERH A I
&Tsséﬂ o WWEREREBEASEN B

EEBRIMENEERARIESHEE
&EI&Z%TM&EM W BIERTRE M
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
e

B 7% R AR Y R E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1 F/Z

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

186

(iv) Credit risk management (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is considered as credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired include observable data about the following
events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

() granting a concession to the debtors that
the lender would not otherwise consider for
economic or contractual reasons relating to the
debtor’s financial difficulty; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure of default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data and adjusted for forward-looking information
through the use of industry trend and experienced
credit judgment to reflect the qualitative factors, and
through the use of multiple probability-weighted
scenarios.

MesuEREEREMIAZA
NRERE D)

(a) SREAREEZ)
(iv) FERBREEE)

REBREMR  AREFEREE
ERHBREERE - EEE—HAZ
A REEMGTRRRERE TF
FENEMNR  SREERE/LR
FERE - EREEFEREMNER
BREATEHZAEBERMUR

(a) BEBALRERNFHEE

(b) EBRAK  ERIEAEM:

(0 EREEBAZMBEREAR
MRS A HIRmR MG TES
AE—RBERTHRKATTE
BEEEGEN - X

(d BEHARAEEBRKESE M
s EA -

BEHMEEBRZAEREONE - &
HEBER(AIENEBRIEZE)REY
B B O 2 B ER o B KIBE R R KD
18 R G TY B SL BUR IR ATRE 1
BRHERAE - HIDEBERTREY
RER RSB A AR EER
Z o ARBBERSBMEINERE
#ET e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk management (Continued)

(v)

The loss allowance for financial assets included in
deposits and other receivables as at 31 December
2022 reconciles to the opening loss allowance on 1
January 2023 and to the closing loss allowance as at
31 December 2023 are as follow:

Opening loss allowance as
at 1 January

Impairment loss recognised
on financial assets included
in deposits and other
receivables

HERZRERE

Reversal of impairment
loss on financial assets
included in deposits and
other receivables previously
recognised

Closing loss allowance as at
31 December

Liquidity risk management

The ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors, which
has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’s
short, medium and long term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and liabilities.

RE IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1FF/Z

MeRmEBEEREMIAZA
FE=)

(a) EREREEE)

(iv)

M ABTR ZFAERRE

Mt AREREMERRAZ ERMEE

BESEATBET AR S REMRKTIRZ
TREEERIRERSR

R12A31MBZEREERE

(v)

EERBEE(E)

M2022F 12 A31HFF AR S R E A
FEWGRIE 2 & & B 2 B R EHE R
2023F M AVB 2 F B BEREE RN
2023F12A31B 2 FREBERE 2
HERMT -

2023 2022

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

8,001 1,090

6,601 6,941

(74) (30)

14,528 8,001
Bt EE

REBASENES  PHEEHRE
SREATRDUEERNER  EFF
ERY—ERENRBESRRER
HE - YHRBUERREREEZRE
- AREEBRFRRFHR ]
TREMFBRERRE - RSHEE
BEREEERRSRE YIRS
EERGENIHBIAERRY
T o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1 F/Z

41.

188

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)
(v) Liquidity risk management (Continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at 31 December 2023 and 2022, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

MesuEREEREMIAZA

(a) TRAREEE)

(v) REMEREE(E)

M20234F K%2022F12A318 © A&
EremaERECTARIIERE

Trade and notes payables

Finandial liabilities included in other payables,

EREHH Iﬁ&ﬂﬁifi

SARMENTE  RDAER

contract liabilities and accrued charges Jﬁ?i#éﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁf;
Lease liabilities HEBE
Bank loans HITER
Amounts due to directors ENESHE
Amounts due to related parties ENBEATHE

Trade and notes payables

feft fﬁ%%ﬁ&ﬁfﬁ ES

Financial liabilities included in other payables, St ARMEMIVE  AHBER
contract liabilities and accrued charges T &R E@@Eﬂﬁf &

Lease liabilities RERE

Bank loans FOER

Amounts due to directors ENESHE

Amounts due to related parties ERBEATE

R EIEE RN ¢
2023

Less than 1 Total Total
year or on More than undiscounted carrying
demand 1-5 years 5years  cash flows amount

SR-E FER
REEX -Z1f BRLE HERELE REAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR AR%Tn  ARETR
2,362,724 - - 2,362,724 2,362,724
23,866 - - 23,866 23,866
7,406 4,981 - 12,387 11,583
1,052,891 245,041 58,563 1,356,495 1,299,832
49 - - 49 49
1,162 - - 1,162 1,162
3,448,098 250,022 58,563 3,756,683 3,699,216

2022

Less than 1 Total Total
year or on More than  undiscounted carrying
demand 1-5 years 5 years cash flows amount

DR—F REH
HEEK ik S BBLE BENELE RHSE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR  ARETr  ARETR
2,613,130 - - 2,613,130 2,613,130
29,114 - - 29,114 29114
8,338 11,435 - 19,773 17,742
897,831 243,282 120,478 1,261,591 1,186,538
34 - - 34 34
1,105 - - 1,105 1,105
3,549,552 254,717 120,478 3,924,747 3,847,663



41.

42.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Fair values of financial instruments

The notional amounts of financial assets and liabilities
with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to
approximate their fair values.

The fair value of balances with related parties has not been
determined as the timing of the expected cash flows of
these balances cannot be reasonably determined because of
the relationship.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes during the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.

RE IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1FF/Z

MEcsuEREEREMIAZAD
NRERE )

(b) EMIAZATE
FHIR—FHNEMEERBENEES
BORR/EEAFERE -

HRBEEALTEHRNTRRRSRENKH
HmENBEMEESBMET - BRI E
EEZEHEHBNATE -

42, EXRER

FEENETEEAERE A ERRELAEEFE
REMEES  BRRENEARLE  UXHE
B R ARG RA@R

REBEEBEEARE WHAERRNHES
REBEENRRBREEHEREBETAE -
REFNAEERNER  AEETARIRMNRKR
FHMRE - MREREEE AN EITHR - A&
ETZEMIIREENERRENRS - HZE
20234 K2022F12A31HLFE - WEHE
Z - BURSKIZFP{E s % -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 22023412 431 H 1F F/Z

42. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is

43.

190

interest-bearing borrowings divided by the capital. Capital

includes equity attributable to owners of the Company and the

non-controlling interests. The gearing ratios as at the end of the

reporting period were as follows:

Interest-bearing borrowings

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Gearing ratio

BESYEEN

RARER ANEE#ER

SRR R

Ficvi o

BARABHE

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the board of directors of the Company

on 28 March 2024.

42, EXREE %)

AEBEEREAABLRERER  ANER
HERUAER - ERBRARRHEA ARG
NIFER RS c RBMEPRR - EABBEL RN

T

2023
RMB’000
AR®TF T

1,299,832

1,091,516
(5.461)

1,086,055

119.7%

43. #{tEZ S MR

2022
RMB’000
ARBTT

1,186,538

1,070,207
(946)

1,069,261

111.0%

AATEEFTEDN2024F3 A28 B #b/fE R iFHE

TE A SRR



RESULTS

The Group

Turnover

Profit/(loss) before
income tax
Income tax credit/(expense)

Profit/(loss) for the year

Profit/(loss) attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

CE

BR P ISHLAT
s ()
FrisbiEs, (F%)

AEZEM,(ER)

THIALFESS
i Fl, (E1R)
E/NEIE ZE N
EiEedier Fa

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Group

Total assets
Total liabilities

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

mEE
BAfE

TNEHIA LRI
ZA/NECIE 2PN
SRR R

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
SR

E4
AEE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETRT ARETT AREBTT ARETE
6,145,228 6,359,226 7,091,644 6,216,571
10,915 26,902 64,498 (39,903)
3,299 (6,836) (25,937) (17,579)
14,214 20,066 38,561 (57,482)
20,109 24,038 42,182 (52,683)
(5,895) (3,972) (3,621) (4,799)
14,214 20,066 38,561 (57,482)
EEREE
rEH
At 31 December
®W12H31H
2023 2022 2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARETT AREBETT ARETE
4,870,355 5,041,651 5,578,631 4,643,973
(3,784,300) (3,972,390) (4,517,247) (3,619,432)
1,086,055 1,069,261 1,061,384 1,024,541
1,091,516 1,070,207 1,057,611 1,013,823
(5,461) (946) 3,773 10,718
1,086,055 1,069,261 1,061,384 1,024,541

2019
RMB'000
ARBTT

7,395,203

56,227

(7,531)

48,696

52,543
(3,847)

48,696

2019
RMB’000
ARBTT

5,183,200
(4,108,674)

1,074,526

1,058,728
15,798

1,074,526
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REVFEFHE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Description
B1E

3 blocks of factories, 1 warehouse building and 1 office
building located at No. 135, Rujiangdong Road, Mawei
District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

AT EEZEENTEREE®IRK 13RI =ERE
—EEARNER—EHARE

192

REYZE
Use Nature
A% X
Manufacturing facility and ~ Short term
administration office leasehold
EERBRITBBAE REEE

Total rental
area

HEAEE

32,187 sq.m
32,187 FH*K

Percentage of
interest
attributable to
the Group
AEEELER
Aotk

100%



4 VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED
HIEEKAR R A

VESON

HOLDINGS

B 5 = Bk

SCUD Industrial Park

Fuzhou Pilot Free Trade Zone
No. 98 Jiangbin East Avenue
Mawei District, Fuzhou

Fujian Province, PRC

Room 1017, 10/F Leighton Centre
77 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

www.vesonhldg.com

FEERE
BNTERE
TLBR K iB9855%
BINEEHRE
RERTER

BB IREEIEWEBTTHR
ETER 101017

Tel E3E : (86) 591-63158888
Fax {#H : (86)591-87307773

Tel E3E : (852) 28057888
Fax {£HE :(852) 28021777

VA

FSC

www/fsc.org

MIX

Paper | Supporting
responsible forestry

FSC™ C008061
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